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June 25, 2018

To the Honorable Mayor, Members of the City Council and Citizens of the City of Worthington:

Minnesota statutes require all cities to issue an annual report on its financial position and activity prepared in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) and audited in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America by a firm of licensed certified public accountants
or the state auditor. Pursuant to that requirement, we hereby issue the comprehensive annual financial report of the City
of Worthington for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017.

This report consists of management's representations concerning the finances of the City of Worthington.
Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all of the information
presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations, management of the City of
Worthington has established a comprehensive internal control framework that is designed both to protect the
government's assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliability information for the preparation of the
City of Waorthington's financial statements in conformity with GAAP. Because the cost of internal controls should not
outweigh their benefits, the City of Worthington's comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to
provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free from material misstatement.
As management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in
all material respects.

The City of Worthington's financial statements have been audited by Drealan Kvilhaug Hoefker & Ca., P.A., a firm of
licensed certified public accountants. The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that the
financial statements of the City of Waorthington for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017, are free of material
misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The independent auditor concluded based
upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unmedified opinion that the City of Warthington's
financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017, are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, The independent auditor's repart is presented
as the first component of the financial section of this report.

GAAP accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires that management pravide a
narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of a
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and
should be read in conjunction with it. The City of Worthington's MD&A can be found immediately following the report of
the independent auditors,

Profile of the Government

The City of Worthington, incorporated in 1873, is located in the southwestern part of the State of Minnesota, and serves
as a regional trade and service center for the surrounding agricultural area. The City of Worthington currently occupies a
land area of 8.0 square miles and serves a population of 13,145, The City of Worthington is empowered to levy a
property tax on both real estate and personal properties |located within its boundaries. It is also empowered by state
statule to extend its corporate limits by annexation, which occurs periodically when deemed appropriate by the governing
Council.



The City of Worthington has operated under the council-administrator form of government since 1973, Policy making
and legislative authority are vested in a City Council consisting of the Mayor and five other members. The governing
Council is responsible, among other things, for passing ordinances, adopting the budgets, appointing committees, and
hiring the City Administrator. The City Administrator is responsible for carrying out the policies and ordinances of the
Council, for overseeing the day-to-day operations of the City government, and for appointing the heads of various
departments. The Council is elected on a non-partisan basis. Council members serve four-year staggered terms, with
three Council members elected every four years and the Mayor and two Council members elected in staggered four-
year terms. Four of the Council members are elected by district. The Mayor and the one remaining Council member
are elected at-large.

The City of Worthington provides a full range of services, including police and fire protection; the construction and
maintenance of highways, streets, and other infrastructure; water, sewer and electric services, and recreational
activities and cultural events,

The Council is required to adopt a final budget by no later than the close of the calendar year. This annual budget
serves as the foundation for the City of Worthington's financial planning and contrel. The budget is prepared by fund,
function (e.g. public safety), and department (e.q. police). Department heads may transfer resources within a
department as they see fit. Informal approval is given by the City Administrator and Finance Director. Transfers
between departments, however, need Council approval,

Factors Affecting Financial Condition

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is considered from the
broader perspective of the specific environment within which the City of Worthington operates.

Local economy. The City serves as the county seat and regional economic center for Nobles County in Southwestern
Minnesota. In 2017, the City issued 567 building permits (32 permits less than issued in 2018) for a cumulative total of
$28.62 million of construction work, which is 38% greater than the construction value reported in 2016, The current
economic environment has resulted in the investment of over $88 million in building activities within the corporate limits
of Worthington between January 2013 and December 2017,

The City has undertaken a number of initiatives over the past year to address needs that have been identified to keep
Worthington on the path of growth and vitality.

Worthington has endured low rental occupancies for a number of years. The City is the recipient of an 5868,000
Workforce Housing grant awarded by the Minnesota Department of Employment and Economic Development. Staffis
working with multi-family residential developers to construct a market rate rental project. The Gity assisted Minnesota
West Community College in their on-campus student housing preject with funding assistance through a $900,000 loan.

The City will be pursuing re-imposition of a local option sales and excise tax this year. The referendum question will be
brought to voters in November's general election and, if passed, will be brought to the State Legislature in 2018,

Long-term financial planning. Unassigned fund balance in the general fund at year end was 52 percent of the total
general fund budgeted expenditures. This amount exceeds the pelicy guidelines (35%-50%) set by the Council for
budgetary and planning purposes. This year-end amount is in excess of the target percentages set by the policy
guidelines {2015 percentage was 61% and 2016 percentage was 53%).

The City maintains a five-year Capital Improvement Program which serves as its planning document to ensure that its
facilities and infrastructure are well maintained and cperating in peak condition. Projects are identified by name, cost
and funding sources (property taxes, reserves, bonding, assessments, utility revenue, state/federal funding or other).
The City also funds its equipment purchases through it budgetary process annually. This ensures that when a piece of
equipment is scheduled to be replaced, a majority (if not all) of the funding is available for the purchase of the
equipment. This allows the City to stabilize the impact on property tax revenues by building the required amounts over
a period of time.

The City raised its property tax levy 7.89% for taxes payable in 2017. Following is a graph comparing the City's tax
levy and LGA received in the appropriate years.
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The City successfully negotiated three-year contracts for Law Enforcement Labor Services, Inc, L.E.L.S Local #4 and
Local #274; and a two-year contract for International Union of Operating Engineers, Local #49, AFL-CIO. The increases
for the two law enforcement unions and non-aligned employees settled for January 1 cost-of-living-
adjustment (COLA) for years 2018-2020 of 3.5%, 3.0% and 3.0%, respectively. The local 49 union settled for COLA
adjustments of 3.0% for both 2018 and 2019. Part of the negotiations for Local 49 union also included that members of
the unien will be joining the health insurance program offered through the union.

Major Initiatives. The City has many accomplishments to report for 201 7 and beyond. The following are some of the
major initiatives addressed during the year.

Housing Lot Shortage. The shortage of buildable lots is being addressed through the allocation of $3 million from the
City and Public Utilities. The funds are intended to develop residential subdivisions that serve those looking for locations
to build starter homes and those desiring middle to upper value homes.

City Facility Needs. The City is addressing facility needs through the relocation of the municipal liquor store into a larger
building located in a higher retail traffic setting. The Public Works Department has their employees located in separate
faciliies. The Street Department is occupying a space that is too small to accommodate all of their equipment resulting
in off-site storage. The Parks Department is remotely located from the street crew. The undersized and remote facilities
impact efficiencies. The City recently purchased the MC Fitness building with the intent to move both departments into
one building. Renovation of the new facility is likely to begin next year.

Lewis and Clark Regional Water System Project. The project received the final federal advance needed to complete the
Minnesota portion of the project from the State of Minnesota in May. Contracts for the construction of pipeline to
Worthington, the construction of the Worthington meter building and the construction of the new high service pump
station have been awarded and actual construction is progressing. Substantial completion of the pump station is
expected in July, the meter building in October and the pipeline in November. Itis currently anticipated that Worthington
will begin receiving water from Lewis and Clark by the end of November 2018,

Relevant Financial Policies. The City has a palicy regarding General Fund reserve balances. The City plans for an
unassigned fund balance in the General Fund equivalent to 35%-50% of the subsequent year's budgeted expenditures
to provide working capital between semi-annual property tax settlements. Since the property tax settlements are
received by the City in July and December, the City needs sufficient cash reserves to avoid short-term borrowing to
finance operations. The City has unspendable or restricted fund balances for deferrals, prepaid items, inventories,
assets held for resale and other legal obligations. The City also reparts committed and assigned fund balances for
special purposes.

The primary goal of the City's investment policy is to ensure the safety of the principal invested. Cash temporarily idle
during the year is invested in certificales of deposit, obligations of the U.S. Treasury and government agencies. Cash
balances from all City funds are pooled into an investment fund and investment income is distrihuted on a pro-rata basis
at June 30 and December 31. A cash flow analysis is utilized and staggered in a way to meet projected liquidity needs.

Capital financing for major improvements is provided through improvement bonds, general obligation bonds, tax
increment bonds, or revenue bonds. Depending on the project, special assessments may be levied upon properties to
share in the cost of the improvement project. The special assessments are collected over a period of time, typically over
the life of the bond issue, and are used to help satisfy the improvement bond debt or reimburse the fund used to finance
the project,
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The City Council has also adopted financial management paolicies in order to allow for the planning of adequate funding
of services desired by the public, to manage City finances wisely, and to carefully account for public funds. These
policies are reviewed each year when the annual budget is adopted. The financial management palicies included:
operating budget policies; revenue policies; accounting, auditing and financial repoerting policies; investment policies;
debt policies; capital improvement policies; and risk management policies.

The City Council has adopted a comprehensive set of internal control procedures. The City's accounting system was
developed and is continually evaluated to assure the adeqguacy of internal controls. Internal accounting controls are
designed to provide reasonable but not absclute assurance in the areas of, safeguarding assets against loss from
unauthorized use or disposition, reliability of financial records, and convenience of access for preparing financial
statements and maintaining accountability for assets. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that the
evaluation of cost and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management, and the cost of a control should not
exceed the benefits likely to be derived, All internal controls are evaluated against the above criteria. Itis our belief that
the City's internal accounting controls adequately safeguard the City's assets and also provide reasonable assurance of
praperly recording financial transactions.

Awards and Acknowledgements

The Government Finance Officers Association {GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting to the City of Warthington for its comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2016, This was the twenty-ninth consecutive year that the City has received this prestigious award. In
order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the City published an easily readable and efficiently organized CAFR.
This report satisfied both GAAP and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achieverment is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current CAFR continues to meet
the Certificate of Achievement Program's requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility
for another certificate.

The preparation of this report would not have been possible without the efficient and dedicated services of the entire

staff of the finance department. Credit also must be given to the Mayor and the City Council for their unfailing support
for maintaining the highest standards of professionalism in the management of the City of Worthington's finances,

Respectfully submitted,

>$a«_.,.. /‘éjﬁm/m i SR y - e

Steven Robinson Brian P. Kolander
City Administrater Finance Director
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INDEPENDENT AUIDITOR’S REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and Members
of the City Council
City of Worthington, Minnesota

Report on the Financial Statements

We have aundited the accompanying financial statements of the povernmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of
Worthington, Minnesota, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2017, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the
table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management 1s responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of Mnancial statements that are free from material misstalcment, whether due to frand or
error,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Compiroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstalement.

An audit includes performing procedures to oblain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures sclected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order 1o design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policics used and the reasonableness of sipnificant
accounting cslimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audil cvidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.

= 507-376-4151 « FAX: 507-376-4154 » E-MAIL: tdkcpa@tdkepa.net » 909 4TH AVENUE, SUITE A s WORTHINGTON, MM 56187-2326
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O pinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Worthington, Minnesola as of
December 31, 2017, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows
thereof, and the respective budgetary comparisons for the General and WRH Funds for the year then
ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles gencrally accepled in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis, the budgetary comparison information, and the pension schedules
as required supplementary information (RSI), as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement
the basic financial statements. Such information, although not part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information
in accordance with auditing slandards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inquinies of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements,
and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express
an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance,

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City of Worthington, Minnesota’s basic financial statements. The combining
and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and individual fund budget to actual schedules are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, and the individual fund budget
to actual schedules. are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic [inancial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual
nonmajor fund financial statements are fairly staled in all material respects in relation to the basic
financial statements as a whole.

The information identified in the Table of Contents as the Introductory and Statistical Section are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the hasic financial statements.
The Introductory and Statistical Sections have nol been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on them.
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standurds, we have also issued under separate cover,
our report dated June 25, 2018, on our consideration of the City of Worthington, Minnesota’s internal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with cerlain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe
the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
in considering City of Worthington, Minnesota’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

S Hottlor v6. /A,

Worthinglon, Minnesota
June 25, 2018
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of the City of Worthington, we offer readers of the City of Worthington's financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of Worthington for the fiscal year ended December
31, 2017. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional information
that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can be found on pages 1-4 of this report. All amounts in the
Management's Discussion and Analysis are expressed in thousands of dollars.

Financial Highlights

» The assets of the City of Worthington exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by
$185,997 (net position). Of this amount, $55,321 (unrestricted net position) may be used to meet the
government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

» The City's total net position increased by $8,451. The majority of the increase came from a combination of an
increase in cash and cash equivalents/investments, an increase in work in progress and an increase in net
pension liability.

* As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City of Worthington's governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $33,656, an increase of $764 in comparison with the prior year. Approximately
$2,366 is available for spending at the government's discretion (unassigned fund balance).

= Atthe end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balances for the general fund was $3,934, or 54 percent
of total general fund expenditures.

= The City of Worthington refired existing debt of $1,340 during the current fiscal year.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Worthington's basic financial
statements. The City of Worthington's basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide
financial statements, 2} fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains
other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers
with a broad overview of the City of Worthington's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the City of Worthington's assets, liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources, with the difference between assets and the sum of liabilities and deferred inflows of resources
reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether
the financial position of the City of Worthington is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City's net position changed during the most recent
fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs,
regardiess of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some

itemns that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused paid time
off (PTO) leave.)

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City of Worthington that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to
recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The
governmental activities of the City of Worthington include general government, public safety, public works (nan-
enterprise), culture-recreation and conservation & development. The business-type activities of the City of
Worthington include water, municipal wastewater, electric, industrial wastewater facility, storm water management,
street lighting, liquor, airport, and cable television.

The government-wide financial statements include the City of Worthington itself (known as the primary governimernt).

The Water and Light Commission, although also legally separate, function for all practical purposes as departments of
the City of Warthington, and therefore have been included as an integral part of the primary government.
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The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 23-25 of this report.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain contral over resources
that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of Waorthington, like other state and local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demaonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

All of the funds of the City of Worthington can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds
and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial
statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources,
as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year.  Such information may be useful
in evaluating a government’'s near-term financing requirements,

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the
long-term impact of the government's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and
the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The City of Worthington maintains twenty-five individual governmental funds, Information is presented separately in
the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes
in fund balances for the general fund, Small Cities Grant fund, WRH fund, PIR series funds, and improvement
construction fund, all of which are considered to be major funds. Data from the other twenty governmental funds are
combined into a single aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental funds
is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report,

The City of Worthington adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund and all special revenue funds.
Budgetary comparison statements have been provided for the general fund (page 30) and the major special revenue
small Cities Grant fund {page 31) and WRH fund (page 32) as well as all the non-major special revenue funds {pages
92-97) to demonstrate compliance with the budget.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 26-32 of this report.

Proprietary funds. The City of Worthington maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are
used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statemenis.
The City of Worthington uses enterprise funds to account for its water, municipal wastewater, electric, industrial
wastewater facility, storm water management, street lighting, liquor, airport, and cable television. Internal service
funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the City of Waorthington's
various functions. The City of Warthington uses internal service funds to account for its data processing. Because this
service predominantly benefits governmental rather than business-type functions, they have been included within
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more
detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information far the water, municipal wastewater,
electric, industrial wastewater facility, liguor, and airport funds. which are considered to be major funds of the City of
Worthington,  Data from the other three enterprise funds are combined into a single aggregated presentation.
Conversely, internal service funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial
statements. Individual fund data for the nonmajor proprietary and internal service funds is provided in the form of
combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 34-43 of this report.
Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statement because the resources of

those funds are not available to support the City of Worthington's own program. The accounting used for fiduciary
funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.
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The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on page 44 of this report.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding

of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can
be found on pages 45-80 of this report.

Other information. The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental,
nonmajor proprietary, internal service and agency funds are presented immediately following the notes to financial
statements, Combining and individual fund statements and schedules can be found on pages 88-114 of this report.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. In the
case of the City of Worthington, assets exceeded liabilities by $185,997 at the close of the most recent fiscal year.

By far the largest portion of the City of Worthington’s net position (60.3 percent) reflects its investment in capital assets
{e.g., land, buildings, machinery and equipment) less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still
outstanding. The City of Worthington uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; conseguently, these
assefs are nof available for future spending. Although the City of Worthington's investment in its capital assets is
reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from
other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

City of Worthington's Net Position

Governmental Businass-typa
Activities Activitios Total
2017 206 2017 2014 HMT 2018
Current assets S M43 0§ 3919 § 4758R 5 44037 § &3BEs  §F 0 832N
Capital assats 58,041 56,879 B1 386 601,608 119,427 117 487
Tatal assats g BS4T1 §F 85073 F 108941 5 104645 § 205412 §F 200,718
Dreferrad outllows b 3956 3 B, 064 5 258 3 Ta8 ] 3814 8§ 6,572
Currant liabilities £ BBO 0§ 2127 F 0 27681 § 2,564 § 3621 0§ 460
MNan-current labilities 12,037 19,425 3,383 4.70% 15,420 24,134
Total liabilities 12897 § 215652 F 6144 § 7273 S5 1941 § 28825
Cefarrad inflows 5 4088 & 1130 b 98 5 40 5 4188 § 1,220
Melinvestment in capital assets & 50461 5 48665 § 6133 % 60566 S 12197 § 109232
Restricted 1,012 838 17 467 17,113 18,479 17,951
Unresfricied 3,168 20,971 24,153 20,391 55 321 50,362
Total nat position § 8304 5§ 79475 § 102956 0§ 98070 5 TBEA4T 5 177545

A portion of the City of Worthingtons net position (9.9 percent) represents resources that are subject to external
restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net position ($55,321) may be used to
meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Worthington is able to report positive balances in all three categaories of
net position, both for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate business-type activities. The same
situation held true for the prior fiscal year.

+ The government's net position increased by 38,451 during the current fiscal year. The majority of the increase
came from a combination of an increase in cash and cash equivalentsiinvestments, an increase in
improvements, infrastructure and machinery and equipment and an increase in net pension liahility,



City of Worthington's Changes in Net Position

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Taotal
2017 2018 2017 2016 207 2016
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services & 1,345 % 1,003 F 33m8 & 3322 b 35261 % 34215
Operating grants and contrbutions 723 aa2 a5 T4 808 956
Capital grants and contributions 1,682 1,353 274 810 2,156 810
General revenues:
Property taxes 3,646 3,429 - g 3,646 3,429
Other taxes 1,734 1.077 - - 1,734 1,077
Grants and contributions not restricted
to specific programs 3,195 3,188 - - 3195 3,188
Other g24 1,063 516 356 1,340 1,419
Total revenues 3 13349 §F 11,985 § 34791 5§ 34452 § 48140 & 45004
Expenses:
General government E 1775 5 2046 5 5 3 - 5 1,775 8 2,016
Public safety 3,904 9,345 - - 3,804 5,325
Public works 2514 2,399 - - 2514 2,399
Culiure and recreation 1,671 1,676 - - 1,671 1,676
Conservation and development 472 683 - - 472 683
Interast on long-term debt 389 366 - - 389 366
Water - - 2,642 2,700 2,642 2,700
Municipal Wastewater 4 - 1,516 1,700 1,516 1,700
Electric - - 18,662 19,026 18,662 19,026
Industrial Wastewater Facility - - 1,714 1,655 1,714 1,655
Storm Water Management - - 273 33 273 313
Street Lighting - - 85 123 as 123
Liguor - - 3,304 3,282 3,304 3,282
Adrport - - T35 713 k] 713
Cable Television - - 132 143 132 143
Total expenses F 10825 % 12485 & 20063 § 29655 F 30688 & 42120
Increaseldecrease) in net position
before transfers § 2724 § 470 = 5728 0§ 4797 & 8452 % 2,974
Transfers 842 a25 {842) (825) - -
Increase(decrease) in net position F 3566 & 355 3 4886 § 3972 5 8452 % 4,327
Met position-January 1 70,475 78,120 98,070 84 095 177,545 173,218
Met position-December 31 $ 83041 % 79475 § 10295 § 93,070 $ 185997 § 177545

Governmental activities. Governmental activities increased the City of Worthington's net position by $3,566, thereby
accounting for 42.2 percent of the total increase in the net position of the City of Worthington. Key elements of this
increase are as follows:

» The main reasons for the increase relates to a mixture of certain revenues increasing over 2016 as well as
certain expenditures decreasing. Capital grants and contributions revenues increased due to the type of
projects completed and revenue sources available. The public safety expenditures decreased dus to
difference in proportionate share of pension expenses.
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Expenses and Program Revenues — Governmental Activities
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Overall, governmental activities expenses decreased by $1,840 in 2017 from 2016,

Business-type activities. Business-type activities increased the City of Worthington's net position by 54,686
accounting for 57.3 percent of the total growth in the City's net position. Key elements of this increase include water
revenues that were more than expected due to usage ($676) and expenditures less than expected ($602), mainly due
to capital related expenditures. Municipal Wastewater revenues that were more than expected due to investment
eamnings and other revenues ($148) and expenditures less than expected (S815), mainly due to capital related
expenditures. Electric revenues that were more than expected due to usage ($1.202) and expenditures less than
expected ($607), mainly due to capital related expenditures.



Expenses and Program Revenues — Business-type Activities
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Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds

As noted earlier, the City of Worthington uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the City of Worthington's governmental funds is to provide information on near-
term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City of
Worthington's financing requirements.  In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a
government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Worthington's governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $33,656, an increase of 5764 in comparison with the prior year. Committed, assigned and unassigned
fund balance, which is available for spending at the government's discretion, has a balance of $31,138 at year end.
The remainder of fund balance is in nonspendable or resfricted to indicate that it is not available for new spending
because it has already been obligated 1) to pay debt service ($1,886), 2) for land held for resale (§252), 3) for Buffalo
Ridge ($144), 4) for prepaid items ($103), and 5) for inventory ($32) and other restrictions.
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The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City of Worthington. At the end of the current fiscal year,
unassigned fund balance of the general fund was $3,834, while total fund balance was $8,136. As a measure of the
general fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total fund
expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents 54 percent of total general fund expenditures, while total fund
balance represents 112 percent of that same amount,

The fund balance of the City of Worthington's general fund decreased by $415 during the current fiscal year. The key
factors of this decrease are as follows:

* Fines and forfeits revenues were less than budgeted mainly due to court fines and administrative fees coming
in less than budgeted.

= Miscellaneous revenues were less than budgeted mainly due to loss an investments.

The Small Cities Grant fund has a fund balance of $415 which increased by 521 due to intergovernmental and
miscellaneous revenues and no expenditures.

The WRH fund has a fund balance of $12 681 which increased by $178 due mainly to investment earnings exceeding
expectations,

The PIR Series Bonds fund has a fund balance of $1,955 which is an increase of $9 due to special assessments and
interest earnings.

The Improvement Construction fund had a fund balance of $4,545 which is a decrease of $150. The key factors of this
decrease are as follows:

+ Intergovernmental revenue received and capital projects started that were |ess than budgeted.

Proprietary funds. The City of Worthington's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail,

Unrestricted net position of the water, municipal wastewater, electric, industrial wastewater, liquor, and airport funds at
the end of the year amounted to $753, 57,173, $11,902, 5980, $574, and $736, respectively. The total growth
{decrease) in net position for the water, municipal wastewater, electric, industrial wastewater, liguor, and airport wera
$1.318, 5824, §2,237, 5(93), $258, and $(323) respectively. Other factors concerning the finances of these funds have
already been addressed in the discussion of the City of Worthington's business-type activities.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

During the year there was a 5105 increase in appropriations between the original and final amended budget.
Following are the main components of the increase:

= 540 supplemental appropriations to the general government department for the purchase of aerial mapping
and engineering technician vehicle for the engineering department. The appropriations were funded by
existing reserves in the equipment revolving schedule,

= 528 supplemental appropriations to the public safety department for the purchase of a fire hoses/nozzles and
pagers for the fire department. The appropriations were funded by existing reserves in the equipment
revaolving schedule,

The most significant variances between the final budget and actual expenses in the general fund occurred in the
general government (favorable - $236), public works (favorable - $84) and conservation and development (favorable -
$63). The favorable variance in general government was largely due to engineering administration capital related
expenditures less than expected and community & economic development personnel position open for a period of time
after an employee accepted a new position elsewhere and expenditures not made for the Worthington Rediscovered
program or the annual housing grant writing. The favorable variance in the public works expenditures was largely due
to overall underspending in personnel services, supplies and other services and charges. The favorable variance in
conservation and development expenditures was due to capital expenditures for lake improvement not completed.
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Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The City of Worthington's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type
aclivities as of December 31, 2017, amounts to 5119,427 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital
assets includes land, buildings and structures, improvements, machinery and equipment, park facilities, streets and
intangible assets. The total increase in the City of Worthington's investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year
was .97 percent (a .96 percent increase for governmental activities and a .97 percent increase for business-type
activities).

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:

= Construction began but not completed on recreation projects ($13), street projects ($570), water projects
(593), municipal wastewater projects (339) and stormwater projects (564).

s Many sireet construction projects were in progress but not completed by the end of 2017,

City of Worthington's Capital Assets

Governmental Buginess-type
Activities Activities Total
2017 2016 207 2016 2017 2016
Land § 4006 § 3994 3 523 8 523 § 4529 § 4517
Buildings and structures 21,043 21,021 20,498 28,511 50,541 80,532
Improvements 3,346 2,045 78,621 76,148 82 167 78,19
Infrastructure 48 840 46, 862 - - 48,840 46,862
Machinery and equipmeant 5475 5,030 4673 4,545 10,148 0,578
Furniture and fixtures 470 478 190 209 60 687
Other capital assels 309 309 - - 309 304
Intagibles 135 135 3,200 3,200 3.335 3,335
Work in progress 8,913 8,803 5,222 4717 13,735 13,520
Total S 92137 § 88677  § 122127 § 118851  § 214264 § 207528

Additional information on the City of Worthington's capital assets can be found in note 4{C) on pages 57-58 of this
report.

Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Worthington had total bonded debt outstanding of

$8.090. Of this amount, $7,000 comprises debt backed by the full faith and credit of the government. The remainder
of the City of Worthington's debt represents bonds secured solely by specified revenue sources (i.e., revenue bonds).
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City of Worthington's Outstanding Debt
General Obligation and Revenue Bonds

Gevetnmeantal Business-iypa
Activities Activities Toal
N7 2016 o7 08 2017 26
General coligation bonds T 1 I S . 3 - 5 - 5 TO081 % TTMW
General obligation revenue bonds 1,084 1,626 - - 1,004 162
Total $ A1eE*§ 03zt 3§ - b - * §F a5 *§ 93\t

*Includes unamartized premium| discounts)

The City of Worthington's total debt decreased by 51,197 (12.8 percent) during the current fiscal year. The City of
Waorthington retained an AA- rating from Standard and Poaor's for general obligation debt.

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a governmental entity may issue to 3 percent of its estimated
assessed value. The current debt limitation for the City of Worthington is $20,849, which is significantly in excess of
the City of Warthington's outstanding general obligation debt (see Tahle XIV, pages 140-141).

Additional information on the City of Worthington's long-term debt can be found in note 4(G) on pages 61-64 of this
repaort,

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates

» The unemployment rate for Nobles County as of December 31, 2017 is 3.4 percent, which is lower than a year
ago (3.8). This compares favorably to the State's average unemployment rate of 3.5 percent and the national
average rate of 4.4 percent.

Unemployment Rates

BMoblas

Percant

B Minnesota

QLS.

« Inflationary trends in the region compare favorably to national indices.
These factors were considered in preparing the City of Worthington's budget for the 2017 fiscal year.
During the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance in the general fund decreased (o $3,934.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Worthington's finances for all those with
an interest in the government's finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or
requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Office of the Finance Director, P.O. Box 279,
Worthington, MN 56187,
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CITY OF WORTHINGTON, MINMNESOTA

EXHIBIT 1
STATEMENT OF NET PCSITION
December 31, 2017
Governmental Busziness-Type
Activities Activities Total

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 3 23,627,148 37,318, 562 60,945,711
Invastments 4,628 308 7,307,298 11,933,688
Accounts receivable 85,031 317,845 412 B76
Motes receivable 3,744 031 - 3,744 031
Litilities recaivable - 2,546,627 2,546,627
Taxes receivable 38,316 - 38,316
Spacial assessments receivable 1,802,920 - 1,502,920
Interest recaivable 20,491 116,452 188,943
Internal balances 840,290 (B40,290) -
Cue from other govemmeants 3,071,203 TE,3TS 3147 582
Confracts receivable - 23,136 23,136
Inventories 31,900 574,299 B06.199
Prepaymenls 112,680 112,084 224,754
Met pensicn asset 7.230 - 7.230
Capital assets held for resala 252 065 = 252 055
Capital assels (Mote 4C)

Land, intangibles & waork in progress 12 653,755 8 0844 B50 21598614

Other capital assefs, net of depreciation 45357 111 52441440 97 528,560
TOTAL ASSETS 3 86,470,581 108,940,681 205 411,262
DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Ralated to pensions 3 3,555 795 258 420 3514 218
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable § 2859 855 2,154 486 2,444 341
Contracts and refainage payable 112,283 50,628 163,011
Accrued payrall 125,083 55,747 180,840
Due to other governmeants 380 296,621 297,00
Sureties/deposits 625 188,360 186,985
Accrued interest payahle 182,628 - 182,528
Unearned ravenue 148 914 16,909 165,823
Moncurrent liabilites:

Dua within one year 1,278,876 186,000 1,433,876

Dwe inmere than one year 7.5596.447 1,885,000 5,281 447

Met pansion Hakility 3161.710 1,542 791 4,704,501
TOTAL LIASILITIES 5 12.896.811 5,143,542 15,040 353
DEFERRED IMFLOWS OF RESCURCES
Related to pensions 3 4088810 B8 445 4,188,266
MET POSITION

Met investment in capital assets 3 50,560,908 61,335,680 112,185 586

Restricted for

Capital projects 1,281 17,217,132 17,218,413
Dbt service 1,010,435 260,000 1,260,435

LInrestricted 31,168 137 24 183 301 65,321 438

TOTAL NET POSITION b 83,040,755 102 956,113 185,998 872

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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CITY OF WORTHINGTON, MINNESCTA

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Program Revenues

Dperating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
FUNCTION/PROGRAMS
GOVERMMENT ACTIVITIES
General government £ 1,774,849 % B44 482 -7 421 % -
Public safety 3,904,169 247,223 553,706 -
Public works 2,514,522 90,791 118,832 1,881 962
Culture and recreation 1,570,691 162,831 80,137 -
Conservation and development 472 180 - - -
Interest on long-term debt 389.415 - - -
TOTAL GOVERMNMEMT ACTIVITIES 5 10,625.828 ] 1,345 327 -] 723006 F  1,881962
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
Water ¥ 2e42004 F 3840879 5 = 3 :
Municipal Wastewater 1,316,610 2,210,851 - -
Electric 18,662,026 21,264 674 - -
Industrial Wastewater Facility 1,713,977 1,585 874 4 &
Storrm Water Management 273,000 502 B0& - 172,527
Street Lighting 84,645 285,245 4 —
Liguor 3,303,920 3,774,433 - -
Airport 735,318 220,045 B4 450 101,446
Cable Tetevision 131,680 131,680 - .
TOTAL BUSINESS-TYFE ACTIVITIES $ 20,063,183 % 33,916,200 % B4 458 % 273,573
TOTAL GOVERNMENT £ 38,689.009 $ 352681617 % a80rE855 % 2155335

General Revenues:
Taxes:
Property taxes
Sales taxes
Gambling taxes
Tax increment fees
Grants and contributions not restricted o specific programs
Unrestricted investment earnings
Mel decrease in the fair value of investments
Other
Gain on sale of capital assels
Transfers

Total General Revenues and Transfers
Change in Met Position
Met Position, January 1

Met Position, December 31

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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EXHIBIT 2

Met (Expenss) Revenue and Changas in Net Position

Governmental

Business-type

Activities Activities Total
s {329,946) % - % (920,948)
(3,103,240} - {3,103,240)
{422,837) - (422 837)
(1,367 725 - {1,357 723)
{472180) - (472,180}
[389,415) - (369 415}
3 (6,675,441 5 - 3 (5,675 441)
] - F 1,198,875 b 1,198,875
- 594,241 594,241
- 2,602 648 2,602 648
& (118,103) {118,103)
- 492 132 492 132
- 200,587 200,597
- 470,513 470,513
- {328,364) [328,364)
5 - 5 5,211,539 % 5,211,539
5 (5.675441) & 5,211,539 2 11,483 902}
5 3645604 5 g % 3,645,703
1,547,517 - 1,547 517
4 658 - 4,655
181,911 - 181,911
3,194,810 - 3,194,810
440 916 408,528 B4D 444
(171,676 - {171,675)
555,008 75,870 630,978
- 31,843 31,843
842,172 {842 172) -
$ 10241008 % {325722) % 9,915,286
] 3,565 56T F 4 885 817 B 8,451,384
79,475,182 28,070,295 177,545,488
3 43,040,758 £ 102,856,113 $ 1850906872
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CITY OF WORTHINGTON, MINNESOTA

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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EXHIBIT 3
BALANGE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
December 31, 2017
Cither
Governmental Total
Small Clties PIR Seres Improvemart Funds Govarnmenial
General Grant WRH Bonds Construction  {See Exhibit A-1) Funds
ASSETS T
Cash and cash equivalents 5 35683355 § 87,689 § 7954035 5 1651554 5 3385267 § 5405658 %5 22167508
Investments 721,233 17,170 1,587 469 323,306 B62,864 1.068.475 4,240,807
Apcounts recaivatile B3,100 1,801 KT 11,122 - 12, 542 95,031
Moles racelvable - 420,000 2524031 - - - 3,744 031
Taxes receivable 13,636 . - 5713 2,536 16,43 38,316
Specizl assessments receivable 8,382 = - 1,884 538 2 = 1,802,520
Interest recaivable 5635 10,174 26,487 4207 12 086 15,305 77,885
Interfund loans 1,223,154 - 318,540 - - - 1,541,694
Due from cther governments 2,324,368 = 605,080 141,745 3,071,203
Inventaries 31,800 - - - - 31,900
Prepayments 76,440 - - 6591 2270 238M 103,072
Capital assets held for resale 252 0B85 - - - - 252,065
TOTAL ASSETS F 6413358 3 1036834 5§ 12680938 5 3881261 5 4670113 %  BATIEEY 8§ 37366332
(Continued)



CITY OF WORTHINGTOMN, MINNESOTA

EXHIBIT 3
BALAMNCE SHEET {Continuad)
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
December 31, 2047
Other
Gavemnmenizl Total
Small Citbes PIR Series Improvemeant Furds Governmental
General Grant WRH Bonds Constructicn  (See Exhibit A-1) Funds
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 160,105 % - i . ¥ - k3 16,393 % 112073 & 288 571
Caontracts and retainage payable 1,931 - - - 109,202 1,250 112,383
Accrued payroll 114,230 = - 543 = 5,972 121,745
Intearfurd loans payabla - - - - - 28,925 G258 025
Due to other govemments 7 - a3 KL
Sureties/deposits 625 . - - - - 625
TOTAL LIABILITIES § 276968 % 2 - & # 3 F43 5 125505 3 749,523 % 1,152,629
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue-
Motes receivable 3 - 5 G218 0§ - 5 - 5 - g - 5 621,801
Special assessments - - - 1.935.6883 - - 1,935 8R3
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESQURCES 3 - 5 621,801 5 £ 5 1935883 & = 3 - 5 2 557 BER4
FUND BALAMCES
Monspendahble ¥ 360405 3 - 5 % 5 GE1 % 2270 % 2367 8 387,037
Restrictad 1,281 - - 1,954 144 - 175,474 2.130,904
Committed 3,104.734 415,033 10,154 367 - - 1,479,737 14,853,871
Hssigned 735,741 - 2526571 - 4,542 248 4,881,787 12,696,347
Unassigned 3,034,230 - - - - (346,370} 3,587 860
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 3 B136.391 5 415033 5 12680936 5 1954835 § 4544518 F 2 5524304 5 33656019
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND
FUMD BALANCES F 5413359 3 1036834 5 12680938 3 3,851,261 F I I < T T S T Y
Capital assats used in gavernmmental activibes are not financial resourcas and tharefora ara not
reporied in the governmental funds. 56,019 5322
Other long-term asseis related o notes receivable and special assassment receivabla will ba
collectad in future years, bul are nod available soon enough to pay for the current period's
expenditures and therefore are deferred in the funds. 2408770
Internal service funds ara used by managemant 10 charga costs of aperations 1o individual funds,
Tha assetz and llakilites of the internal senvice funds are incleded in governmental activities in the
statemant of net assets, 981.627
The Met Position of the City's Fire Relief Association currenily exceeds the actuanally determined
tolzl pension liabilty creating & net pension assetf. 26,858
Defarred cutfllows and inflows of resources related to pensions are applicable to future
periods and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. (533.011)
Amourits pertaining 1o the Worthingtan Fire Relief Association pension plan are not
current financal rezources and therefore are not reperted in the funds. (79 628)
Long-tarm liabidlities, including bonds payable and pensions are nod dua and payable in the current
period and therefore, are not reported in the govarnmental funds. (11,459,188)
Met position of governmental activities In the statement of nat position 5 B3,040,759
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CITY OF WORTHINGTON, MINNESOTA

EXHIBIT 4
STATEMENT CF REVENUES EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOWVERNMEMNTAL FUNDE
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017
Other
Governmental Tatal
Small Cities PIR Series Imarevement Funds Govemnmental
General Grant WRH Bonds Construction  (See Exhibit A-2) Funds
REVEMUES
Taxas 5 1.242,8932 5 3 - G22.071 § G4, 5E1 5 2,B05302 ] 5409 BBG
Licensas and parmits 280,298 - - - - 288,208
Intargovernmental revancas 3,651,714 3533 1,682,040 250129 5783951
Charges for services 527,586 - 280 614 618,300
Fines ard forfeds 51,737 . 1574 53,111
Special assessments 48 - . 473 870 - - 475,316
Inwestmant eamings 111,510 7263 210,352 12,853 39,425 50,752 432 2585
Wet decrease in the fair value of investments (171.678) - - - - - (171,678)]
Rents 28879 - - - - 60,717 BO 506
Crthar 65,903 13,837 47 745 - .70 407G 176.112
TOTAL REVEMUES ¥ 5,798,028 3 21,200 3 258.087 1,108,962 % 2,078 BOG 3 3,589B855 5 13,354 74%
EXPENDITURES
Current
General government % 1706578 % = ¥ 101,802 - 5 - ] 13632 5§ 1822.m3
Public safety 4 365,083 - - - - 348,382 4,703 445
Public works 08,237 - 209,555 - 1,167,872
Culture and recraation 94,314 - - 1,204,545 1,289,260
Consenvation and development 22792 32T .0 555003
Capital cutlay
Prajects - - 2728440 75472 2801 912
[abt servics
Principal - GED, 000 £30,000 1,180,000
interest and fiscal agent fees - 180,585 26,281 206 388
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 5 7.292125 5 5 101,802 1,100,230 3 2,728,440 5 252374 3 13748381
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 51484098 % 91200 5 156205 BY3E 3 {145E34) 5 1 0E5ES1 3 (391647
OTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USES)
Sale of capital asast 3 0 082 3 3 - 3 - 5 G4 DOG k1 63,168
Transfer-in 1,113,878 - 21,708 - 1756201 2.851,875
Transfer-out 43412 - s = (1,756,291 (1,758,703
TOTAL DTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)$ 1,079,558 3 - [ 21,706 3 - 3 54088 E] 1.126,360
MET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES % (414538) § 0 21,200 0§ 17A001 a732 § (4o@ad; § 111985/ & 765718
FUMD BALAMCE. January 1 B.560,920 393,833 12,602.937 1,843,103 4 634,152 4 B04,347 32,892 30
FUMD BALANCE, December 31 3 513639 5 415033 3 12680938 1,054 835 § 4544 518 3 5,824 304 § 336856019

The accompanying notes are an integral pan of the financial statemenis
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CITY OF WORTHINGTOMN, MINMESOTA

EXHIBIT 5
RECOMCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EAFENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERMMENTAL FUMDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Far tha Year Ended Dacember 31, 2017
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities (See Exhikit 2) are different because:
Met change in fund balances - total governmental funds (See Exhibit 4) b TE3.716
Governmental funds report capilal outlays as expandiluras. However, in the statement of activitias,
the cost of those assats are depreciated over thelr estimated useful Hvas. 1,249 748
The net effect of various miscellaneous transacticns invalving capital assets (e, sales and lrade-ing)
is to Increase el assels. (75 GE4)
Revences in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial rescurces are not repored
as revenues in the funds. 14,188
Bond proceeds provide current financial resources to govemmental funds, bul issuing debt increases fong-
tarm liabilittas in tha statemant of nel assels. Rapayment of bond principal is an expenditura in tha
gavernmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets. This
is the amount by which proceeds exceeded repayments. 1,180,000
Zome expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of curent financial resources
and therefore are not reparted as expendijures in govemmenial funds. [190,860)
Govarnmental Funds repart Fire Dapariment pension conbribution as expanditures, however pension axpense
is reported in the statemant of aclivitias. This is Lhe amaunt by which pansion espense exceaded pension
contributions. [T8628)
Internal service funds are used by managemeant o charge the costs of ceraln activities 1o individual funds. Ta5441
Change innet position of governmental aclivities (See Exhibit 2) § 3.5655667

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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REVEMUES
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental revenue
Charges for services
Fines and forfeits
Miscellaneous revenue

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
General government

CITY OF WORTHINGTON, MINNESOTA

EXHIBIT B
GEMERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHAMNGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017
Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Positive
Criginal Final Actual {Negative)

$§ 1241902 F 1241802 3 1242832 % 1,030

250,900 250,900 289,298 38,398

3,640,886 3,640 886 3851714 10,828

491 448 491,448 527 BEE 36,238
112,000 112,000 51,737 {60,262)
144,841 144,841 34,662 (110,179)

$ 5881877 § 5881977 § 5798029 % (83,948)

§ 18902039 § 1942239 § 1706579 3§ 235,680

Public safety 4338.017 4 366,527 4,355,083 11,444
Fublic works 991,952 591,952 a08,237 B3,715
Culture and recreation 105,935 105,935 94 314 11,621
Conservation and development 250,996 290,996 227912 63,084

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

$ TB259839 $ TEUTE4S 0B T292125 § 405,524

EXCESS(DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER

(UNDER) EXPENDITURES

$o01T47062)  F (1.815672) 0§ (1494088 3 321,576

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES{USES)

Sale of fixed assets 5 - B - 5 aoez % 5,092

Transfer-in 1,100,650 1,100,650 1,113,878 13,228

Transfar-out (43.412) (43,412} {43,412} -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES $ 1057238 % 1057238 S 1079558 &5 22,320

Met changes in fund balances

FUMD BALAMNCE, January 1

FUMD BALANCE, Decamber 31

F  (B90T24) 5 (788434) S5 (414538) 5 343 896

8,550,929 8,550,929 8,550,929 5

$ 7860205 § 7792495 5§ 8136301 S 343,896

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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REVEMNUES
Miscellaneous
Investment eamings
Other revenus
TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENMDITURES

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
EXPENDITURES

FUMND BALAMNCE, January 1

FUND BALANCE, December 31

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

CITY OF WORTHINGTON, MINNESOTA

EXHIBIT 7
SMALL CITIES GRANTS FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENLUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHAMNGES IN FUND BALAMNCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
Far the Year Ended December 31, 2017
Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Positive
Criginal Final Actual {Negative)
$ - $ - 7.263 5 7263
- - 13,937 13,837
§ e 3 - 21200 % 21,200
3 - B = 21200 5 21,200
383,833 393,833 393,833 -
3 393,833 5 393,833 415033 % 21,200
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CITY OF WORTHINGTON, MINNESOTA

EXHIBIT &
WRH FUND
STATEMENT OF REVEMNUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUMND BALANCE - BUDGET AMD ACTUAL
Far the Year Ended December 31, 2017
Wariance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Positive
Criginal Final Actual [Megative)
REVEMUES
Miscallaneous revenue
Investment earnings i 188 802 ] 188,802 S 210,352 3 21,650
Other 7.500 7.500 47,745 47,745
TOTAL REVENUES & 186,302 b 196,302 -] 258,097 & 64,255
EXFEMDITURES
General government
Other senvices and charges 5 45657 5 45657 % 101,802 % (56,145)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 5 45 65T k] 45 657 & 101,802 ] 156,145)
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
EXFEMDITURES b 150,645 5 150,645 $ 156,295 5 13.150
OTHER FIMAMCING SOURCES
Transfer-in 1 21,706 & 21,706 ] 21,706 5 -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES & 21,7086 B 21,706 b 21,706 5 -
Met changes in fund balances $ 172,351 % 172,351 % 178,000 % 13,150
FUND BALAMCE, January 1 12,602 937 12,502 937 12,502 937 -
FUND BALAMNCE, December 31 $ 12675288 5 12675288 S 12680938 % 13,150

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statemeants
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CITY OF WORTHINGTON, MINNESOTA
STATEMENT OF FUND NET FOSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
December 31, 2017

Business-tyos Activibas-Entarprise Funds

Industral
Muricipal Wastewslar
Water Wasiewaler Elzctric Facility
ASSETS
Curranl assals
Cash and cash equivalents 5 7,302,106 k] 10,477,810 5 14,276,130 5 1,601,268
Invesiments 1 429,818 2,051 656 2,795,300 313,548
Accounts recaivabla 624 5,663 70,620 133,540
Litilities receivable 3714440 232,510 1,868,751 -
Interast receivanle 24 037 35,254 47,564 5,259
Due from ather govarnments - - - -
Centracls racaivabla -
Inventories - - - -
Prepayments 48 163 12 2H0 27 B4 2210
Tatal current assols 5 3,176,415 £ 12 814 865 5 19,080,649 i 2,055 543
Moncurrent assets
Capilal assals
Lard, intangibles & work in progress 5 4 842 870 5 256,755 % 1,017,201 3 AGT 5595
Buildings & improvements 22 242 A55 21,257 053 29,027,519 10,091 541
Eguipment & fumitura BEE, 405 235,170 1,550,970 202 281
Less accumulated depreciation (9,187 450) {16,355, 815) {15,483, 050) (5,583 677)
Moncurran! assats 3 18 684,000 3 6,213,203 F_ 18472640  F SATI TN
TOTAL ASSETS ] 27,860 505 ] 19,028 068 ] 35 553 280 i 7,233 653
DEFERRED CUTFLOWS OF RESQURCES
Ralated 1o pensions 5 52,253 3 61,803 5 115 054 3
LIABILITIES
Current ligkilitias
Accounts payable 5 202 409 5 21,635 5 1411100 k] 109,480
Contracts and ratainage payable 15,443 4,265 . 11,411
Accryed payrall 14,248 14,5393 18,238 -
Interfund leans payable - = =
Duz ta other governments 2.255 - 45 528
Sureties/depoaits 24 615 28,030 133,715
Ungamed ravaenue - - 3,79z
Bands, note end lease payable 155 000 - - -
Tatal current liahilitas 3 411.970 5 EB.523 3 1,617,071 5 120,901
Monourrent liabilities
CGeneral obiigation revenua note payabla § 1,863,000 5 - b - 5 -
Pensicn liability 315,240 71,333 BE2 748 -
Accruad vacation and sk pay - - : -
Tatal noncurrent lighilities ¥ 2.004,540 5 a71,3323 b BO2, 746 5 -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 3 24168810 ] 435,556 3 2,289,617 5 120,801
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Ralzted 1o pensions 3 19,828 ] 24,283 ] 43,854 ] -
NET POSITION
MNet investment in capital asseis ] 18,670,547 3 E,208,938 i 16,472 640 L] 5,166,299
Rastricted for:
Capital projects 5,802,072 5,244,223 4,850,000 866 194
Dbt 2ervice 250,000 - -
Unrastricied 753,301 7,172,871 11,802 032 BE0. 155
TOTAL NET POSITION 3 ZHATEOZD 5 18,625 7352 5 33,324 672 3 7,112 652

e e b S g — a5

Some amounts reporled for businass-lypa aclivities in the statemant of net
pasition (Exhibit 1) &re different because certain intermal service fund assets
and liakilities are included with business-lype aclivilies

Nat positon of business-typa aclivitias

The accampanying notes asa an integral par of the financia! statemanis
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EXHIBIT 8

Gowvarmmental
Other Activities-
Enierprise Internal Service
Funds Funds
Liguar Airport {Sae Exhibit B-1) Taotal [See Exhibit C-1)
5 1,228,166 768,437 1,864,525 ] 37,318,562 i 1,450 551
240 485 160,466 325,025 7,307,259 286.782
BOG 103,120 . 37,845 -
- - 75,917 2,545,827
o 425 2588 5425 118,452 2,508
- T6,379 - 7&,378 -
= - 23,136 23136 -
574 794 - - G674 289 -
7.073 12,145 1 BQE-L 112 054 G618
‘3‘_._ ___2355 255 1,115, 00% 2086 B2T 3 48 394 653 3 1,757,557
-} 1,574,130 148 TG 531,652 [ 4544 555 k3 -
L0e 218 22,870,368 2,105,135 108,319,270 .
122,976 B44 951 375,697 4,852,450 88,821
(386, 309) [13.031,235) (728, T44) (50,740 271 [77,377)
$ 1617015 10,737 670 2,283,980 § 61,066,308 3§ 21,544
5 3,672 270 11,852,678 4,580,807 5 109,780,971 H 1,779,101
8 29,310 - - 5 255430 3 33,746
3 385 188 7111 37,503 4 2154 455 ] 1,284
21,048 . Aa53 =0 B28 -
7.284 39z 275 55 747 3,348
512 764 - 912,758
43 394 201 446 - 298,621 -
: : L 186,350 -
2,047 11.070 - 16,0049
g - - 155,000 -
3 1,351,738 220 026 33,2_9;_’1_ 3 3,828,520 5 4,632
kS - - 3 1,685,000 5 -
168,772 - i 1,542,791 44,085
- = - 720,363
i 166,772 - 5 3,227 71 5 TH4 478
§ 1,520,510 220,026 3291 & 7086311 §  7EDOE]
3 11,481 3 20445 E 27875
5 1,795, 969 10,737 670 2,283,517 5 51.335,650 ) 21,544
- 158 265 85,355 17,217,132 31,245
- = - 250,000 -
573,620 735698 1,963 441 24 08D 822 953,122
3 2,265,588 11,632,653 4,342 315 F 102,862,534 5 1,015,817

72478

B 102,936,113
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CITY OF WORTHINGTON, MINNESOTA,

STATEMEMT OF REVEMUES, EXPENSES ANMD CHAMNGES IN
FUMD NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Business-type Activities-Enterprise Funds

SALES AND COST OF SALES
Sales
Cost of sales

GROSES PROFIT

CPERATING REVEMUES
Lhtility sales revenues
Charges for facility
Charges for services
Other operating revenus

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES
FPurchased power & transmission
Personnel services
Supplies and materials
Other services and charges
Depraciation

TOTAL OPERATING EXFENSES

OPERATING INCOME {LOS5)

Industrial
Municipal VWastewaler
\Water Wastewater Electric Facility
B - = & -
3 7 - 5 - z
$ 3788201 2,138,442 5 20,235,087 -
: A - 1,582,100
42 878 2,408 1,025,577 13,774
$ 3840879 2,210,851 5 21,264 674 1,595.874
B! - - 3 18,509,642 -
507,872 557 BE7T 543,320 57
160,336 170,835 62 384 555,061
1,233,720 436,616 566,528 504 385
BEE,429 371,378 g25, 782 255063
§ 2568357 1536594  § 18607656 1,714 566
$ 1274522 874257 §F 2,567 018 {118,892}

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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EXHIBIT 10

Governmental
MNanmajor Activities-
Enterprise Internal Sarvice
Funds Funds
Liquor Airport {See Exhioit B-2) Total [Ses Exhibit ©-2)
3,774,433 - 3 - 3,774,433 -
2,832,818 - - 2832918 -
941,817 - 5 2 941,917 -
L - £ 877,850 27,083,580 -
- - - 1.582,100 -
- 220,045 131,680 251,729 584 024
- - - 1.154.438 1,727
3 220042 % 1,008,530 30,141,857 £66,851
- - 3 - 16,599,642 .
236,207 22 BET 92,721 1,858,701 187,878
22,822 11,803 35,563 1,018,204 7546
170,482 142 558 277,267 2,731,538 44,117
18,082 581,849 B3.833 2881414 8618
448,573 739067 3 490,384 26,191,187 248258
494,544 (519018 § 519,144 4852177 318,392
{Continued)



CITY OF WORTHINGTON, MINNESOTA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN
FUND NET POSITION
FROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Business-type Activities-Enterprise Funds

Industrial
Municipal Wastewater
Water Wastewater Electric Facility
NON-OPERATING REVENUES {EXPENSES)
General property taxes E - 5 - ] - $ -
State grants - - - -
Investment gamings 868,622 115,922 145,995 15,332
Sale of scrap and surplus 3,587 15,500 6.418 -
Other non-operating 20,147 177 16,608 6.001
Inferest expense (93,745) - - -
Gain on disposal of capital assets 17,443 000 7,500 -
Loss on disposal of capital assets (1,19) - {1,940 -
TOTAL NON-OFERATING REVENUES
(EXPEMSES) 3 3283 3 138598 % 174578 & 25333
INCOME {LOSS) BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS
AND TRAMNSFERS $ fagyasr % B12856 0§ 2741597 % (93 359
Capital contributions-capital assets - - - -
Transfers-in 10,853 10,853 134,400 -
Transfers-out - - 1638,878) -
CHAMGE [N MET POSITION F 138210 % B23709 3 2237119 % (83 359
TOTAL NET POSITION, January 1 24157 810 17,802,023 31,087,553 7,206,011
TOTAL MET POSITION, Decamber 31 § 25476020 % 15625732 5 33324672 0§ 7112652

Adjustment to reflect the cansolidation of internal service fund activities
related to enterprise funds.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements



EXRIBIT 10

(Centinued)

Governmental

MNonmajor Activities-
Enterprise Internal Service
Funds Funds
Liguor Airport iSee Exhibit B-2) Total {See Exhibit C-2)
% 3 8 & - 9 &
- 84,454 - 84,459 -
14,773 8,521 18,3683 408,528 8681
- - - 25,485 :
2,804 250 4,500 50,485 35
(30,000 ) - [123,745) -
- = . 31,543 -
4 g - (3.138) =
(12.423) % 84238 3% 20,863 474025 % 8,700
482 521 S (424779 0§ 540,009 5385202 § 327,092
- 101,448 172,527 273973 =
b - 1,500 157 508 -
{225,000) - (135,900) (999,778} {280,000)
287521 % (323333 § 578.136 4,798,003 ¥ 77,092
2.112,068 11,955,586 3,764,150 938,819
2368588 % 11832653 3% 4,342,316 5 1,015,811
a7.814
4885817



CITY OF WORTHINGTON, MINNESOTA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Business-type Activities-Enterpnss Funds

Industrial
Muricipal Wastewater
YWater Wastewater Electric Facility
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATIMNG ACTIMITIES
Cash received from customers $ 3769494 0§ 2107297 0§ 20132497 0§ 1586572
Cash payments to suppliers for
goods and services {1,398.513) {813 ,462) (17,234.860) [1,425821)
Cash payments to employees
far services (G322 8498) (T10,176) {823.889) -
Customer deposits received 9,250 10,330 52,179 -
Customer deposits retumed (10,377 (11,410) (55622 -
Other operatfing revenue 42 678 720918 1,029,423 13,177
Other non-operating revenue 24 G5B 15,677 23,089 &6.001
MET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING
ACTIMVITIES $ 1,803,302 5 BF1.175 & 3122828 % 178,829
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING
ACTIVITIES:
Froperty tax revenue raceived % - $ - 3 - 5 -
State grant revenue received & - - 3
Transfer-in 10,853 10,853 134,400 -
Transfer-out - - {638.878) -
MET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY NONCAPITAL
FINAMCING ACTIVITIES i 10,853 3 10,853 % (504 ,478] & -
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINAMCING ACTIVITIES:
Fedaral grant revenue received 3 - 3 - 5 - 5 =
State grant ravenue received - = = -
Agruisition and construction of
capital assets (1,411, 760} (304 439 (700,015) (243,175)
Principal payments {150,000} - - -
Interest payments (20.504) - - -
Proceeds from disposal of capital assets 17.443 7,000 7,500 -
MWET CASH PROVIDED [USED) FOR CARITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIMITIES $(1836121) §  (297.439) % {692.515) &  (243,175)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest income ] 78015 &5 104780 % 129808 3 18,137
Purchase of investments (1,384,501) {1,966 824) (2 6B3611) (300,119}
Proceeds from sales of investiments 365,435 489014 615,992 81,570
MET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 3941081y 0§ (1.3730200 3 (19378100 0§ (200412)
MET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS § (782017) § (TEEA431) 5 {11,975) %  (253,758)
CASH AND CASH EQUINMALENTS, January 1 8,064,123 11,266,341 14,288,105 1,865,046
CASH AND CASH EQUINMALENTS, Decambar 31 $ 7202106 F 10477910 % 14276130 § 1,601,288

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements



EXHIBIT 11

Governmental
MWonmajor Activitias-
Enterprise Internal Service
Funds Funds
Liguor Airport {See Exhibit B-3) Tatals (See Exhibit C-3)
¥ 3773566 & 271,725 & 1,007,341 $ 32648492 3 595,977
(2,883,335) {154,301) (373,040} {24 084,441) {68,130)
(305,101} (23.137) [92,891) (2688.072) (203,992)
- - - 71,750 .
. - - (7T,409) -
- - - 1,158,197 -
2,804 280 4,500 76,900 3G
] 537,034 35 84 837 3 546810 § 7206515 & 323,894
-3 - § 9 3 - 3 8 % -
5 7,140 - 76,140 -
- - 1.500 157 606 -
(225,000 . {135.900) (899,778) {250,000
$ (2250000 § 76,149 ] {134 4000 3 (766023 & {250,000)
% - 5 &07 408 % 08089 3 §15487 % <
- 84,963 - 84 963 -
1518,625) (140,533) {290,738) {3,509, 285) -
{87,231) - - 1237,231) =
{30,000) = = (120,804} -
c - - 31,943 -
$ (635,858 & 551,838 & 17,351 (2834917 & -
b 13,360 & TE48 § 14,017 & ABSTIT % 714
{218,990) (212,191) (319,850 (7. 086,086) (241 5B86)
82,265 70,871 68,927 1,754,074 36,435
$ (143,355 % (133,671 % (236,008) % (4,966,235 &% (197 ,537)
§ (416287 % 588,852 3 181,855 & (1461.660) 3§ [123,843)
1.644 453 179,584 1472570 38,760,222 1,583 194

§ 1228166 & 7EB 437 & 1664525 F 37318862 3§ 1,459,551

(Continued)

41



CITY OF WORTHINGTON, MINNESOTA,

STATEMEMNT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended Decembar 31, 2017

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)
TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING

ACTIVITIES

Operating income (loss)

ADJUSTMENTS TQ RECONCILE OPERATING
INCOME {LOSS) TO NET CASH PROVIDED
BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Depreciation

Othar non-operating revenue
(Increase)decrease in asssts:

Accounts receivable
LHility receivable
Cantracts receivabla
Irventory

Frepaid expenses

Decreasa in deferred outflows of resources:
Deferred outflows related o pensions
Increaseidecrease) in liabilities:

Accounts payabla
Payroll payabla
Pension payabla

Due to other governmsnts

Deposits
Unsarmed revenus

Long-term accrued vacation
Increase in deferred inflows of resources
Deferred inflows related to pensions

MET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING

ACTIVITIES

NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING

ACTIVITIES:

Loss on disposal of capital assets
Capital contributions-capital assets

Businezs-type Activiies-Enterprise Funds

Industrial
Municipal Wastewater
Water Wastewater Electric Facility
$ 1274522 $ 674257 3 2567018 0§ (118692
665,429 371,376 G25,782 255,063
23,714 15677 23,024 6,001
673 2,158 16,664 3,875
(28,678) (32,793) (100,314} 5
B7T &6 1,285 100
104,852 130,422 232 567 -
(7.083) {6,580) (18,803 33,482
4,168 2,803 514 -
(236,006) {268,048) 517,752} -
(29) - 16, 396) -
(1,127) {1,080) {3,443 -
- - {1,440) -
1,860 2312 4122 -
$ 1,803302 3 871,175 3 3122 828 b 179 829
5 1,198 35 - § 1840 % -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial stalements
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EXHIBIT 11

{Cantinued)
Monmajor Governmental
Enterprisa Activities-
Funds Internal Service
Liquor Adrport [See Exhibit B-3) Totals Funds
% 494 D44 % (519,018) & 515,146 ] 4862177 3 318,382
18,082 861,849 83,833 2881414 8618
2.804 280 4 500 75,870 30
{221} 36,5084 - 61,743 [16,038)
z £ {2,162) {163,947) -
R . (27 (27) .
[53,581) - - [53.591) -
[318) 562 274 3445 (458
61,583 - 529,524 &,206
195,774 1,910 [55,484) 139,845 166
2,180 [2a0) 170} 9,215 137
i134,748) - - {1,176,653) {48,169)
(908) - - (7,333) -
. - - (5,650)
262 11,070 - 9,892 -
- - - - 29,326
1.082 - - 9,388 23012
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CITY OF WORTHINGTON, MINNESOTA

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
AGENCY FUNDS
December 31, 2017

ASSETS
Cash assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables
Utility receivable
Interest receivable
Accounts receivable
Economic revolving receivable
Economic revolving receivable L-T

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Health insurance premium payable
Due to other governments
Sureties/deposits
Amounts held for others

TOTAL LIABILITIES

EXHIBIT 12

$ 1,031,212
201,920

108.815
2,837
9,058

39.473

154,293

5 1,547,709

$ 111,285
3,625

6,634

15,350

1,410,815

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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CITY OF WORTHINGTON, MINNESOTA

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2017

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A, Reporting entity

The City of Worthington is a municipal corporation formed under Section 412 of Minnesota State Stafutes and
operates under an elected Mayor and five-member Council. The Council and Mayor are elected on retating
terms in each even-numbered year. The accompanying financial statements present the government entities
for which the City is considered to be financially accountable.

B. Government-wide and fund financial statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of changes in
net position) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the City. Governmental activities, which
normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type
activities, which rely significantly on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific
function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use or
directly benefit from goods, service or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and
cantributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or
segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as
general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even
though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental
funds and maijor individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

C. Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and
the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund statements, Revenues are recorded when earned
and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows.
Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are
recognized as revenue as scon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable
and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or
soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the GCity considers revenues to
be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal pericd. Expenditures generally
are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as
well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when
payment is due,

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all
considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period.
Only the portion of special assessments receivable due within the current fiscal period is considered to be
susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current period.  All other revenue items are considered to be
measurable and available only when cash is received by the City.

The City reports the following major government funds:

The general fund is the City’s primary operating fund. 1t accounts for all financial resources of the general
government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.
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CITY OF WORTHINGTON, MINNESOTA

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2017

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [Continued)
C. Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation (Continued)

The Small Cities Grant fund accounts for revenues and expenditures for the rehabilitation of commercial
property located in downtown Worthington and residential property located northeast of the downtown area,

The WRH fund accounts for the activity surrounding the use of money obtained from the sale of the City-
owned hospital.

The permanent improvement revolving (PIR) series bonds fund accounts for resources accumulated and
payments for principal and interest on long-term general obligation debt,

The improvement construction fund accounts for major capital expenditures for the strest paving
management program of the City.

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:
The water fund accounts for activities related to the operation of a water distribution system.

The municipal wastewater fund accounts for activities related to the operation of a wastewater distribution
system.

The electric fund accounts for activities related to the operation of electric generation and distribution
systems.

The industrial wastewater fund accounts for the operations of the City-owned industrial wastewater plant.
The liquar fund accounts for the activities related to the operation of the municipal owned liquor store.
The airport fund accounts for activities related to the operation of an airport.
Additionally, the City reports the following fund types:

The internal service funds account for data processing, safety promotion, compensated absences and
health insurance services provided by one department or agency to other departments or agencies of the
City on a cost-reimbursement basis.
The fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity for individuals,
private organizations, other governments and/or other funds. The City's fiduciary funds are custodial in
nature and do not involve measurement of results of operations. The following depicts the fund and main
function;

Olson water — used to improve lake guality in the area

Retiree’s health insurance — pays for future health insurance premiums

Garbage collection — accounts for the collection of garbage, paid to Schaap Sanitation

Bicentennial — used for future events

Waste management — accounts for the landfill fee, paid to Nobles County

Salstrom bequest — used in the purchase of equipment for senior dining

Tourism promation — accounts for lodging tax fees, paid to Chamber of Commerce

Economic revolving — used for possible business expansions
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CITY OF WORTHINGTON, MINNESOTA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2017

MOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
C. Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation (Continued)

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements. Exceptions to this rule are payments in-lieu of taxes and other charges between the City's
enterprise functions and various other functions of the City. Elimination of these charges would distort the
direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or
privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions, including
special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program
revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes,

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items, Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a
proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenue of the City's enterprise funds
and internal service funds are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for enterprise
funds and internal service funds include the cost of sale and services, administrative expenses, and
depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as
nonoperating revenues and expenses.

The City’s fiduciary funds are all agency funds. Agency funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities)
and do not involve measurement of results of operations.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to first use restricted
resources, and then unrestricted resources as they are needed. When unrestricted resources are available for
use, it is the City's policy to use resources in the following order: 1) committed 2) assigned 3) unassigned,

D. Assets, liabilities, and net position or equity
1. Deposits and investments

The City's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and
investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

Cash balances from all funds are combined and invested to the extent available in certificates of deposit
and other authorized investments. Earnings from these investments are allocated to the respective funds
on the basis of the cash balance in each fund,

2. Receivable and payables

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of
the fiscal year are referred to as either "due toffrom other funds” (i.e. the current portion of interfund loans)
or "advances to/from other funds” {i.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans).

All other outstanding balances between funds are reported as "due toffrom other funds™ Any residual
balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the
government-wide financial statements as “internal balances”.

All trade (utility) and property tax receivables are shown at a gross amount, since both taxes and trade

{utility) receivables are assessable to the property taxes and are collectible upon sale of the assessed
property. Hospital account receivables are reported net of estimated uncollectibles.
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CITY OF WORTHINGTON, MINNESOTA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2017

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

D. Assets, liabilities, and net position or equity {Continued)

2.

Receivable and payables (Continued)

Property tax is considered receivable on January 1, the date the tax becomes a lien, and is recorded as a
receivable by the City at that date. Revenues are accrued and recognized in the year collectible.

Real property taxes may be paid in two equal installments. The first payment is due on May 15 for both
non-agricultural and agricultural property and the second payment is due on October 15 for non-agricultural
and November 15 for agricultural property. Personal property taxes may be paid on May 15 and October
15. The County is the collection agent for the levy. The County normally remits the collections to the City
during the months of June and November.

Taxes not collected as of each December 31 are then reclassified as taxes receivable-delinquent. Mo
allowance for uncollectible taxes has been provided because such amounts are not expected to be
material.

Inventories and prepaid itams

All inventories are valued at cost using the first-inffirst-out (FIFO) method.  Inventories of governmental
funds are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as
prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements. Prepaid items are reported using the
consumption method and recorded as expenditures/expenses at the time of consumption.

Capital assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges,
sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities
columns in the government-wide financial statements, which uses the full accrual basis of accounting.
Infrastructure has been capitalized retroactively to 1980. The infrastructure is recorded at historical cost,
which the City was able to obtain through past records. Capital assets are defined by the City as assets
with an initial, individual cost of more than $5.000 (except for the water, electric & municipal wastewater
funds which are $1,000 and easements which are $100.000) and an estimated useful life in excess of one
year, Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed.
Donated capital assets, donated works of art and similar items, and capital assets received in a service
concession arrangement are recorded at acquisition value on the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the assets or materially extend
assets lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.

Property, plant and equipment of the City is depreciated using the straight line method over the following
estimated useful lives:

ALL OTHER
Infrastructure 30-50 years
Improvements other than buildings 10-50 years
Building and structures 20-50 years
Machinery and equipment 5-35 years
Furniture and fixtures 5-15 years
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CITY OF WORTHINGTON, MINNESOTA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2017

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

D. Assets, liabilities, and net position or equity {Continued)

5.

Deferred outflows/inflows of resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources, This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources,
represents a consumption of net position that applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an
outflow of resources (expensefexpenditure) until then. The City only has one item that qualifies for
reporting in this category. It is the deferred outflows of resources related to pensions reported in the
government-wide and enterprise funds Statement of Net Position. This deferred outflow results from
differences between expected and actual experience, changes in assumptions, difference between
projected and actual earnings on pension plan investments, and from contributions to the plan subseguent
to the measurement date and before the end of the reporting period. These amounts are deferred and
amortized as required under pension standards.

In addition to liabilities. statements of financial position or balance sheets will sometimes report a separate
section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents an
acquisition of net position that applies to future pericds and so will not be recognized as an inflow of
resources (revenug) until that time. The City has two types of items which qualify for reporting in this
category.

The first item, unavailable revenue, arises only under a modified accrual basis of accounting and therefore
is only reported in the governmental funds balance sheet. The governmental funds report unavailable
revenue from special assessments. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources
in the period the amounts become available.

The second item, deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, is reported in the government-wide and
enterprise funds Statement of Net Position. This deferred inflow results from differences between expected
and actual experience, changes in assumptions, difference between projected and actual earnings on
pension plan investments. These amounts are deferred and amortized as required under pension
standards.

Compensated absences

According to City policy, unused paid time off (FTO) is payable upon termination of employment. PTO
payments are made at the employee’s current wage rate. The City pays the vested extended sick leave
bank (ESLB) amount per contract to an employee upon termination. Retiring employees have the option to
use accrued PTO and vested ESLB hours for post-retirement benefits (see Note 5D).

Long-term obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements,
long-term debt and other long-term debt reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities,
business-type activities, and proprietary fund type statement of net position. Bond premiums and discounts
are amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line method. Bonds payable are reported net of
the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as an expense in the period
incurred.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well
as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other
financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance
costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service
expenditures.
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CITY OF WORTHINGTON, MINNESOTA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2017

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

D. Assets, liabilities, and net position or equity {Continued)

8,

10.

Fund balance classifications

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report fund balance in classifications that disclose
constraints for which amounts in those funds can be spent. These classifications are as follows:

Nonspendable — consists of amounts that are not in spendable form, such as prepaid items/inventories.

Restricted - consists of amounts related to externally imposed constraints established by creditors,
grantors or contributors; or constraints imposed by state statutory provisions.

Committed — consists of internally imposed constraints. These constraints are established by
Resclution of the City Council. Committed amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the
City Council modifies or rescinds the commitment by resolution.

Assigned — consists of internally imposed constraints. These constraints reflect the specific purpose
for which it is the City's intended use. These constraints are established by the City Council and/or
management. Pursuant to City Council Resolution, the City’s Treasurer is authorized to  establish
assignments of fund balance.

Unassigned — is the residual classification for the general fund and also reflects negative residual
amounts in other funds.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to first use
restricted resources, then use unrestricted resources as they are needed.

When committed, assigned or unassigned rescurces are available for use, it is the City's policy to use
resources in the following order; 1) committed 2) assigned and 3) unassigned.

Net position

Net position represents the difference between assets and liabilities. Met position is displayed in three
components,

a) Met investment in capital assets — consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
reduced by any outstanding debt attributable to acquire capital assets.

b} Restricted net position — consist of net position restricted when there are limitations imposed on
their use through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, laws or regulations of
other governments.

¢) Unrestricted net position — all other net position that do not meet the definition of "restricted” or
“net investment in capital assets”,

Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the amounts reported in the financial staterments and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ
from those estimates.



CITY OF WORTHINGTON, MINNESOTA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2017

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
D. Assets, liabilities, and net position or equity {Continued)
11. Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows/inflows of resources, and pension
expense, information about the fiduciary net pension of the Public Employees Retirement Association
{PERA) and additions to/deductions from PERA’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same
basis as they are reported by PERA except that PERA's fiscal year end is June 30. For this purpose, plan
contributions are recognized as of employer payroll dates and benefit payments and refunds are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair
value.

NOTE 2 - RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the government-wide
statement of net position

The governmental fund balance sheet includes reconciliation between fund balance-total governmental funds
and net position-governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of net position. One
element of that reconciliation explains that "long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and
payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds.” The details of the $11,499,158
difference are as follows:

Bonds payable 3 B,090.000
Pension liakility 3,161,710
Add:  Unamortized premiums 65,380
Less: Unamortized discounts {430)
Add:  Accrued interest payable 182 528

Met adjustment to reduce fund balance-total governmental
funds to arrive at net position-governmental activities 3 11,499,198

Another element of that reconciliation explains that “Internal service funds are used by management to charge
the costs of data processing and various safety promotions and insurance to individual funds. The assets and
liabilities of the internal service funds are included in governmental activities in the statement of net position.”
The details of this $981 627 difference are as follows;

Met position of the internal service fund 5 1,010,040
Less: Internal payable representing charges in excess of cost to
business-type activites-current year (28,413)

Net adjustment to increase fund balance-tatal governmental
funds to arrive at net position-governmental activities 5 581,627
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CITY OF WORTHINGTON, MINNESOTA

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2017

NOTE 2 - RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances and the government-wide statement of activities

The “net change in fund balances” for governmental funds differs from the “change in net position” for
governmental activities reported in the statement of activities. The differences arise primarily from the long-
term economic focus of the statement of activities versus the current financial resources focus of the
governmental funds.

Capital related items

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances includes
reconciliation between net changes in fund balances-total governmental funds and changes in net position of
governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of activities. One element of that
reconciliation explains that “Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as
depreciation expense.” The details of this $1,249,749 difference are as follows:

Capital outlay § 3827727
Less: Depreciation expense (2,577,978)

Met adjustment to increase net changes in fund balances-total governmental
funds to arrive at changes in net position of governmental activities. § 1,249.749

Another element of that reconciliation states that "The net effect of various miscellanecus transactions invelving

capital assets (i.e., sales and trade-ins) is to increase net position." The details of this 78,664 difference are
as follows:

The statement of activities, only the gain on the sale of capital asset is

reported. However, in the governmental funds, the proceeds from the

sale increase financial resources. Thus, the change in net position differs

from the change in fund balance by the cost of the capital asset sold. 3 28,819

The statement of activities reports gains(losses) arising from the trade-in

of existing capital assets to acquire new capital assets. Conversely,

governmental funds do not report any gain or loss on trade-in of

capital assets. {107, 483)

Net adjustment to decrease net changes in fund balances-total
governmental fund to arrive at changes in net position of governmental
activites, 5 (78.664)

52



CITY OF WORTHINGTON, MINNESOTA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2017

NOTE 2 - RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)

B. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances and the government-wide statement of activities {Continued)

Long-term debt transactions

Another element of that reconciliation states that “the issuance of long-term debt (i.e., bonds) provides current
financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the
current financial resources of governmental funds. Meither transaction, however, has any effect on net
position. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts. and similar items
when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities."
The details of this $1,190,000 difference are as follows:

Principal repayments:
General obilgation debts $ 1,190,000

Met adjustment to increase net changes in fund balances-total governmental
funds to arrive at changes in net position of governmental activities. $ 1,190,000

Another element of that reconciliation states that "Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not
require the use of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental
funds.” The details of this 5190,860 difference are as follows:

Compensated absences 3 {15,436)
Accrued interest payable (182,528)
Amortization of premiums 7143

Amortization of discounts (39)

Net adjustment to decreass net changes in fund balances-total governmental
funds to arrive at changes in net position of governmental activities. L {190,860)

NOTE 3 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY
A. Budgetary information

Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).  Annual
appropriated budgets are adopted by the City Council for the general and special revenue funds.

Budgetary control is maintained at the object category of expenditures within each activity (function). The level
of control {level at which expenditures may not exceed budget) is maintained at each individual fund, except for
the general fund. The general fund is reviewed at the department level (general government, public safety,
public works, culture and recreation, and conservation and development), however, the overall budget of the
general fund is the responsibility of the City Administrator. The City Administrator must obtain approval from
the City Council for all budget transfers and departmental overages.

The Council made several supplemental budgetary appropriations throughout the year. The general fund
received additional appropriations for expenditures of $67.710. These will be funded through existing reserves.
The recreation fund received an additional appropriation for expenditures of 529,844, This will be funded
through existing reserves,

Budgeted expenditure appropriations lapse at year-end unless a carryover of appropriations is completed and
approved by the City Administrator.
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CITY OF WORTHINGTON. MINNESOTA

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2017

NOTE 3 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY (Continued)
A, Budgetary information (Continued)

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for the general fund
and special revenue funds. Formal budgetary integration is not employed for debt service funds because
effective budgetary control is alternatively achieved through general obligation bond indenture provisions.

Budgetary control for capital projects is accomplished through the use of project controls. The City
Administrator submits to the City Council a proposed operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the
following January 1. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them.

Fublic hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments.

The budget is legally enacted through passage of a resolution. The City Council has given authority, through
passage of a resolution, to the City Administrator to authorize transfers of budgeted amounts between
departments within any fund. Each director may authorize budget transfers between object codes within a
department, so long as the total budget for the department remains the same,

The General fund operating budget includes an account for contingencies. The City Council may authorize, by
resolution, a budget transfer from this contingency account to an area that is expected to overspend their
budget.

Encumbrance accounting is employed in governmental funds. There were no encumbrances (e.g., purchase
arders, contracts) outstanding at year-end.

B. Excess of expenditures over appropriations

In the Memorial Auditorium Fund the culture and recreation department's actual expenditures exceeded
appropriations by $9,248. The overage was due to increased personnel hours not originally budgeted directly
related to movie ticket sales as well as purchases relating to the lighting system. Overages were covered by
additional revenues as well as use of reserves. In the WRH Fund the general government department's actual
expenditures exceeded appropriations by 556,145, The overage was due to unrealized losses on investments.
The excess expenditures were covered by surpluses in the interest earnings, other revenues and unrealized
gains on investments

C. Deficit fund equity

The capital projects funds CCSI Redevelopment, Hotel TIF #15 and Northland Mall TIF #16 had deficit fund
balances of $217.163, $284 472 and %46 221, respectively as of December 31, 2017. The CCSI
Redevelopment fund deficit is expected to be covered from future tax increments as residential lots are
developed. The Hotel TIF #15 fund deficit is expected to be covered from future tax increments as they
become collected. The Morthland Mall TIF #16 fund deficit is expected to be covered from future tax
increments and as commercial parcels are sold.
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CITY OF WORTHINGTOMN, MINNESOTA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2017

MOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

A. Deposits and investments

As of December 31, 2017, the government had the following investments:

Weighted Average
Investment Type Rating Fair Value Maturity (Years)
U.S. Agencies AAR $ 47830473 263
Certificates of deposit INFA, 2,764,105 0.34
Total fair value $ 50594578
Fortfolio weighted average maturity 2.51

Inferest rate risk. In accordance with the City’s investment policy, the City manages its exposure to declines in
fair values by limiting the weighted average maturity of its investment portfolio to less than nine months.

Craedit risk. Both the Minnesota Statutes and the City Council approve of the following investment instruments:

a. Direct or guaranteed U.S. Government obligations;

b. Interest bearing deposits and certificates of deposits

Custodial risk. The City does not presently have a custodial credit risk policy. All of the City's investments are

adequately collateralized according to State statutes.

Other investment instruments which are approved by the Minnesota Statutes and the City Council, but have not

been purchased by the City, follow:

a. General obligations of the State of Minnesota or Minnesota municipalities;

b. Commercial paper issued by United States corporations or their Canadian subsidiaries, of the highest

quality, and maturing in 270 days or less;

c. Repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements with banks that are members of the Federal Reserve
System with capitalization exceeding $10,000,000, a primary reporting dealer in U.S. government
securities to the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, or certain Minnesota securities broker-dealers;

d. Futures contracts sold under authority of Minnesota Statutes 471.56, subdivision 5;

e. Federal agency or instrumentality issues;

f.  Federally registered investment companies whose only investments are in direct or guaranteed U.S.

Government obligations andfar Federal agency ar instrumentality issues.



CITY OF WORTHINGTON, MINNESOTA

MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2017

NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS(Continued)
B. Receivables

Receivables as of year-end for the government's individual major funds and nonmajor, internal service and fiduciary
funds in aggregate are as follows:

small Cities FIR Series  Improvement Municipal
General Grant WRH Bonds Construction Water Wastewater
Receivables:
Interest b 9636 3 10174 & 26487 & 4207 F 12086 8 24057 & 33234
Taxes 13,636 - - 5,713 2,536 . .
Accounts 69,190 1,801 376 11,122 . B2d4 B.6685
Motes - 920,000 2,824 031 . - -
Utilities - - - - 371,449 232510
Special assessments 8,382 - - 1,884 538 - - -
Intergovernmental 2,324 368 - - - 605,080 - -
Total Receivables $ 2425212 %5 931975 5 2850834 5 1915580 § 619712 0§ 396330 § 272409
Industrial Monmajor
Wastewater and Other
Electric Facility Liquor Airport Funds Tofal
Receivables:
Interest T 43664 3 5259 § 4425 3§ 2388 % 23326 5 193943
Taxes - - - - 16,431 38,318
Accounts 70,820 133,540 a0 105,180 12, 542 412 876
Motes - - - - - 3,744,031
Utilities 1,866,751 - - - 75,917 2,546 627
Special assessments - - - - . 1,802 920
Intergovernmental - - - 76,379 141,745 3,147 582
Total Receivables $§ 198123 § 138799 § 523 § 1830957 § 269061 § 110891295




CITY OF WORTHINGTON, MINNESOTA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2017

NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS(Continued)

C. Capital assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2017 was as follows:

Governmental activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land
Fermanent easements
Waork in progress
Total capital assets not being
depreciated

Other capital assets:
Buildings and structures
Improvements
Machinery and equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Other capital assets
Infrastructure

Total other capital assets at

historical cost

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and structures
Improvements
Machinery and equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Other capital assets
Infrastructure

Total accumulated depreciation

Total ather capital assets, net

Governmental activities capital
assets, net

Primary Gavernment

Beginning Ending

Balance Increases Decreases Balance
3 3,904 314 $ 11,919 3 - 3 4,006,233
134,607 - - 134,607
8,802 592 2 886G 857 (3,186,534) 8,512,915
12,831,513 $ 2908776 $ (3,186,534) $ 12653755
s 21,020,899 + 21,9149 5 - & 21,042,818
2,044 532 1,301,742 - 3,346,274
5,029,888 851,545 (405, 956) 5475477
477,950 - (7,535) 470,415
308,958 - - 308,968
46 862,462 1,977,521 48,830 983
& 75744699 $ 4152727 o (413.491) $ 79483935
3§ (4,987,099) i {667,705) 3 - & (5,654 804)
{1,066,038) (58,749) - (1,124,785)
(3,427.610) {33[] 175) 280,049 (3.477.736)
(303,089) {32 563) 7,535 {328,117)
(194,783} {11.578) - {206,359)
{21,819,195) (1,485.828) - (23,305,023)
5 (31.,797.812) % (2586536)* § 287,584 B (34,096,824)
S 43,946 887 $ 1,566,131 F (125,907} § 45387111
$ 55,878,400 5 4474807 5 (3312441} S 58,040,866
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CITY OF WORTHINGTON, MINNESOTA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2017

NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

C. Capital assets (Continued)

Primary Government

Eeaginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Business-type activities.
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land 3 523,398 i1 - 3 - ] 523 358
Intangible assets 3,199,810 - - 3,199,810
Work in progress 4,716,612 2,748,147 {2,241,108) 5,221,651
Total capital assets not being
depreciated b 8,439,820 $ 2,746,147 $ (2,241.108) 5 8 944 B5S
Other capital assets:
Buildings and structures 3 29,510,581 b = 5 (12,100) § 29,498 451
Impravements 76,148,076 2872972 {198,280) 78,820,785
Machinery and equipment 4 544 T68 276,356 (148 328) 4,672,798
Furniture and fixtures 209,484 5,894 (28,724) 189,654
Total other capital assets at
historical cost £ 110,410 809 $ 3,158,222 % (387.412) S 113,181,719
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and structures $ (18,793678) ] (477,291) b 12,101 $ (19,258,8869)
Impravements 135,817 ,585) (2,163,343) 198,260 (37,782 668)
Machinery and equipment (3,476, 453) (235.810) 145,188 (3,567,075)
Furniture and fixtures (155,412) (4,970) 28,724 {131,658)
Total accumulated depreciatian £ (55,243.129) § (2881414 §% 384,273 & (B60,740.270)
Tatal other capital assats, net S 52187,780 5 276,808 b (3,138) S 52441 449
Business-type activities capital
assets, net $ 60607600 $ 3,022 955 § (2,244 247) $ 61,386,308
*Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows:
Governmental activities;
General government ¥ 50,130
Public safety 329,904
Public warks 77,048
Culture and recreation 512,906
Conservation and development 54,964
Projects 1,483,029

Depreciation on capital assets held by the City's internal

service funds is charged to the various functions based on their

usage of assets.
Total governmental activities depraciation expense

Business-type activities:
Water
Municipal wastewatear
Electric
Industrial wastewater
Storm water management
Liquor
Adrport
Total business-type activities depreciation expense

58
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8,617

e = _ehehiil)
2,586,558

665,429
371,276
925782
255,063

83,833

18,082
561.849

2,881,414



CITY OF WORTHINGTON, MINNESOTA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2017

MOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS({Continued)
D. Construction commitments

The government has active construction projects as of December 31, 2017, The projects include the sanitary
sewer lift station. At year end the City's commitments with contractors are as follows:

Remaining
Project Spent-to-Dale Commitment
High Service Pump Station B 792,011 s 1207689
Runway 11/29 & 18/36 Rehab 54 633 811,897
] 54,633 5 811,897

The high service pump station improvements are being funded with capital reserve financing. The airport
runway rehab is being funded through federal and state grants as well as capital reserve financing.

E. Interfund receivables, payables, and transfers
The composition of interfund balances as of December 31, 2017, is as follows:

Due to/from other funds:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount

General MNonmajor governmental fund B 29,831
General MNonmajor governmental fund 234,333
General MNenmajor governmental fund 48,221
General Liguor fund 912,760
WRH Monmajor governmental fund 318,540
Total F 1,541,684

The purpose of the $29,831 interfund receivable was to purchase film equipment for Memorial Auditorium,
which will be paid back over five years. The purpose of the 5234 333 interfund receivable is a result of a
redevelopment project. As tax increments are collected in the future, the general fund will be paid back the
amount transferred for the project costs. The purpose of the $46.221 interfund receivable was for professional
services relating to the tax increment district. As tax increments are collected in the future, the WRH fund will
be paid back the amount transferred for the professional fees. The purpose of the $812769 interfund
receivable was to purchase a building for the new liguor store, which will be paid back over ten years. The
purpose of the $318,540 interfund receivable was to provide tax increment financing funded internally for the
hotel portion of the Event Center, which is structured as a pay-as-you-go agreement and will be paid back over
a ten year period with tax increments collected.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2017

NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

E. Interfund receivables, payables, and transfers (Continued)
Interfund transfers at December 31, 2017 are as follows:
Transfers Transfers
In Out
General fund $ 1,113,878 % 43 412
WRH fund 21,706 -
Monmajor governmental funds 1,756,291 1,756,291
Water fund 10,853 -
Municipal wastewater fund 10,853 -
Electric fund 134,400 638,878
Liquor fund - 225,000
Nonmajor enterprise funds 1,500 135,900
Internal service funds - 250,000
0 304543 $ 3049481
During 2017 one non-routine transfer cccurred in the recreation fund ($1,200,000) for the construction of three
new soccer fields located at Buss Field.
F. Leases

QOperating leases
The City is a lessor in one operating lease for an airport terminal. The terminal has a cost of $213,333 and

accumulated depreciation of $166,103.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2017

NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)
G, Long-term debt

A summary of long-term debt obligations outstanding at December 31, 2017 is as follows:

Original
Amount Range of Final Balance
of Debt Interest Maturity 1203117
General Qbligation Bonds:
G0 PIR Series 2003C $ 2,710,000 2.00-4.15% 2025 $ 1,585,000
GO PIR Series 2010A 1,850,000 2.00-4.00% 2028 745,000
G0 PIR Series 2012A 2,580,000 1.00-2.25% 2028 1,520,000
G0 PIR Series 20164 3,150,000 2.00-2.50% 2033 3,160,000
General Obligation Sales Tax Revenue Bonds:
G0 Sgles Tax Revenus 20108 1,150,000 0.80-2.87% 2018 305,000
GO Sales Tax Revenue 20128 2,700,000 1.00-1.75% 2019 785,000
MNotes Payable
MCMU Series 20074 3,105,000 4 06% 2027 1,840,000
Pension liability 4 704 501
Compensated Absencas 720,363
Unamortized Premiums 85,390
Unamaortized Discounts (430)
Total Lang-term Dehbt § 15419824

General obligation bonds

The City issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of major capital
improvements, General obligation bonds have been issued for governmental activities. The original amount of
general obligation bonds issued in prior years was 510,320,000,

General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of the government. These
bonds generally are issued as 15-year serial bonds with maturing amounts generally increasing each year.

General obligation bonds currently outstanding are as follows:

FPurpose Interest Rates Amount
Governmental activities 1.28-3.53% 37,000,000
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NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)
G. Long-term debt (Continued)

zeneral obligation bonds (Continued)

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation bonds are as follows:

Year Ending
December 31 Principal Interest
2018 $ 700,000 $ 166,291
2018 800,000 149,597
2020 720,000 132,598
2021 525,000 116,557
2022 830,000 100,359
2023 625,000 83,448
2024 485,000 G7,097
2025 510,000 51,228
2026 285,000 30,562
2027 235,000 33612
2028-2032 1,155,000 82,832
2033 210,000 2,625
S 7,000,000 $ 1,035606

*This amount includes $4,524 434 of special assessment debt which provided the funds for construction of
streets in residential areas. These bonds will be repaid from amounts levied against the property owners
benefited by this construction. In the event that a deficiency exists because of unpaid or delinquent special
assessments at the time a debt service payment is due, the City must provide resources to cover the deficiency
until other resources, for example, foreclosure proceeds, are received. The amount of delinguent special
assessments at December 31, 2017 is 55,322,

General obligation sales tax revenue bonds

The City issues general abligation sales tax revenue bonds to provide funds for the remodel and construction of
major capital improvements for the memorial auditorium and event center. The original amount of general
obligation sales tax revenue bonds issued in prior years was 53,850,000, General obligation sales tax revenue
bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of the government.

General obligation revenue bonds currently outstanding are as follows:

Purpose Interest Rates Amount
Business-type activities 1.19-2.16% $1,090,000

Annual debt service reguirements to maturity for general obligation revenue bonds are as follows:

Year Ending

Cecember 31 Principal Interest

2018 3 540,000 $ 16,236

20149 550,000 5,680
3 1,090,000 5 21,918




CITY OF WORTHINGTON, MINNESOTA,

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2017

NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

G.

Long-term debt (Continued)

General chligation revenue notes

The City issues general obligation revenue notes where the government pledges income derived from charges
for services to pay debt service. Revenue notes have been issued for business-type activities. The original
amount of revenue notes issued was $3,105,000.

Purpose Interest Rates Amount
Business-type activities 4.06% $1,840,000

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation revenue notes are as follows:

Year Ending

December 31 Principal Interest
2018 3 165,000 3 86,676
2018 165,000 79,250
2020 170,000 71,356
2021 180,000 63,216
2022 190,000 54 614
2023 200,000 45 537
2024 210,000 35,991
2025 220,000 25,969
2026 230,000 15,478
2027 120,000 3,672

S 1,840,000 S 481,760

In May 2007, the City issued a $3,105,000 General Obligation Revenue Note, Series 2007A. The proceeds are
from a $50,000,000 Revenue Bond issued by the Midwest Consortium of Municipal Utilities originally issued in
2005, This note has been issued pursuant to and in full conformity with the Constitution and laws of the State
of Minnesota for the purpose of providing money to finance the City's share of the costs of construction and
installation of a water treatment plant (together with related work, improvements and equipment), that will be
located approximately three miles north of Vermillion, South Dakota, and that will serve as part of a multi-state
water system providing safe, reliable drinking water to the residents of the City and the surrounding area and is
payahle out of the debt service account of the water fund of the City, to which account have been pledged net
revenues of the City's municipal water utility system. This note and interest coming due thereon shall be
payable from the net revenues of the water utility system; however, the Series 2007A note shall not constitute a
lien on the property comprising the water utility system. If net revenues of the water utility system are
insufficient to provide for the obligations hereunder, this note shall constitute a general obligation of the City,
and to provide moneys for the prompt and full payment of said principal installments and interest when the
same become due, the full faith and credit and unlimited taxing powers of the City have been and are hereby
irrevocably pledged. The water fund has recorded a $1,840,000 liability for long-term debt ($155,000 current,
$1,685,000 non-current).
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NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)
G. Long-term debt (Continued)

Long-term liability activity for the year ended December 31, 2017 was as follows:

Amounts
Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
Bonds payable
General obligation debt
GO PIR Series 2009C $§ 1,760,000 & - § (1750000 & 1585000 & 180,000
GO PIR Series 20104 940,000 . {155,000) 745,000 200,000
GO PIR Series 2012A 1,810,000 . (290,000) 1,520,000 295,000
GO PIR Series 20164 3,150,000 - - 3,150,000 25,000
Sales Tax Revenue,
Series 20108 450,000 - (145,000} 305,000 150,000
Sales Tax Revenue,
Series 20128 1,170,000 - (385,000} 785,000 380,000
5 9280000 % - 5 (1,190,000) % B,080,000 & 1,240,000
Fremium 72,533 - {7,143} 65,290 7,143
Discount (469) - 38 (430) {39}
Total bonds payable $ 5352084 & - $ (1197104) § B,154,960 5 1.247.104
Other liabilities:
FPension liability;
GERF $ 2720720 $ 210355 § (986292) $ 1944783 § -
FEFPFF 6,661,869 102,410 (5,547,352} 1,216,927 -
Volunteer fire relief association 75,363 471,648 (547,011} - -
Compensated absences 691,037 661,854 (632 528) 720,363 31,772
Total other liahilities $ 10148989 $ 1446267 $ (7.713,183) § 3882073 § 31,772
Governmental activities long-
term liabilities $ 19,501,053 S 1446267 § (8910287) § 12037033 § 1278876
Amaunts
Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
Other liabilities:
MNote-MCMU Series 20074 $ 1,990,000 % 4 $ (150,000) % 1840000 % 165,000
Pension liability:
GERF 2,719,348 170,789 (1,347 356) 1,542 791 -
Business-type activities long-
term liabilities $ 4709348 5 170799 § (1497356 § 3382791 § 155000

The General Fund typically liquidates the liability related to compensated absences.

The General, Water, Municipal Wastewater, Electric and Liguor Funds typically liquidate the liability related to the
pension liability.
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NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued}

G. Long-term debt (Continued)

The City is subject to statutory limitation by the State of Minnesata for bonded indebtedness payable principally
from property taxes. As of December 31, 2017, the City had not utilized $20,849,409,

H. Fund Balance/MNet Position

At December 31, 2017, a summary of the governmental fund balance classifications are as follows:

CLASSIFICATIONS Small Cities FIR Seras Improvement
eneral Grant WRH Bonds Caonstruction Oiher Total
MWonspendable;
Prepaid itams 5 T6.440 $ =] 5 2270 3 23671 103,072
Inventory 31,900 - 5 - 31,900
Land hald for resale 252 065 - - - 262 065
Tatal nonspendable 5 380405 5 691§ 2270 % 2387 387,037
Restricted for;
Capital projects % 1,281 g . 5 5 3 1,281
Dbt service . 1,854 144 31,291 1,885,435
Buffalo Ridge - - 144 188 144 188
Taotal restricted k] 1,281 b 1,554 144 5 3 175478 2,130,504
Committed fo:
Equipment revalving 5 2780174 3 3 $§ 247639 3,027,813
Parking lot 21,000 - 21,000
Emargency disaster 200,000 - 200,000
Housing 103 560 415,033 - 518,593
Economic developmeant - - 3,280,983 - - 3,290,983
Capital projecis 45,380 31,451 76,831
Capital squipment 2,408,785 - 2,508,765
Technology 718,312 716,312
Housing devetoprment 1,640,247 1,640 347
Community development 1,950,580 - 1.950,580
Memorial auditarium - 13,955 13,955
Swimming pocl-capital 502 A24 802 G24
son Park 18,105 18,106
Py development - - - A5 862 £5,962
Total committad F 03,104,734 415,033 § 10154367 3 5 1178737 14 853 871
Assigned to:
Folice programs § 192174 5 . 5 - 5 - 192174
Capital projects 33,148 2,526,571 4,542 248 4 752 263 11,854 231
IInion Pagcific Railroad 12,000 " - - 12,000
Redevelopment 167,008 187,098
Lake improvement 326719 - 326,719
Event Center - 91,440 91,440
Education 4 601 : 4,601
Irmprovimaint revalving - - - 48,084 48,064
Total assigned $ 735741 F 2526571 4542248 5 4890787 12 695,347
Unassigned § 3834230 3 5 5 (346370) 3,567,860
Total Fund Balanca 5 B8,136.391 415,033 5 126805938 1,954 835 § 4544 518 5024304 33,656,019
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NOTE 4 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS {Continued)
H. Fund Balance/Met Position (Continuad)

At December 31, 2017, the City reported $2,130,904 of restricted fund balance on the governmental funds
balance sheet as follows;

Restricted for;
Capital projects g 1,281
Debt service 1,554 144
Buffalo Ridge 175,479
Total 5 2130504

Minimum Unassigned Fund Balance Policy

The City Council has formally adopted a fund balance police for the General Fund.
The policy establishes a year-end target of unassigned fund balance for cash flow timing needs in the range of
35-50% of the subsegquent years budget expenditures. At December 31, 2017, the unassigned fund
balance for the General Fund was 52% of the subseguent year's budgeted expenditures.

. Raestricted assets

The balances of the restricted asset accounts in the City's funds are as follows:

Customer deposits - Center for Active Living 3 825
Customer deposits - water 24,615
Customer deposits - municipal wastewater 28,030
Customer deposits - electric 133,715
Customer deposits - total S 186,085

NOTE 5 - OTHER INFORMATION
A. Risk management

The City established the insurance fund to account for losses related to torts; theft of, damage to, or destruction
of assets; errors or omissions; injuries to employees; or natural disaster. In 2008, the City raised its deductible
from 550,000 to $75,000. The insurance fund provides for losses up to $75,000 for each claim (annual
aggregate is $75,000 with an additional $1,000 per claim after the annual aggregate has been met}, The City
purchases commercial insurance coverage above the deductible through the League of Minnescta Cities
Insurance Trust with other cities in the State, a public entity risk pool currently operating as a commaon risk
management and insurance prograrm.

The League of Minnesota Cities Insurance Trust is self-sustaining through member premiums and re-insures
through commercial comparnies for excess claims. The City is covered through the pool for any claims incurred
but unreparted, but retains risk for the deductible portion of its insurance policies.

As of December 31, 2017, the City did not have any claims which were probable and measurable and therefore
no liahility is recorded in the financial statements presented. The City did not have claims which exceeded its
deductible during 2017, The following claims were actual amounts paid in each respective year, and represent
amounts which were less than the City's deductibles.

2017 2016 2015
Claims Paid i 8373 3 33,740 5 9,354
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NMOTE 5 - OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)
A, Risk management {Continued)

The City has an internal service fund called safety promotion/loss control. This fund was set up to account for
and finance the City's uninsured risk of loss. This risk of loss is as follows:

o The amount of the deductible.

o Specific property items, which are of low risk for damage, that are uninsured. (This property list is
included in the insurance manual).

o This fund will absorb the annual fluctuations in the cost of workers compensation.

o This fund is to be used to promote health, safety and fitness. Ten percent of insurance refunds, which
are receipted into this fund, are set aside to promote health and safety.

o This fund is to be used for purchases of security-type equipment for City buildings.

All funds of the City participate in this program and make a payment to the safety promotion/loss control fund
based on the amount of savings each fund incurred by the selection of the higher deductible amount.

Due to a couple high health insurance claim years, the City opted out of being partially self-funded and joined in
a State of Minnesota Health Insurance Plan known as Public Employees Insurance Program (PEIF). The City
renews on a calendar year basis, which allows for better timing when budgeting subseguent year's premium
changes. The City offers employees three plans, including a high-deductible plan, which results in lower
overall costs to the City. For 2017, the City had slight premium increases (3.1%) overall to all three plans.

B. Contingent liabilities

Commitments for capital projects
Commitments for current and future capital projects have been assigned in their respective funds as of
December 31, 2017. Financial resources are available to fund the total amount of unexpended authorizations.

Litigation

The City is, from time to time, involved in lawsuits arising in the ordinary course of its business that. in the
opinion of management, will not have a material effect on the City’'s results of operations. The City is not
currently invelved in any suits.

C. Joint ventures

Cable 3 television

The City and Independent School District (IS0} 518, Worthington, entered into a joint powers agreement for the
purpose of operating Worthington Cable 3 Television Public Access Channel. The City shall remit to the Board all
franchise fees and subscriber payments which are collected by two local cable companies pursuant to the
franchise agreement between the City and respective cable companies. The amount remitted approximates the
amount budgeted by the Board. and no material surplus or deficit exists or is anticipated. Audited financial
statements were not available for Cable 3 television for the year ending December 31, 2017. However, internal
statements were issued and reflected a positive financial position at year-end. There were no related party
transactions for the year.
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NOTE 5 - OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

C. Joint ventures {Continued)

Public transportation

The City and Nobles County entered into a joint powers agreement for purposes of jointly and cooperatively
operating, administering, promoting and managing public transportation within Nobles County, including the City
of Worthington. The governing body shall consist of two Council members and the Administrator of the City of
Worthington, and two Commissioners and the Administrator of Mobles County.  In addition, one additional  at-
large member will be appeinted by the aforesaid members. The City's financial contribution to the joint
powers board was 540,180 per year, which approximates the amount the City has subsidized the previous taxi
service in recent years. This contribution was used for operating costs. However, beginning in 2004, taxi fares
will replace the City's obligation. The City retains no equity position in the joint venture. There were no audited
financial statements available for the year ending December 31, 2017.

. Post-employment benefits

Several employee groups have signed up for the Health Care Savings Plan through the Minnesota State
Retirement Systemn.

The City allows employees to stay on its group health insurance after retirement until they reach Medicare age.
The retired employees are responsible for paying 100% of their premiums. The City had one retiree on its plan at
the end of 2017. However, the City's carrier indicated the retirees had no impact on the rate for renewal
Therefore the City does not have any post-employment liability recorded in the financials.

The following represent changes in aggregate liabilities for health insurance premiums:

Health insurance premiums 2017 2016 2015
Liability balance, beginning of year $ 3625 5 3,825 3 3,825
Health insurance premiums paid - - -
Liability balance, end of year $ 3625 $ 3625 ¥ 3.625

E. Fublic Employees Defined benefit pension plans-statewide

1. Plan description
The City participates in the following cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans
administered by the Public Employees Retirement Association of Minnesota (PERA). PERA's defined
benefit pension plans are established and administered in accordance with Minnesota Statutes, Chapters
353 and 356. PERA's defined benefit pension plans are tax qualified plans under Section 401{a) of the
Internal Revenue Code.

A, General Employees Retirement Plan (General Employees Plan{accounted for in the General
Employees Fund})
All full-time and certain part-time employees of the City of Worthington are covered by the General
Employees Plan. General Employees Plan members belong to either the Coordinated Plan or the
Basic Plan. Coordinated Plan members are covered by Social Security and Basic Plan members are
not. The Basic Plan was closed to new members in 1967, All new members must participate in the
Coordinated Plan.

E. Fublic Employees Police and Fire Plan (Pclice and Fire Plan{accounted for in the Police and Fire
Fund))
The Police and Fire Plan, originally established for police officers and firefighters not covered by a
local relief association, now covers all police officers and firefighters hired since 1980, Effective July
1, 1989, the Police and Fire Plan also covers police officers and firefighters belonging to local relief
associations that elected to merge with and transfer assets and administration to PERA.
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E. Public Employees Defined benefit pension plans-statewide (Continued)

1

Plan description (Continued)

Benefits provided
PERA provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Benefit provisions are established by state
statute and can only be modified by the state Legislature.

Benefit increases are provided to benefit recipients each January. Increases are related to the funding
ratio of the plan. Members in plans that are at least 90 percent funded for two consecutive years are
given 2.5 percent increases. Members in plans that have not exceeded 90 percent funded, or have fallen
below 80 percent, are given one percent increases.

The benefit provisions stated in the following paragraphs of this section are current provisions and apply
to active plan participants. Vested, terminated employees who are entitled to benefits but are not
receiving them yet are bound by the provisions in effect at the time they last terminated their public
service.

A, General Employees Plan Benefits

General Employees Plan benefits are based on a member's highest average salary for any five
successive years of allowable service, age, and years of credit at termination of service. Two
methods are used to compute benefits for PERA's Coordinated and Basic Plan members. The
retiring member receives the higher of a step-rate benefit accrual formula (Method 1) or a level
accrual formula (Method 2). Under Method 1. the annuity accrual rate for a Basic Plan member is 2.2
percent of average salary for each of the first ten years of service and 2.7 percent for each remaining
year. The annuity accrual rate for a Coordinated Plan member is 1.2 percent of average salary for
gach of the first ten years and 1.7 percent for each remaining year. Under Method 2, the annuity
accrual rate is 2.7 percent of average salary for Basic Plan members and 1.7 percent for Coordinated
Plan members for each year of service. For members hired prior to July 1, 1889, a full annuity is
available when age plus years of service equal 90 and normal retirement age is 85, For members
hired on or after July 1, 1989, normal retirement age is the age for unreduced Social Security benefits
capped at 66.

B. Police and Fire Plan Benefits

Benefits for Police and Fire Plan members first hired after June 30, 2010 but before July 1, 2014 vest
on a prorated basis from 50 percent after five years up to 100 percent after ten years of credited
service. Benefits for Police and Fire Plan members first hired after June 30, 2014 vest on a prorated
basis from 50 percent after ten years up to 100 percent after twenty years of credited service. The
annuity accrual rate is 3 percent of average salary for each year of service. For Police and Fire Plan
members whao were first hired prior to July 1, 1989 a full annuity is available when age plus years of
service equal at least 50,

Contributions

Minnesota Statutes Chapter 353 sets the rates for employer and employee contributions. Contribution
rates can only be modified by the state Legislature.

A, General Employees Fund Contributions
Basic Plan members and Coordinated Plan members were required to contribute 9.1 percent and
6.5 percent, respectively, of their annual covered salary in 2017. The City was required to
contribute 11.78 percent of pay for Basic Plan members and 7.5 percent for Coordinated Plan
members in calendar year 2017. The City's contributions to the General Employees Fund for the
year ended December 31, 2017 were $323,530. The City's contributions were equal to the
required contributions as set by state statute.
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2. Contributions (Continued)

B. Police and Fire Fund Contributions
Plan members were required to contribute 10.8 percent of their annual covered salary in calendar
year 2017. The City was required to contribute 16.2 percent of pay for members in calendar year
2017. The City's contributions to the Police and Fire Fund for the year ended December 31, 2017,
were $273,284. The City's contributions were equal to the required contribution as set by state
statute,

3. Pension costs

A. General Employees Fund Pension Costs

At December 31, 2017, the City reported a liability of $3,487 574 for its proportionate share of the
General Employees Fund's net pension liability. The City's net pension liability reflected a
reduction due to the State of Minnesota's contribution of 38 million to the fund of 2017. The State
of Minnesota is considered a non-employer contributing entity and the state's contribution meets
the definition of a special funding situation. The State of Minnesota's proportionate share of the net
pension liability associated with the City totaled $3487,574. The net pension liability was
measured as of June 30, 2017 and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension
liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The City's proportion of the net
pension liability was based on the City's contributions received by PERA during the measurement
period for employer payroll dates from July 1, 2016, through June 30, 2017 relative to the total
employer contributions received from all of PERA's participating employers. At June 30, 2017 the
City's proportion was 0.0670 percent which was a decrease of 0.0006 percent from its proportion
measured as of June 30, 2016,

For the year ended December 31, 2017, the City recognized pension expense of $657,080 for its
proportionate share of the General Employees Plan's pension expense. In addition, the City
recognized an additional 51,807 as pension expense (and grant revenue) for its proportionate
share of the State of Minnesota's contribution of $6 million to the General Employees Fund.

At December 31, 2017, the City reported its proportionate share of the General Employees Plan's
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the
following sources;

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual economic experience $ - $ 129,884
Changes in actuarial assumptions 266,600 -
Differences between projected and actual investment earnings 4,166 -
Changes in proportion 140,061 101,277
Contributions paid to PERA subsequent to the measurement date 160,891 -
Totals 3 571,718  § 231,161

$160,891 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the City's
contributions subseguent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net
pension liability in the year ended December 31, 2018. Other amounts reported as deferred
outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as
follows:
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3. Pension costs (Continued)

Year Ended Pension
December 31: Expense Amount
2018 i 133,347
2019 277,552
2020 (43,839)
2021 (187,794)
Thereafter -
Total $ 179,666

A Police and Fire Fund Pension Costs

At December 31, 2017, the City reported a liability of $1,216,927 for its proportionate share of the
Police and Fire Fund's net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30,
2017, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an
actuarial valuation as of that date. The City's proportion of the net pension liability was based on
the City's contributions received by PERA during the measurement period for employer payroll paid
dates from July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2017 relative to the total employer contributions received
from all of PERA's participating employers. At June 30, 2017, the City's proportion was 0.1660
percent which was an increase of 0.006 percent from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2016.
The City also recognized $15,030 for the year ended December 31, 2017 as revenue and an
offsetting reduction of net pension liability for its propertionate share of the State of Minnesota's on-
behalf contributions to the Police and Fire Fund. Legislation was passed in 2013 required the State
of Minnesota to begin contribution $9 million to the Police and Fire Fund each year, starting in fiscal
year 2014.

For the year ended December 31, 2017, the City recognized pension expense of $760,891 for its
proportionate share of the Police and Fire Plan's pension expense.

At December 31, 2017, the City reported its proportionate share of the Police and Fire Plan's
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the
following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual economic experience $ : $ 540,627
Changes in actuarial assumptions 2,933,053 3,201,113
Differences between projected and actual investment eamings 20,556 -
Changes in proprtion 33,443 13,852
Contributions paid to PERA subsequent to the measurement date 140,804 -
Totals 3 312795 % 3,755,692
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3. Pension costs (Continued);
%140,904 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the City's
confributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net

pension liability in the year ended December 31, 2018. Other amounts reported as deferred
outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as

follows:
Year Ended Pension
December 31; Expense Amount
2018 B 31,668
20189 31,667
2020 (47 521)
2021 (161,298)
2022 (623,156)
Thereafter =
Total $ (768,640)

4. Actuarial assumptions
The total pension liability in the June 30, 2017, actuarial valuation was determined using the following
actuarial assumptions:

Inflation 2.50% per year
Active Member Payroll Growth 3.268% per year
Investment Rate of Return 7.50%

Salary increases were based on a service-related table. Mortality rates for active members, retirees,
survivors and disabilitants were based on RP 2014 tables for all plans for males or females, as
appropriate, with slight adjustments to fit PERA's experience. Cost of living benefit increases for retirees
are assumed to be one percent per year for the General Employees Plan through 2044 and Police and
Fire Plan through 2064 and then 2.5 percent thereafter for both plans.

Actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2017 valuation were based on the results of actuarial
experience studies, The most recent four-year experience study in the General Employees Plan was
completed in 2015. The most recent five-year experience study for Police and Fire Plan was completed in
20186,

There following changes in actuarial assumptions occurred in 2017:

General Employees Fund
= The Combined Service Annuity (CSA) loads were changed from 0.8 percent for active members
and 60 percent for vested and non-vested deferred members. The revised CSA loads are now
0.0 percent for active member liability, 15.0 percent for vested deferred member liability and 3.0
percent for non-vested deferred member liability.
s The assumed post-retirernent benefit increase rate was changed from 1.0 percent per year for all
years to 1.0 percent per year through 2044 and 2.5% per year thereafter.
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4,

Actuarial assumptions {Continued)

Police and Fire Fund

Assumed salary increases were changed as recommended in the June 30, 2016 experience
study. The net effect is proposed rates that average 0.34 percent lower than the previous rates.
Assumed rates of retirement were changed, resulting in fewer retirements.

The Combined Service Annuity (CSA) load was 30 percent for vested and non-vested deferred
members. The CSA has been changed to 33 percent for vested and non-vested deferred
members.

The base mortality table for healthy annuitants was changed from the RP-2000 fully generational
table to the RP-2014 fully generational table (with a base year of 2008), with male rates adjusted
by a factor of 0.96. The mortality improvement scale was changed from Scale AA to Scale MP-
2016. The base mortality table for disabled annuitants was changed from the RP-2000 disabled
mortality table to the mortality tables assumed for healthy retirees,

Assumed termination rates were decreased to 3.0 percent for the first three years of service.
Rates beyond the select perind of three years were adjusted, resulting in more expected
terminations overall.

Assumed percentage of married female members was decreased from &5 percent to 60 percent.
Assumed age difference was changed from separate assumptions for male members {wives
assumed to be three years younger) and female members (husbands assumed to be four years
older) to the assumption that males are two years clder than females.

The assumed percentage of female members electing Joint Survivor annuities was increased.
Assumed post-retirement benefit increase rate was changed from 1.0 percent for all years to 1.0
percent per year through 2084 and 2.5 percent thereafter.

The State Board of Investment, which manages the investments of PERA, prepares an analysis of the

reasonableness on a regular basis of the long-term expected rate of return using a building-block method
in which best-estimate ranges of expected future rates of return are developed for each major asset class.
These ranges are combhined to produce an expected long-term rate of return by weighting the expected
future rates of return by the target asset allocation percentages. The target allocation and best estimates
of geometric real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Long-term

Asseat Target Expected Real

Class Allocation Rate of Return
Domestic Stocks 39.00% 5.10%
International Stocks 18.00% 5.30%
Bonds 20.00% 7.50%
Alternative Assets 20.00% 5.90%
Cash 2.00% 0.00%

100.00%
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E. Public Employees Defined benefit pension plans-statewide (Continued)

5.

B.

Discount rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability in 2017 was 7.50%. The projection of cash
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members and employers
will be made at rates set in Minnesota Statutes. Based on these assumptions, the fiduciary net positions
of the General Employees Fund and the Police and Fire Fund was projected to be available to make all
projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of

return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine
the total pension liability,

Pension liability sensitivity

The following presents the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability for all plans it participates
in, calculated using the discount rate disclosed in the preceding paragraph, as well as what the City's
propartionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate one
percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the current discount rate:

Sensitivity of Net Pension Liability at Current Single Discount Rate (in thousands)

General Employees Fund Police and Fire Fund
1% Lower 6.50% 59,901,956 | 6.50% 52,542 668
Current Discount Rate 7.50% 5,383934 | 7.50% 1,350,119
1% Higher 8.50% 3,503,794 | B8.50% 365,604

Pension plan fiduciary net position

Detailed information about each pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in a separately-issued
PERA financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. That
report may be abtained on the Internet at www. mnpera.org.

F. Defined benefit pension plans-volunteer fire relief association

Flan description

All members of the City of Worthington Fire Department are covered by a defined benefit plan administered by the
City of Worthington Fire Department Relief Association (the Association). As of December 31, 2017, the plan
covered 37 active firefighters, 12 retired participants and 2 vested terminated fire fighters whose pension benefits
are deferred. The plan is a single employer retirement plan and is established and administered in accordance
with Minnesota statute, chapter 9.

The Association maintains a separate Special Fund to accumulate assets to fund the retirement benefits earned
by the Department's membership. Funding for the Association is derived from an insurance premium tax in
accordance with the Volunteer Firefighter's Relief Association Financing Guidelines Act of 1971 (chapter 261 as
amended by chapter 509 of Minnesota statutes 1980). Funds are alse derived from investment income.
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F. Defined benefit pension plans-volunteer fire relief association (Continued)

Benefits provided

A fire fighter who completes at least 20 years as an active member of the Department is entitled, after age 50, to
a full service pension upon retirement.

The bylaws of the Association also provide for an early vested service pension for a retiring member who has
completed fewer than 20 years of service. The reduced pension, available to members with 10 years of service,
shall be equal to 60 percent of the pension as prescribed by the bylaws. This percentage increases 4 percent per
year so that at 20 years of service, the full amount prescribed is paid. Members who retire with less than 20 years
of service and have reached the age of 50 years and have completed at least 10 years of active membership are

entitled to a reduced service pension not to exceed the amount calculated by multiplying the member's service
pension for the completed years of service times the applicable non-forfeitable percentage of pension.

Contributions

Minnesota statutes, chapter 424 and 424A authorize pension benefits for volunteer fire relief associations. The
plan is funded by fire state aid, investment earnings and, if necessary, employer contributions as specified in
Minnesota statutes and valuntary City contributions (if applicable). The State of Minnesota contributed $70,095 in
fire state aid to the plan on behalf of the Department for the year ended December 31, 2017, which was recorded
as a revenue. Required employer contributions are calculated annually based on statutory provisions. The City's
statutorily-required contributions to the plan for the year ended December 31, 2017 were 57,740. The City's
contrioutions were equal to the required contributions as set by state statute. The City made no voluntary
contributions to the plan. Furthermare, the firefighter has no obligation to contribute to the plan.

Pension costs

At December 31, 2017 the City reported a net pension liability (asset) of ($7,230) for the plan. The net pension
liability {asset) was measured as of December 31, 2017. The total pension liability used to calculate the net
pension liability (asset) in accordance with GASB 68 was determined by Nyhart, applying an actuarial formula to
specific census data certified by the Department as of December 31, 2017,
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F. Defined benefit pension plans-volunteer fire relief association
Pension costs (Continued)

The following table presents the changes in net pension liability (asset) during the year.

Total Flan MNet
Pension Fiduciary Pension
Liability MNet Pension Liability (Asset)
(a) (b} (a-b)
Beginning balance January 1, 2017 5 1,226,091 s 1,150,728 $ 75,363
Changes for the year
Service cost $ 40,709 3 - 3 40,709
Interest on pension liability (asset) 56,846 2 56,848
Changes if benefit terms 22,390 - 22,3490
Differences between expected and
actual experience 57,501 - 57,501
Change of assumptions (1,135) - (1,135)
Benefit payments, including
refunds of member contributions {259,774) (258,774) -
Contributions {employer) - 2,698 (2,698)
Contributions (State) - 70,085 {70,095)
Net investment income - 202,698 (202,698)
Administrative costs - (16,587) 16,587
Total net changes B {83463) § 870) 3% (82,593)
Ending balance December 31, 2017 § 1,142,628 $ 1,149,858 5 (7,230)

For the year ended December 31, 2017 the City recognized pension revenue of $70,095 and pension expense of
562 928

At December 31, 2017, the City reported deferred inflows of resources and deferred outflows of resources, its
contributions subsequent to the measurement date, related to pension from the following sources:

Ceferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows
of Resources of Resources
Differences between expected and
actual experience % 51,112 3 47,109
Changes of assumptions 25,910 1,009
Met difference between projected and
actual earnings on plan investments 37,523 153,285
Total F 114,545 3 201,403
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F. Defined benefit pension plans-volunteer fire relief association (Continued)

Pension costs (Continued)

Deferred outflows of resources totaling $114,545 related to pensions resulting from the City’s differences between
expected and actual experience will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended
December 31, 2018, Deferred inflows of resources totaling $201,403 related to the net difference between
projected and actual earnings on pension plan investments will be recognized for its impact on the net pension
liability in the year ended December 31, 2018. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of
resources related to the plan will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year Ended FPension

December 31: Expense Amount
2018 $ (21,156)

2019 (21,157)

2020 (39,918)

2021 (28,8581)

2022 1,161
Thereafter 23,103
Total % (B6,858)

Actuarial assumptions

The total pension liability at December 31, 2017 was determined using the entry age normal actuarial cost method
and the following actuarial assumptions:

Retirement eligibility at 100 percent service pension at age 50 with 20 years of service, early vested
retirement at age 50 with 10 years of service vested at 60 percent and increased by 4 percent for each
additional year of service up to 20 and eligibility for deferred service pension payable at age 50 with 20 years of

senvice.
Salary increases M
Cost of living increases IS
Investrment rate of return 5.00%
20 year municipal bond yield MNIA

The mortality table used to measure liability has been changed from using a fully generational improvement scale
based on assumptions from the 2016 Social Security Trustees Report to using a fully generational improvement
scale based on assumptions from the 2017 Social Security Trustees Report. The mortality table (RP-2014 Blue
Collar) and the year in which improvements begin (2008) remains the same. This results in a decrease in liability
and normal cost. The lump sum and monthly benefits have been updated to 52,864 and $347 as of January 1,
2017, There have been no other changes to the plan provisions since the last valuation. This results in an
increase in liability and normal cost.

The 5.0% long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block
method in which best estimates for expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of inflation) were
developed for each asset class using the plan’s target investment allocation along with long-

term return expectations by asset class. Inflation expectations were applied to derive the nominal rate of return
for the portfolio.

The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are
summarized in the following table:
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F. Defined benefit pension plans-volunteer fire relief association

Actuarial assumptions (Continued)

Long-term
Target Expected Real
Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return
Domestic Equity 35.00% 5.27%
International Equity 20.00% 5.17%
Domestic Fixed Income 10.00% 0.00%
Alternative Investment 10.00% 2.735%
Cash 25.00% 0.00%

100.00%

Discount rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 5.0%. The projection of cash flows used to
determine the discount rate assumed that plan member contributions will be made at the current contribution rate
and that contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined contribution
rates and the member rate. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected
to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefare, the long-term
expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all pericds of projected benefit payments to
determine the total pension liability,

Pension liability sensitivity

The following presents the net pension liability, calculated using the discount rate of 5.0%, as well as what the net
pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower or 1
percentage point higher than the current rate;

1% Decrease 1% Increase
in Discount Rate Discount Rate in Discount Rate
4.0% 5.0% 6.0%
Net pension liability $ 46533 § (7.230) % (58.577)

G. Public Employees Defined Contribution Plan

The mayor and five council members of the City of Worthington are covered by the Defined Contribution Plan,
a multiple-employer deferred compensation plan administered by PERA. The Defined Contribution Plan is a
tax qualified plan under Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code and all contributions by or on behalf of
employees are tax deferred until time of withdrawal.

Plan benefits depend solely on amounts contributed to the plan plus investment earnings, less administrative
expenses. Minnesola Sfalutes, Chapter 353D.03, specifies plan provisions, including the employee and
employer contribution rates for those qualified personnel who elect to participate.  An eligible elected official
who decides to participate contributes 5 percent of salary which is matched by the elected official's employer.
Employer and employee contributions are combined and used to purchase shares in one or more of the
seven accounts of the Minnesota Supplemental Investment Fund. For administering the plan, PERA receives
2 percent of employer contributions and twenty-five hundredths of 1 percent (0.0025) of the assets in each
member's account annually.
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G. Public Employees Defined Contribution Plan {Continued)

Total contributions made by the City of Worthington during fiscal year 2017 were:

Contribution Amount Percentage of Covered Payroll Required
Employees Employer Employees Employer Rate
52,444 $2,444 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%

H. Tax Abatement

The City has entered into five Tax Increment Financing agreements which meet the criteria for disclosure under
Govemmental Accounting Standards Board Staterment No. 77 Tax Abatement Disclosures. The City's authority to
enter into these agreements comes from Minnesota Statute 469. The City entered into these agreements for the
purpose of economic development.

Under each agreement, the City and developer agree on an amount of development costs to be reimbursed to the
developer by the City through tax revenues from the additional taxable value of the property generated by the
development (tax abatement). A “pay-as-you-go" note is established for this amount, on which the City makes
payments for a fixed period of time with available tax increment revenue after deducting for certain administrative
costs,

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the City generated $181,912 in tax increment revenue and made
5140154 in payments to developers.

All but one agreement exceeded ten percent of the total tax increment generated throughout the year.

s TIF District Mo. 11 was established in 2005 for the purpose of administration and site preparation costs
for a twenty-four unit apartment complex. Under the agreement, up to $539,600 of development costs
will be reimbursed through tax increment over a 25 year period. During the year ended December 31,
2017, the City generated $20,266 of tax increment revenue and made payments on the pay-as-you-go
note of $9,752. The note’s balance at year end was $210,918.

s TIF District No. 12 was established in 2006 for the purpose of administration and site preparation costs
for a twenty-one lot single family housing development. Under the agreement, up to 51,100,000 of
development costs will be reimbursed through tax increment over a 25 year period. During the year
ended December 31, 2017, the City generated $33,295 of tax increment revenue and made payments on
the pay-as-you-go note of 520,483, The note's balance at year end was 5234,333.

s« TIF District No. 13 was established in 2008 for the purpose of administration and infrastructure
improvements to accommodate the entity’s facility. Under the agreement, up to $481,000 of development
costs will be reimbursed through tax increment over an 8 year pericd. During the year ended December
31, 2017, the City generated $25,425 of tax increment revenue and made payments on the pay-as-you-
go note of $3,239. The note's balance at year end was $152,938.

s TIF District No. 14 was established in 2010 for the purpose of constructing a 30 townhome housing
project. Under the agreement, up to 3600,496 of development costs will be reimbursed through tax
increment over a 25 year period. During the year ended December 31, 2017, the City generated $21,072
of tax increment revenue and made payments on the pay-as-you-go note of $18,037. The note's balance
at year end was $481,479.

s TIF District No. 15 was established in 2012 for the purpose of constructing a 76 unit hotel. Under the
agreement, up to $609,438 of development costs will be reimbursed through tax increment over an 8 year
period. During the year ended December 31, 2017, the City generated $81,854 of tax increment revenue

and made payments on the pay-as-you-go note of 365515 The note's balance at year end was
3318,540.
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H. Tax Abatement (Continued})

The City also entered into a tax abatement agreement with Nobles County and Independent School District (I1SD)
#518, through a program initiated by the Nobles Home Initiative, under Minnesota State Statute 469.1813
Subdivision 8. The program is intended to encourage the construction on new owner occupied and rental
residential housing units. Eligible projects are eligible to receive 100% tax abatement of the City’s share of the
increased real estate taxes resulting from the newly constructed housing unit, for a period of five years. During
2017, taxes abated for thirteen eligible projects within the City corporate limits was $3,849. The County and 15D
#518 abated $6,750 and 32,861, respectively, for the eligible projects.

The City has several abatement agreements established under Minnesota State Statute 469.1812 as follows:

A Tax Abatement agreement was awarded by the City Council on December 14, 2009, The abatement is
for eligible expenditures related to the redevelopment of 607 Tenth Street and was awarded in
compliance with the guidelines of the City's Tax Abatement Guidelines. The abatement is for 513,500 or
10 years, whichever occurs first. As of December 31, 2017, the entity has been given/awarded $6,771, of
which $989 was abated in 2017,

A Tax Abatement agreement was awarded by the City Counml on May 24, 2010. The abatement is for
eligible expenditures related to the redevelopment of 511 10" Street and was awarded in compliance with
the guidelines of the City's Tax Abatement Guidelines. The abatement is for 380,000 or 15 years,
whichever occurs first. As of December 31, 2017, the entity has been given/awarded $6,917, of which
5791 was abated in 2017.
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CITY OF WORHTINGTON, MINNESOTA

SCHEDULE OF CITY CONTRIBUTIONS

FPUBLIC EMPLOYEES GEMERAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT FUND
LAST TEN YEARS®

Contributions
in Relation to

Required Supplemeantary Information

Exhibit A-1

Statutorily the Statutorily Contribution Contributions as a
Required Required Deficiency Covered Percentage of
Contributions Contributions {Excess) Payroll** Coverad Payroll
Fiscal Year Ending {a) {b) {a-b) {d) {bid)
December 31, 2015 3 302 420 1 302,420 - 4,032 258 7.50%
December 31, 2016 330,039 330,039 - 4,400,521 7.50%
December 31, 2017 323,530 323,530 - 4,313,735 7.50%

* This schedule is presented prospectively beginning with the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015
**For purposes of this schedule, covered payroll is defined as "pensionable wages."
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Exhibit A-2
SCHEDULE OF CITY'S PROPORTIOMATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY
PUBLIC EMPLOYEES GENERAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT FUND
LAST TEM YEARS*
Required Supplementary Information
Employer's
Proportionate
Employer's Employer's Share of the Net
Propartion Proportionate Pension Liability Plan Fiduciary
{Percentage) of Share {Amount) Employer’s (Asset) as a Met Position as
the Net of the Net Covered Percentage of its a Percentage of
Pension Pension Liability Payrol|** Covered Payroll the Total
Fiscal Year EndinL Liability (Asset) (Asset) (a) [{1]] (alb) Pension Liability
June 30, 2015 0.0676% 5 3,503,383 b3 3,975,365 88.13% 78.2%
June 30, 2016 0.06870% 5 440 088 4,155,119 130.92% 68.9%
June 30, 2017 0.0693% 4 424 066 4,400 521 100.54% 75.9%

* This schedule is provided prospectively beginning with the fiscal year ended December 21, 2015
**For purposes of this schedule, covered payroll is defined as "pensionable wages.”
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SCHEDULE OF CITY CONTRIBUTIONS

PUBLIC EMFPLOYEES POLICE AND FIRE RETIREMENT FUND
LAST TEM YEARS*

Contributions

Required Supplementary Information

Exhibit A-3

in Relation to
Statutorily the Statutorily Contribution Contributions as a
Required Required Deficiency Covered Percentage of
Contributions Contributions {Excess) Payroll** Covered Payroll

Fiscal Year Ending (a) (b) (a-b) (d) (bid)
December 31, 2015 & 252712 3 282712 - 1,559,847 16.20%
December 31, 2018 275,933 275,933 - 1,703,280 16.20%
December 31, 2017 273,295 273,295 - 1,687 005 16.20%

* This schedule is presented prospectively beginning with the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015,
“*For purposes of this schedule, covered payroll is defined as "pensionable wages."



CITY OF WORHTINGTON. MINNESOTA

Exhibit A-4
SCHEDULE OF CITY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY
PUBLIC EMPLOYEES POLICE AND FIRE RETIREMENT FUND
LAST TEN YEARS"
Required Supplementary Information
Employer's
FProportionate
Employer's Employer's Share of the Net
Proportion Proportionate Pension Liability Plan Fiduciary
{Percentage) of Share (Amount) Employer's (Asset) as a Met Position as
the Net of the Net Covered Percentage of its a Percentage of
Pension Pension Liability Payroll™ Covered Payroll the Total
Fiscal Year Ending Liability (Asset) (Asset) (a) {b) (afb) Pension Liability
June 30, 2015 0.160% 3 1,817,974 $ 1,466,563 123.96% 86.6%
June 30, 2018 0.166% 6,661,888 1,508,535 416.75% 63.9%
June 30, 2017 0.167% 2,254,699 1,703,280 132.37% 85.4%

* This schedule is provided prospectively beginning with the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015,
**For purposes of this schedule, covered payroll is defined as "pensionable wages."
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CITY OF WORHTINGTON, MINNESOTA

Exhibit A-5
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION ASSET AND RELATED RATIO
FIRE RELIEF ASSOCIATION
LAST TEN YEARS*
Required Supplementary Information
2017 2016 2015
Total Pension Liability
Service Cost 3 40,709 3 40,709 $ 43,045
Interest 56,846 58,681 62,200
Changes in benefit terms 22,390 - 11,452
Differences between expected and actual experience 57,501 - (75, 375)
Changes in assumptions (1,135) 34 548 -
Benefit Payments (259,774) (81,5186) (137,221)
Net Change in Total Pension Liability $ (83.463) % 52,422 $ (95,899)
Total Pension Liability - Beginning of Year 1,226,091 1,173,669 1,269 568
Total Pension Liability - End of Year $ 1,142,628 $ 1,226,091 5 1,173,669
Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Contributions-Employer 3 2,698 % 5.817 3 19,890
Contributions-Nonemployer Contributing Member 70,095 66,101 68,654
Net Investment Income 220,539 107,910 (36,971)
Benefit Payments (259,774) (81,516) {137,221)
Administrative Expenses (34,428) (15,577) (14,910)
Met Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position : (870) 3 82735 $ (100,558)
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning of Year 1,150,728 1,067,993 1,168,551
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - End of Year $ 1149858 $§ 1,150,728 $ 1,067,993
Met Pension Liability (Asset) - End of Year 3 (7.230) % 75,363 $ 105,676
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage
of the Total Pension Liability 100.63% 93.85% 891.00%
Covered Employee Payroll N/A N/A NIA
Net Pension Liability as a Percentage
of Covered Payroll N/A N/A N/A

* This schedule is presented prospectively beginning with the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015
(using a December 31, 2017 measurement date).
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CITY OF WORHTINGTON, MINNESOTA

Exhibit A-G
SCHEDULE OF CITY CONTRIBUTIONS
FIRE RELIEF ASSOCIATION
LAST TEN YEARS®
Reaquired Supplementary Information
2017 2018 2015 2014 2013 2012
Actuarially Determined Contribution $§ oGboooe § oBoBE 0§ VEZB3E F 72638 0§ B1B1E §  B1,816
Contrioutions in Relation of the
Actuarially Determined Contribution 72,783 71,918 88,544 20,19 - -
Contribution Deficiency{Excess) § (4088 § (32200 § (15808 § (17653) $ B1BIE § B1818
Covered - Employes Payroll A MNIA, MNfA, MAA, MIA IR
Contributions as a Percantage of
Covered Employee Payroll MIA M/A, MIA MIA MiA MIA

Motes fo Schedula

Valuation date;
Actuarilly determined contribution rates are calculated as of December 31, 2017,

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:

Actuarial cost method Entry age cost mathod

Amodization method Leveal dollar amount on a closed basis

Remaining amorization period 17 years

Assel valuation method Market Value

Inflaticn 2.5%

Salary inceases Mot applicakle

Irvestment rate of return 5.0%

Retirement age Members are assumed to retire at the later of age 50 and 20 years of service
Mortality Based on the RP-2014 Blue Collar Mortality Table

* This schedule is provided prospectively beginning with the fiscal year endad December 31, 2012,
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally
restricted to expend for specified purposes.

Memorial Auditorium Fund
Established to account for the operation of the City's Memorial Auditorium.

PD Task Force Fund
Established to account for revenues and expenditures for law enforcement funds available through
judgments and seizure sales.

Sales Tax Revenue Fund

Established to account for sales, use and excise tax revenues and transfers to capital project related to the
sales tax referendum projects. These projects include the addition/remodeling of the Memorial Auditorium
and the construction of an Event Center,

Event Center Fund
Established to account for the operations and maintenance of the City's Event Center. Financing is
provided by rental fees.

Recreation Fund

Established to account for the operations and maintenance of the City's recreational facilities programs
including: all city owned parks, playgrounds, swimming pool and skating rinks. Financing is provided by
general property taxes and user charges.

Economic Development Authority Fund
Established to account for the operations and maintenance of the City's Industrial Park. Financing is
provided by general property taxes.

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

The debt service funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the
payment of general long-term debt principal and interest.

The following debt service funds are presently established:

General Obligation Tax Increment Revenue:
Series 2003B District #10

Other Bonds:
General Obligation Sales Tax Revenue:
Series 2010B
Series 2012B



NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (Continued)

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Capital projects funds are created to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or
construction of major capital facilities other than those financed by proprietary and special assessments.

Municipal Buildings Fund
This fund accounts for the improvement and maintenance of City buildings.

Prairie View Limited Fund

This fund accounts for construction costs relating to the development of 24 rental units of low and
moderate income housing.

Tl Dist #7, Redevelopment, Amendment 5 Fund

This fund accounts for street, storm sewer and water main improvements and site preparation costs
within Darling’s Third Tax Increment District.

Prairie Expo Improvement Fund
This fund accounts for infrastructure improvements for the Prairie Expo site.

C&J Housing Project Fund

This fund accounts for site preparation costs for a 25 unit assisted living senior citizen housing
complex,

Okabena Estates Fund
This fund accounts for administration and site preparation costs for a 24 unit apartment complex.

CCSl Redevelopment Fund

This fund accounts for administration and site preparation for a 21 lot single family housing
development.

Bedford Technologies Project Fund

This fund accounts for administration and infrastructure improvements to accommodate the
company’s 27" Street facility.

Newcastle Townhomes Fund
This fund accounts for the activity related to the construction of a 30 Townhome housing project.

Aquatic Center Facility Fund
This fund accounts for the activity related to the construction of a new aquatic center facility.

Hotel TIF #15 Fund
This fund accounts for the activity related to the Hotel Tax Increment Financing District.

Morthland Mall TIF #16 Fund

This fund accounts for the activity related to the redevelopment of the former Northland Mall site and
development of a mixed-use project in the City.
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Capial Projocis

EXHIBIT B-1
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CITY OF WORTHMNGTOM, MAMESITA

ROMMAJCR GOVERNMENTAL FLNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHARGES IN FUND BALAMCES

Far the Year Erded Oecamiaer 31 2017
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CITY OF WORTHINGTOMN, MINMESOTA,

MEMORIAL AUDITORIUM FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENLUIES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHAMNGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

EXHIBIT B-3

Wariance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Positive
Original Final Actual (MNegative)
REVEMUES
Taxes 5 113,478 & 113,479 113870 &% 181
Intergovernmental revenues
State grants H - 14 14
Charges for services 41,500 41,500 48,881 7,381
Miscellaneous revenue
Investment earnings 150 150 615 465
Other - - 194 194
TOTAL REVENUES ] 166,128 5 155,129 163,374 3 8245
EXFEMDITURES
Culture and recreation
Personnel services 5 52,391 3 52391 58,651 5 (6,260)
Supplies 7,700 7,700 11,458 (3,758)
Other services and charges 86,705 86,705 B5,935 770
TOTAL EXPENDITURES % 146,796 % 146,796 156,044 3 {9,248)
EXCESS(DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
(UNMDER) EXFENDITURES b} 8,333 5 8,333 7,330 5 (1,003)
FUND BALANCE, January 1 40,086 40,086 40,088 -
FUND BALANCE, December 31 i) 48 419 5 48,419 47 416 5 1,003)




CITY OF WORTHINGTON, MINNESOTA

PD TASK FORCE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXFENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Faor the Year Ended December 31, 2017

REVENUES
Intergovernmental revenues
Federal grants
Charges for services
Public safety
Fines and forfzits
Miscellaneous
Investment earnings
Other revenue

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENMDITURES
Fublic safety
Supplies
Other services and charges
Capital outlay

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EACESS{DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER}) EXPENDITURES

FUND BALAMCE, January 1

FUMD BALANCE, December 31

EXHIBIT B-4

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Positive
Original Final Actual (Megative)
200,000 200,000 200,000
135,000 133,000 139,146 4,148
15,000 15,000 1,374 {13,628)
1,500 1,500 1,875 375
15,000 15,000 4,168 {10,832)
366,500 366,500 346,563 (19,937
27,524 27,524 11,787 15,737
326,500 326,500 324,075 2425
12,500 12,500 12,500 -
366,524 366,524 348 362 18,162
(24) (24) (1,799) {1775)
147,037 147,037 147,037
147,013 147,013 145,238 {1,775)




REVENUES
Sales tax revenue
Miscellaneous
Investment earnings

TOTAL REVENUES

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
EXFPEMDITURES

OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfer-out

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING USES
Met changes in fund balances
FUND BALAMCE, January 1

FUND BALANCE, December 31

CITY OF WORTHINGTON, MINNESOTA

SALES TAX REVEMNUE
SCHEDULE OF REVENLUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHAMNGES IN FUND BALAMNCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

EXHIBIT B-5

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Positive
Original Final Actual {Megative)

$ 770000 0§ F70.000 § 1547517 § 777517

5,500 5,500 9,461 3,961

3 775500 % 775500 § 1556978 § 781,478
3 . § B - $

§ 775500 & 775500 § 1556878 3§ 781.478

$ (6bG092) §  (556,092) § (1,756.291)

$ (1,200199)

% (556,092) $ (55B8,082) § (1,756,291} § (1,200,199

3 219408 $ 219408 § (199,313) 3 (418721
1,759,288 1,759,288 1,759,288

§ 10978B96 § 10978BB96 % 1559975 § (418721)
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CITY OF WORTHINGTON, MINNESOTA
EXHIBIT B-6
EVENT CENTER FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVEMNUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALAMNCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Yariance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Positive
Original Final Actual iMNegative)
REVENUES
Charges for services
Culture and recreation b 25000 % 25000 3 23487 % (1,513
Miscellaneous
Investment earnings 300 300 783 483
TOTAL REVENUES : 25300 % 25300 3 24 250 % (1.050)
EXPENDITURES
Culture and recreaticn
Supplies 5 - 3 - ¥ 437 5 (437)
Other services and charges 17,050 17,050 7874 §.176
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 5 17.080 5 17,050 5 8,311 5 8,738
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
EXPENDITURES 5 8250 % B.250 5 15933 § 7,689
FUND BALANCE, January 1 76,304 76.304 76,304 -
FUND BALANCE, December 31 5 B4.554 s 84,554 b 92,243 ] 7,683
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CITY OF WORTHINGTON, MINNESOTA

RECREATICN FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPEMNDITURES AND
CHAMGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

REVENUES
General property taxes
Intergovernmental revenuas
State grants
Local government grants
Charges for services
Culture and recreation
Miscellaneous
Investment earnings
Other revenue

TOTAL REVENUES

EXFEMDITURES

Culture and recreation
Personnel services
Supplies
Other services and charges
Capital outlay

Conservation and development
Persannel services
Supplies
Other services and chargas

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS(DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

Sale of fixed assets

Transfer-in
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Met changes in fund balances

FLIND BALANCE, January 1

FUND BALANCE, December 31

EXHIBIT B-7

ariance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Pasitive
Original Final Actual (Megative)

3 916,269 % 916,369 918,700 % 233
- = 110 110

- - 50,000 50,000

78,600 78,600 79,100 500

2,000 2,000 2,187 187

3,700 3,700 14,175 10,475

$ 10008689 § 1000669

1064272 § 63,603

5 421137 3 421,137
110,700 110,700
226,510 226,510

1,228,400 1,228,400
75,223 75,223
14,250 14,250
17,925 17,925

427 547 5 {5,410)

114,341 {3,641)
227 951 {1,441)
204 270 1,024 130
B2,412 (7.189)
10,453 3,797
11,346 6,579

§ 2094145 5 2,094,145

1,078,320 5 1015825

§ (1.093476) § (1.093476)

(14,048) 3 1079428

] - b -
25,000 25,000

S4008 § 54,096
1,200,000 1,175,000

§ 25000 3 25,000

1254098 § 1,229,096

5 (1.068476) § (1,068476)

(BB7.,619) (687,619)

1,240,048 5 2308524

(687,619)

§ (1,756,008) & (1,756,085)

552,429 3 2,308,524
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REVENUES
General property taxes
Miscellaneous
Investment eamings
Other revenue

TOTAL REVENUES
EXPEMDITURES
Conservation & development
Personnel services
Supplies
Other services and charges

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
EXPENDITURES

FUND BALAMCE, January 1

FUND BALANCE, December 31

CITY OF WORTHINGTON, MINNESOTA

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Faor the Year Ended December 31, 2017

EXHIBIT B-8

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Positive
Criginal Final Actual {Negative)

5 131,770 131,770 123,374 & (8,396)
1,500 1,500 2,533 1,033

67,550 67,550 82,947 15,387

¥ 200,820 200,820 208,854 § B,034
s 6,346 6,346 6430 % (84)
1.200 1,200 528 672

186,274 186,274 171,022 15,252

b 193,820 183,820 177,280 3 15,840
$ 2 5 nar4 s 23,874

287,219 287,219 287219
5 287218 287,219 318,093 ¥ 23,874
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NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

The enterprise funds are established to account for operations financed and
operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises. The intent is that
costs of providing the goods or services to the general public on a continuing
basis are financed or recovered primarily through user charges or where the City
has decided that periodic determination of net income is appropriate for
accountability purposes.

Storm Water Management Fund
This fund was established to account for the operations of the storm drains and
storm lift stations.

Street Lighting Fund
This fund was established to account for the operations of the municipal street
lighting.

Cable Television Fund
This fund was established to account for the franchise fees, subscriber fees
and legal negotiations with the local cable television companies.







TWtingtin



CITY OF WORTHINGTON, MINNESOTA

EXHIBIT C-1
MONMAJOR ENTERFRISE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
December 31, 2017
Taotal
Nonmajor
Storm Water Street Cable Enterprise
Management Lighting Television Funds
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1575733 $ 87,538 $ 1,254 $ 1,664,525
Investments 308 542 17,141 246 325,929
Receivables
Utilities receivable 50,824 25,093 75,917
Interest receivable 4978 447 - 5425
Contracts receivable - - 23136 23,136
Other current assets
FPrepayments 1,695 - - 1,695
Total current assets $ 1.941772 5 130,219 S 24638 3 2,086,627
Moncurrent assets
Capital assets
Land & work in progress 5 531,892 $ - 3 - 3 531,892
Buildings & improvements 2,105,135 - - 2,105,135
Equipment & furniture 375,697 - 375,697
Less accumulated depreciation (728,744) - - (728,744)
MNet capital assets 5 2,283,880 % - 3 $ 2,283,980
TOTAL ASSETS 3 4225752 B 130,218 ¥ 24836 $ 4,380,607
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable $ 5,513 3 7.904 5 23136 B 37,553
Contracts and retainage payable 463 - - 463
Accrued payroll 275 - - 275
Total current liabilities B 7.2571 3 7,904 $ 23136 3 38,291
TOTAL LIABILITIES ¥ 7,251 3 7.904 3 23136 ] 38,291
MET POSITION
Met investment in capital assets 5 2283517 3 - 3 - 3 2283517
Restricted for;
Capital projects 85,358 - - 85,358
Unrestricted 1,839,626 122,315 1,500 1,963,441
TOTAL NET POSITION $ 4,218,501 3 122,315 b 1.500 5 4,342 316
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CITY OF WORTHINGTON, MINNESOTA

EXHIBIT C-2
NONMAJOR ENTERFRISE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017
Total
Storm Monmajor
Water Street Cable Enterprise
Management Lighting Television Funds

OPERATING REVENUES

Utility sales revenues 3 592605 3 285245 ] - 3 B877.850

Charges for services - - 131,680 131,680
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES $ 592,605 3 285245 $ 131,680 $ 1,009,530
OPERATING EXPENSES

Personnel services $ 92,721 3 - 3 - 3 82,721

Supplies and materials 36,563 - - 36,563

Other services and charges 60,939 B4 648 131,680 277,267

Depreciation 83,833 - - 83,833
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES $ 274056 % 84648 $ 1318680 & 490,384
OFERATING INCOME 5 318549 % 200597 % - 3 519,148
NON-OPERATING REVENUE

Investment earnings 3 15,061 3 1,302 i - ] 16,363

Rents - 4,500 = 4,500
TOTAL NON-OPERATING REVENUE 3 15,061 3 5,802 5 - 3 20,863
NET INCOME BEFORE OPERATING

TRANSFERS $ 333810 & 208399 & - 3 540,009

Capital contributions-capital assets 172,527 - - 172,527
Transfers-in - 1,500 - 1,500
Transfers-out (1,500) (134,400) 2 (135,900)
CHANGE IN NET POSITION $ 504,637 3 73,499 3 - 5 578,136
TOTAL NET POSITICN, January 1 3,713,864 48 816 1,500 3,764 180
TOTAL NET POSITION, December 31 5 4,218,501 $ 122 315 5 1,500 b 4,342 316
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CITY OF WORTHINGTON, MINNESOTA

EXHIBIT C-3
NOMNMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017
Total
Monmajor
Storm Water Street Cable Enterprise
Management Lighting Television Funds
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from customers $ 590944 § 284744 3 131653 % 1.007.341
Cash payments to suppliers for
goods and services (152,263) (88,124) (131,653) (373,040)
Cash payments to employees for services (92,891) - - (92,891)
Other non-operating revenue - 4,500 - 4,500
MET CASH FROVIDED BY OFPERATING
ACTIVITIES F 345780 3 200,120 5 - F 545910
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Transfer-in 3 - 5 1,500 % - 5 1,500
Transfer-out (1,500} (134,400) - {135,900)
MET CASH USED BY NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 1] (1,500 § (1329000 3 = 3 (134 .400)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINAMNCING ACTIVITIES
Federal grant revenue received S 308089 & - 3 $ 308,089
Acquisition and construction of
capital assets {290,738) - - {290,738)
NET CASH FROVIDED FOR CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES b 17,351 3 = 5 = 3 17,351
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest income b 12958 % 1058 % - $ 14,017
Furchase of investments (298,862) {20,815) (173) {319.850)
Proceeds from sales of investments 63489 5438 - 58,927
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES $ (222415) 3 (14,318) % (173) § (236,908)
MET INCREASE(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS 5 139226 § 52902 8§ (173) % 191955
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, January 1 1,436,507 34 536 1,427 1,472,570
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, December 31 $ 1575733 5 BT 538 3 1,254 b 1.664.525
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CITY OF WORTHINGTON, MINNESOTA

EXHIBIT C-3

{Continued)
NOMMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017
Total
Monmajor
Storm Water Street Cable Enterprise
Management Lighting Television Funds
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME
TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Operating income $ 318549 § 200587 & - 3 519,146
ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE OPERATING
INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Depreciation 83,833 - - 83,833
Other non-operating revenue - 4,500 - 4 500
{Increase)decrease in assets:
Accounts receivable - - - -
Utility receivable {1,661) {501} - {2,162}
Contracts receivable - - (27) (27)
Frepaid expense 274 - 274
Increaseldecrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable (55,035) (4,478) 27 (59,484)
Payroll payable (170) - - {170)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING
ACTIVITIES $ 345790 5 200120 5 - 5 5459810

NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Loss on disposal of capital assets 3 - 5 - $
Capital contributions-capital assets - - -
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

The internal service funds are used to account for financing of goods and
services provided by one department to other departments of the governmental
unit on a cost-reimbursement basis.

These funds are as follows:

Data Processing Fund

Safety Promotion/Loss Control Fund
Vacation and Sick Accrual Fund
Health Insurance Plan Fund






City of
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CITY OF WORTHINGTON, MINNESOTA,

EXHIBIT D-1
INTERMAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
December 31, 217
Safety Wacation Health
Data Fromotion! and Sick Insurance Total Internal
Processing Loss Control Accrual Flan Service Funds
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash azsets
Cash and cash equivalents i 108,839 i 677,706 b3 G02 407 i 9,499 F 1.458.551
Investments 21,527 132,701 117,956 13,608 285,782
Intarast receivable 363 2231 - - 2 598
Prepaymeanis 9818 - - - 9,618
Total current assats % 141,449 3 B12 838 % 720,383 b 83,107 % 1,757 557
Mancurrent assels
Capital assets
Machinery & equipment z 59,695 5 - 5 - 5 - ] 50,685
Furniture & fixtures 30,226 - - - 28,236
Less accumulated depreciation (77.377) - = - (73T
Met capital assets g 21,544 & - 5 . ] - 5 21,544
TOTAL ASSETS ] 162,983 5 B12 636 i 720,363 b 83,107 b 1,779,1M
Deferred Outlows of Resources
Related to pensions § 33746 - 8 - $ - $ 33,746
LIABILITIES
Currant liabilities
Accounts payable 5 1,284 S - $ - ] - -3 1,284
Accruad payroll 3,345 - - - b= 2,348
Total current liabilities 5 4832 % - $ - 5 - 5 4632
Moncurrent liabilities
Accrued vacation and sick pay 1 - b - S 720,363 b - 3 720.383
Pension liability 44 06§ - - - 44 085
Total ather liakilites 5 44 065 b £ 3 720,383 b - 3 TG4 425
TOTAL LIABILITIES § 48,698 b = 3 720,383 b = 3 V65,081
Deferred inflows of resources
Felated to pensions -] 27,878 & - § N ] - b 27875
MET POSITION
Met investment in capital asssts b 21,544 % - i - 5 - i 21,544
Resftricted far:
Capital projects 31.245 - - . 31,245
Unrastricted B7.377 812,638 - 83107 853 122
TOTAL NET POSITION § 120166 § B12 628 b 5 5 83,107 § 10155811
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CITY OF WORTHINGTON, MINNESOTA

EXHIBIT D-2
INTERMAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBIMNING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
For the Year Endad Dacember 31, 2017
Safety Vacation Heazlth
Data Fromotion/ and Sick Insurance Total Intermal
Processing Loss Contral Accrual Plan Service Funds
OPERATING REVENUES
Chargas for services-internal $ 249 505 i 315,338 3 - 3 - % 564 924
Other oparating revenues - 1,727 - - 1,727
TOTAL OPERATING REVEMNUES 3 248586 % 3MT08e5 0§ - 5 - 5 566.651
OPERATING EXFPENSES
Parsonnel servicas ¥ 187,878 3§ - ) - B - 3 187.878
Supples and materials 7648 - - - 7546
Other services and charges 20,296 23,821 - - 44 117
Depraciation 8518 - - - BE18
TOTAL OPERATING EXPEMNSES 5 224,438 % 23,621 % - % - b 248 259
QOPERATING INCOME 3 25148 % 203,244 § - S - ] 318,382
NON-OPERATING REVENUE
Investment eamings § 1,208 % 7434 0§ - 5 19 5 8,651
Other non-operating ag - - - 39
TOTAL NON-OPERATING REVENLUE 5 1,247 & 7434 % = ] 19 5 B, 700
NET INCOME BEFORE TRANSFERS i1 26,395 3 00678 % - 5 19 & 327 092
Transfers-out L {250,000 - - [250,000)
CHANGE IN NET POSITION s 26,385 % b0E7T8 5 - £ 12 % 77,082
TOTAL NET POSITION, January 1 893,771 761,860 - 83,088 933,819
TOTAL NET POSITION, Dacember 31 $ 120,166 & 8126838 § - 5 B30T 1,015,811
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CITY OF WORTHINGTOM, MINNESOTA

EXHIBIT ©-3
INTERMAL SERVICE FUNDE
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017
Safaty Vacation Heaith
Daa Promation/ and Sick Insurance Totzl Intarnal
Proceszing Le=s Contral Accrual Plan Servica Funds
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from customers $ 249586 % 3T06F 0§ 29326 3 505977
Cash paymenis {o suppliars
far qoads and servicas (23, 274) {38,356) - - {68,130}
Cash paymeanis 10 employees for senvices (203,992} - - - (203, 992)
Other non-gperating revenue 39 - 38
MET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING
ACTIVITIES 3 17,359 0§ 277209 &8 29328 - 5 323,204
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAFITAL FINSNCING — _  _____ — —
ACTMVITIES
Transfer-out 3 - 5 (2800000 % - - 5 {250,000)
MET CASH USED BY NONCAPITAL
FINAMCING ACTIVITIES k3 - 5 (280000 % - 3 (250,000}
CASH FLOWS FROM CAFITAL AND RELATED -
FIMNAMCING ACTIVITIES
Acquizition and constructicn of
capital assets 5 § 5 - i -
MET CASH USED BY CAPITAL AND RELATED )
FINANCING ACTIVITIES B - 5 § - 5 -
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest incomea k3 1.063 8§ G532 % - 19 5 T.E14
Purchase of investments (21.078) (126463} (54 464) (9.581) {241 5B86)
Proceeds from sales of invesimants 5,030 31.405 - - a5 ,435
MET CASH USED INVESTING ACTIVITIES § (14085, § (BESZE) § (A4 4B4) {9.562) & (197,537}
WET INCREASEIDECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH o
EQUINWVALENTS 5 23T %  (B1317 8§ (55,13d) {9,562} % (123643}
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, January t 107,565 730,023 657,045 78,081 1,563,194
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, December 31 5 109.93% §  &77.706 5 602407 65499  F 1459551
RECOMCILIATION OF GPERATING INCOME TO
MET CASH PROVIDED BY CPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income % 25145 8 293244 % - 5 318,392
ADJUSTMENTS TC RECONCILE OPERATING
INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY
CPERATING ACTIVITIES
Depreciation aGa - = 8,818
Cther non-aperating revenue 38 - - 34
{Increase) in assats:
Accounts receivable . (16,035) - (18,035)
Prapald expenses (493) - - 2 (45}
Decrease in deferred outflows of resources.
Deferred putflows related o pansions 5906 8,806
Increase{decraase) in liabilities:
Accounts payable 166 = - - 166
Payraoll payable 137 - - - 137
Pension payable (48, 168) - - (45 16%)
Accrued vacation and sick - 29,326 - 28,326
Increase in defarred inflows of resources:
Deferred inficws related to pensions 230z = - - 23z
MET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING
ACTIVITIES 5 17,358 %  27r208 0§ 2930 S 323894
HOMCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Los= on dizgposal of capital assets 3 3 = 3 > % -

Capital contributions-capital asseis
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AGENCY FUNDS

Agency funds are used to account for assets held by the government as an
agent for individuals, private organizations, or other governments, and/or other
funds.

Agency Funds presently established are as follows:
QOlson Water Fund
Retirees Health Insurance Fund
Garbage Collection Fund
Bicentennial Fund
Waste Management Collection Fund
Salstrom Bequest Fund
Tourism Promotion Fund
Economic Revolving Loan Fund
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CITY OF WORTHINGTON, MINNESOTA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
AGENCY FUNDS
December 31, 2017

Retirees
Qlson Health Garbage
Water Insurance Callection

ASSETS
Cash assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 67462 % 3,031 12,416

Investments 13,210 594 2,431
Receivables

LItility receivable - - 108,815

Interest receivable - -

Accounts receivable - - -

Economic revolving receivable - 2 -

Economic revolving receivable L-T - - -
TOTAL ASSETS 3 80,672 3 3,625 123,662
LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 3 - 3 - 83.706

Health insurance premium payable - 3,625 -

Due to other governments - - 6.634

Sureties/deposits - - 15,360

Amounts held for others 80,672 - 17,972
TOTAL LIABILITIES B 80,672 3 3,625 123,662
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EXHIBIT E-1

Waste
Bicen- Manage- Salstrom Tourism Economic

tennial ment Bequest Promaotion Revolving Totals
7.429 6,159 10,462 9475 & 914778 3 1,031,212
1,454 1,206 2.049 1,855 179,121 201,820
% i = - - 108,814
24 - 33 - 2,880 2,837
- - - 9,059 - 9,059
. . . " 39,473 39,473
” " . £ 154,293 154,293
8,907 7,365 12,544 20,389 $ 1,290,545 $ 1,547,709
7,190 - 20,389 & - $ 111285
- - - - - 3,625
- = = K S G 634
- - - - 15,350
8,807 176 12,544 - 1,290,545 1,410,815
8,907 7.365 12,544 20389 5 1,290,545 ¥ 1,547,709

111



CITY OF WORTHINGTOM, MINNESOTA

EXHIBIT E-2
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AGENCY FUNDS
Far the Year Ended December 31, 2017
Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,
2017 Additions Deductions 2017
OLSON WATER
Assels
Cash and cash equivalents 5 81999 8§ - 5 14537 5 67,462
Investments 4177 0,033 - 13,210
Total assets ¥ 86176 § 9033 § 14537 % 80,672
Liabilities
Amounts held for others 5 B6.176 % 14496 5 20,000 20,672
Total liabilities H 86,176 5 14,496 5 20,000 ] 80672
RETIREES HEALTH INSURANCE
Assels
Cash and cash equivalents 3 3449 % - 3 418 % 3,031
Investments 176 418 - 594
Total azsets 5 3625 % 418 & 418 § 3,825
Liabilities
Health insurance premium payable % 36258 % - 5 - kS 3,625
Total liabilities 3 3,625 b i S - 3 3625
GARBAGE COLLECTION FUND
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3 8,500 3 1,104 364 S 1,100,848 & 12416
Investments 453 23513 21,535 2431
Utility receivable 106,895 1,118,729 1,116,804 108,815
Total assets $  116.248 $ 2245606 § 2239192 5 123,662
Liabilities
Accounts payable § B20B6 § OBVATOD § DE6,230 83,706
Due to other governments 6,505 79,079 78,950 6,634
Sureties/deposits 16,295 5,255 6,200 15,350
Amounts held for others 11,382 1,047,381 1,040,791 17,972
Total liabilities 116,248 $ 2,119,585 $ 2112171 123,662
BICENTEMMIAL FUMD
bssets
Cash and cash equivalents 5 B3B8 3 - o 956 % 7,425
Investments 427 1.027 - 1,454
Interest receivable 16 8 - 24
Tolal assets 5 5828 % 1,035 § 956 % 8,907
Liabilities
Amounts held for others 5 G828 3 7 8 - S 8907
Total liabilites $ gga28 % i - b 8907
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CITY OF WORTHINGTOM, MINNESOTA

EXHIBIT E-2

WASTE MANAGEMENT COLLECTION

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Utility receivable

Total assets

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Amounts held for others

Total liabilities

SALSTROM BEQUEST
Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Interest receivable

Total assets

Liakilities
Amounts held for others

Total liabilities

TOURISM PROMOTION
Assels
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable

Total assets

Liahilities
Accounts payable
Amounts held for others

{Continuead)
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHAMGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AGENCY FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017
Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,
2017 Additions Deductions 2017
% 7,020 20,962 ] 81,823 3 6,159
357 5,395 4 547 1,206
- 88,358 86,358 -
5 7,377 172,716 $ 172,728 ] 7,365
& 7.202 85358 % 88370 % 7,190
1758 86,358 86,358 175
§ 77T 172,716 § 172,728 ¥.385
3 11,808 - B 1,346 10,462
a2 1,447 - 2,049
23 10 - 33
3 12,433 1,457 ] 1,346 12.544
s 12 433 111 g - ] 12,544
5 12,433 111 ] - b 12 544
5 11,120 168,708 $ 160,353 ] 9475
566 6,925 5.636 1,855
B.677 5,085 8,703 9,059
5 20,363 174718 F 174,692 20,389
% 20,263 174,280 % 174,254 20,389
- 165,968 165,988 -
5 20,3683 340,268 F 340242 20,3859

Tatal liahilities




CITY OF WORTHINGTON, MINNESOTA

ECONOMIC REVOLYING LOAN
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Interest receivable
Accounts receivable
Economic revolving receivable
Ecocnomic revolving receivable L-T

Total assets

Liabilities
Amounts held for others

Total liabilities

TOTAL ALL AGENCY FUNDS
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
LItility receivable
Interest receivable
Accounts recaivable
Economic revolving receivable
Economic revolving receivable L-T

Total assets

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Health insurance pramium payable
Due to other governments
Sureties/deposits
Amounts held for athers

EXHIBIT E-2

(Continuad)
COMBIMING STATEMEMNT OF CHANGES IM ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AGENCY FUNMDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017
Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,
2017 Additions Deductions 2017
$ 8B2098 S5 5.683 73.011 5 914,778
50,023 156,922 27,824 179,121
1,803 a77 - 2,880
6,120 37,8449 44 0BG -
54 B27 47610 62,564 39473
230,834 - 78,541 154,253
& 1,325,803 B 249151 284,409 B 1,280,545
$ 1325803 5§ 15,098 50,356 5 1,290,545
$ 1325803 % 15,098 50,356 1,290,545
§ 1114777 5 1,349,727 1,433,292 5 1,031,212
56,781 204 681 58,542 201,920
106,895 1,205,087 1,203,167 108,815
1.942 995 - 2,937
14,797 47 034 52,772 9.059
54,827 47 810 62,964 39,473
230,834 - 76,541 154,203
% 1,580 853 $ 2,855,134 2.888 278 1,547,709
s 109,63 5 1,248,508 1,245,854 B 111,285
3,625 - - 3,625
6,505 79,079 78,950 6,634
16,295 5,255 G.200 15,350
1,444 797 1,329,511 1,363,493 1,410,815
% 1680853 § 26622353 2,895 497 1,547 704

Total liakilities
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STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the City of Worthington's comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed
information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements and
note disclosures say about the city's overall financial health.

Financial Trends

These schedules contain trend information fo help the reader understand how the city’s
financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

Table | — Net Position by Component

Table Il — Changes in Net Position

Table Il = Fund Balances — Governmental Funds

Table IV — Changes in Fund Balances — Governmental Funds
Table V — Program Revenues by Function/Program

Table VI — General Governmental Tax Revenues by Source

Revenue Capacity

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the city’s most significant
local revenue source, the property tax.

Table VIl - Assessed Value and Estimated Value of Taxable Property
Table VIl — Property Tax Rates — Direct and Overlapping Governments
Table IX — Principal Property Taxpayers

Table X — Property Tax Levies and Collections

Debt Capacity

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the
govermnment's current levels of outstanding debt and the city’s ability to issue additional
debt in the future.

Table Xl — Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type

Table Xl — Ratios of Net General Bonded Debt Outstanding
Table XIIl — Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt
Table XIV — Legal Debt Margin Information

Table XV - Pledged Revenue Coverage



STATISTICAL SECTION (Continued)

Demographic and Economic Information

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand
the environment within which the city's financial activities take place.

Table XVI — Demographic and Economic Statistics
Table XVII - Principal Employers

Operating Information

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand
how the information in the city's financial report relates to the services the city provides
and the activities it performs.

Table XVIII - Full-time Equivalent City Government Employees by Function
Table XIX — Operating Indicators by Function/Program
Table XX — Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive annual financial
reparts for the relevant year.






CITY OF WORTHINGTON, MINNESOTA

NET POSITION BY COMPONENT

LAST TEN YEARS
(Accrual basis of accounting)
(Unaudited)
Fiscal Year
2017 2016 2015 2014
Governmental activities
Met investment in capital assets $ 50860906 5 48666336 § 48492325 § 46,864,381
Restricted 1,011,718 837,812 499 512 1,755,879
Unrestricted 31168137 28,621 645 28,700,040 33,810,768
Total governmental activities
net position 83040759 § 78125793 § TVIEO1,87V7 § 825631028
Business-type activities
Met investment in capital assets § 61,335680 % 60565819 S 58444053 § 58409545
Restricted 17,467,132 17,112,566 16,377,873 15,681,813
Unrestricted 24,153,301 20,4538 563 19,343,981 18,010,682
Total business-type activities
net position 5 102,956,113 5 98137948 § 94165907 § 93,102,040
Primary government
Netinvestment in capital assets $ 112,196,586 § 109232155 § 106,936,378 § 105,373,926
Restricted 18,478,848 17,950,378 16,877,385 17,437,692
Unrestricted 55,321,438 48 081,208 48,044 021 502,821,450
Total primary government
net position $ 1850068872 § 176,263,741 5 171,857,784 % 175,633,068
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TABLE |
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2013 2012 20M 2010 2008 2008
45162900 % 38,057,000 35414757 % 31,708,983 § 31,657,220 § 27618040
1,902,920 4,247 531 4,939,220 6.104,522 8,131,864 2,441 907
32,834,830 37,076,263 38,397 518 39,675,278 36,505,774 43,135,374
79,900,650 $ 79,380,794 78751495 § 77488783 § 76294858 5 73,195321
59,044,651 5 58,627,468 53648644 § 53251656 51,646,652 § 46622205
15,245,084 14,806,763 13,877,814 14,965,433 12,633,815 13,043,967
18,493 561 15,817,256 17,977,748 14,277,965 14,942 627 15,116,961
02783296 3§ 89251487 85504206 5 82485034 79222994 § 74783133
104,207,551 § 96,684,468 B9,063401 § 849808639 83,303,772 & 74240245
17,148,004 19,054,294 18,817,034 21,069,855 20,765,679 15,485,874
51,328,381 52,893,519 56,375,266 53,953,243 51,448,401 58,252,335
5 172683946 § 168,632,281 § 164,255701 § 159983837 § 155517852 $ 147,978,454




CITY OF WORTHINGTON, MINNESOTA

CHAMGES IN NET FOSITICN
LAST TEM YEARS
(Accrual basis of accounting)

EXPEMSES

Governmental activities:
General govermment
Fublic safaty
Public works
Culturs and recraation
Conservation and development
Interast on long-term debt

Total governmental activities expenses

Business-type aclivilies:
Water
Municipal Wastewaler
Eleciric
Industrial Wastewater Facility
Storm Water Management
Street Lighting
Liquor
Airpor
Mamadal Auditerium
Cable Televisicn
Total business-typa activities expenses

1

Tatal pimary government expenses

FROGRAM REVENUES
Gavernmental activities:
Charges for services:
General govemment
Public safety
Fublic works
Culture and recreation
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contribulions
Taotal governmental activities program revenues

Business-type aclivilies:
Charges for services:
Water
Municipal Waslewaler
Electric
Industrial Wastewater Facility
Sterm Watar Managemant
Straet Lighting
Liguar
Airport
Memorial Auditorium’
Cabla Televizion
Operating grants and confributions
Capital grantz and confributions
Total businass-type activities program revenues

Total primary govermmeant program revenues

MET [EXFEMSEVREVENUE
Governmental activities
Business-type activilies

Total primary government net expense

(Unaudited)
Figal Year
2017 2016 2015 2014
$ 1774845 §$ 20158858 § 2436264 3§ 1,975,297
3,804 169 5,324 523 4 262,523 4,056,318
2,514,522 2,360,382 2,308,508 2,261,725
1,570,691 1,675,764 1,703,391 1,540,770
472,180 632,774 T04.712 615,851
389,415 366,482 362 164 494 122
5 10,625,826 5 12464 911 § 11887652 & 10,544,084
5 2842004 % 2699733 % 2680252 § 2,840,765
1,516,610 1,700,461 1,575,148 1,552,144
18,662,026 19,025,873 18,370,140 17,738,088
1,713977 1,654 5849 1.644 558 1,675,000
273,000 313 449 303,938 273418
54,648 123,443 148,450 124,409
3,303,520 3,282 401 3,164 181 3,003,084
735,318 712,703 F00E70 595,305
131,680 143,274 149 487 157 876
$ 29063183 & 20656186 § 29726024 5§ 28070000
5 39,589,009 8 4214097 5 41613676 5 35114084
5 244 482 & 483,604 F BE7. 173 % 537,195
247 223 257 87D 277,256 293,387
90,791 02,722 143,165 115,690
162,831 169,374 205,963 247 482
T23,0896 881,775 952 580 917,054
1,851,962 1,352,727 - 78,932
% 3980385 S5 3233068 § 2246141 5 E18874l
% 38408749 $ 3762729 5 3795798 0§ 3625563
2,210,851 2,103,485 2,064,250 1,860,337
21,264 674 20779517 20,351,158 18,882,006
1,595,874 1,638,371 1,562 248 1.577.378
582 605 577,718 561,735 560 478
285 245 284 610 267 524 256,645
3,774,433 3,735,141 3642 518 3.449.343
220,049 187,189 160,652 193,477
131.680 143,274 140 437 157 876
54 459 74,352 77,383 T8 608
273973 210,215 475,566 211,971
5 34274722 5 14085601 § 33,109,161 5 30952 6BA
$ 38235107 ] 5 37,334 669 § 35355302 § 33142428
% (BETE441) % (9226843) % (O54.511) F (B.754,344)
5,211,538 4,440 415 3383137 2,832 632
$ (1463802) % (4786428) § (5.258374) § (5,871.556)
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TABLE Il

2013 2012 2011 2140 2008 20048
& 1914185 § 15976066 1,745.208 § 1674832 § 1892713 % 2.261,590
3,902,501 4,020,954 4,107.495 3,647,508 3,831,705 3,530 6564
4 966,535 851,334 2,229,452 2,407,031 2365 662 2,300,309
1.342 045 2,067,753 1,205,574 997,279 1,212,834 1,174,547
819,208 5571663 819347 1,065,631 G4 397 417,781
543,557 GO6. 216 357 4449 55472 300,192 362,350
& 13488074  § 10,074,056 10464615 5 107147953 § 10287503 § 10047245
£ rzaBMz 5§ a5t 1860466 %5 1702662 § 1654522 § 1647977
1,574,800 1.508,029 2,186,438 1,940,717 1,836,773 1,857 269
16,624,300 16,836,791 16,248,417 15,544 6706 13,508,070 11,909,442
1,643,566 1.714.697 1,955,155 1,944 166 2,314,086 2,068,749
225,320 224 288 230,324 238,121 236,413 213,544
110,094 112,906 246,017 T 141 - F
2.813,698 2,677,525 2,513,694 2,240,024 2,156,194 2,052,904
584,484 730,578 T48282 718,246 TI62N 710,458
250,718 214 5584 168,205 102,280 a7 283 118,808
154,328 152,695 129,904 132,304 130,701 128,088
§ 26231422 § 26013415 2631690 5 24638347 5§ 22750253 § 20708057
5 39719456 § 36087471 36,781,524 § 4786300 5 33037756 5§ 30,755,302
B G4G.428  § 584 874 g33sa7 % 70,541 % 709,382 & 785472
307.022 284 135 257 157 275,454 309,564 236,922
120,586 142,724 163,874 165,453 143,447 146,051
176,252 172,291 181,537 310,374 330,032 11,364
34702885 677,220 725 488 1.026, 464 BAT 580 581,875
2,051,302 2,107,363 1,963,644 1,561,025 1,038,055 350,586
§ 6772475 0§ 3978607 4145347 § 4108721 % 3416071 5 3002300
§ 3312719 §F 24871815 2581207 § 275838 % 2736111 8 2,620,829
2045188 2,156,267 2,152,412 2,089,166 2,080,424 1,967,024
16,086 277 17,820,190 17,620,269 16342512 14,121,035 12,840,256
16536,235 1,745 232 1,776,205 1,806,870 2,789,294 2,249,751
556,675 532,718 510,434 438,378 458,258 444 156
255674 254 450 254 236 63,347 - -
3,261 540 3,083,924 2,833,232 2,596,515 2,403,857 2.292 461
158 4352 173,748 25,063 102,236 105,641 96,902
52,549 58,617 46,590 16,240 33,224 32,765
154 328 152,608 129,804 132304 130,701 128038
40,468 76437 320421 G2 263 66,515 B2 513
553,266 266 BET 50 076 GEa4 477 2696475 187,718
$ 30184862 3 29,304,573 28773050 0§ 2VE3ZA50 0§ 2T E4Z 554 0§ 22942 544
§ 36857137 § 33283580 32019307  § 31342371 § J1.080625 § 25.944.844
§ (6715598} F (6.055445) (6.318.268) 3§ (6038232) § (G.060432) § (7.044945)
3,853,240 3,261,668 2456141 2,594 303 4.892,301 2,234 487
§ (4752358} 5 (2.803.881) (3.862127) 3§ (34439280 § (1977131 F  (4810458)
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CITY OF WORTHINGTON, MINNESOTA

CHANGES IN NET POSITION

LAST TEM YEARS
{Accrual basis of accounting)
(Unaudited)
Fizcal Year
2017 2016 2015 2014
GEMERAL REVEMUES AND OTHER CHANGES
IM MET POSITION
Gavernmental activities:
Taxes
Properiy laxes % 3645694 5 3428878 $ 3195354 % 3,153,080
Sales taxes 1,547 517 585,404 826,579 786,320
Gambling taxes 4 658 4.583 5,555 5,007
Tax incrament fees 181,911 162,963 204731 154, 260
Forfeited tax sale apperiaon B 4,488 = -
Linrestrictad grants and confributions 3194 810 3187772 3,167 052 3,126,308
Investment earnings 440,916 410,294 450 408 393,033
Met decrease in the fair value of investmanis (171.6786) (214,158} = -
Othear 555,006 B39 489 545,547 636,901
Proceeds from sale of capital assats - 27145 120,191 151,808
Transfers g42 172 g24 585 794,975 1,496 836
Total governmental aclivities 5 10241008 5§ 6581437 & 0414132 % 9903610
Business-type activities:
Taxes
Properly taxes ] g % Il I 9,800 § 11
Linrestricted grants and confributions . - - -
Invastment earnings 408 528 256,303 262,720 214 562
Oiher THAT0 449 877 9427 290,655
Procoads from sale of capital assets 31.043 - J2838 T.787
Transfers (B842,172) (824 585) (794,975) {1,496 836)
Total business-type activities ¥ 1325722) 3§ (468,374 5 (480,089} 3 (983,821}
Tolal primary govemment $ 991 E.ELE_E_ 5 9113063 § B534043 F BH197HD
CHAMGES IN MET POSITION
Governmental activities $ 35685567 & 354594 & (2273780 § 1,145,266
Businass-type activities 4,885,817 3,872,041 2,903.043 1,898 BBT
Tatal primary government § B451384 % 4376635 §F ZG75GEY 0§ 3048133

"Starting in 2014 the Memorial Auditorium activity is accounted for in the general fund.
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TABLE Il

2013 2012 20 2010 2008 2008
% 3060826 0§ 2905073 F 2416356 0 F 2266448 % 2285040 2153251
TT0.201 TE3,967 740,382 581,530 417,110 =
3,960 4,423 5,604 4.741 4,154 5628
109 955 111,347 670,833 (45,056 891,277 554,856
2,721,740 2,721,725 2,789,924 2,788 765 3220434 3132132
423,580 294 753 578,856 445 533 610,522 919,195
400,027 456,323 455, 5B 641,694 1.816,309 56T 262
104 343 5,215 3,600 2,795 5400 45,693
665,789 (87,100} 127,080 (393, 718) 757 264 667,211
§ B260404 5 V285761 & VaA28Z70 0§ V085504 0§ 4710940 8,085,225
5 GE.544  § 865337 % 50133 &% 45272 & 53407 54 373
. - 1,501 1.658 6,002 10,545
131,404 82,313 215,205 151,351 172,283 754,189
174.411 232,280 515,754 61,269 48,228 254,736
26,500 5,000 - 44,143 2,500 10,658
(665, TEY) a7, 100 (127,080 3593.718 (737,264) (667.211})
i [£66.930) & 477,030 % 656499 % 01411 & (474 B44) 467 251
$  TO93474 0§ TTTZVO1 5 Ba4BEVEE 0§ TTE681F 0§ 9235006 3.552.519
§ 1,544,805 5 1200312 % 15sM.002 0§ 1047272 0§ 2841508 1,040,283
3,686,310 3,768,568 3,112,640 3,295714 4417 457 270,778
§ 524115 0§ 4068900 § 4BRIBAZ 5 4342086 2§ 7258065 3,742,061
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CITY OF WORTHINGTON, MINNESOTA

FUND BALANCES-GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

LAST TEN YEARS
(Modified accrual basis of accounting)
(Unaudited)
Fiscal Year
2017+ 2018* 2015* 2014*
General Fund
Reserved - - - $
Unreserved - - - -
Monspendable 360,405 362,813 376,608 382,782
Restricted 1,281 1,281 1,281 1,281
Committed 3,104 734 3,248,058 2,970,656 2,782,328
Assigned 735741 890,151 912,662 1,075,652
Unassigned 3,934,230 4,048,626 4,201,047 4,216,095
Total general fund 5 8136391 % B5500829 % B462255 § 8458138
All Other Governmental Funds
Reserved $ S - S - $ -
Unreserved, reported in:
Special revenue funds - - - 2
Debt service funds - - - -
Capital projects funds - - - -
Monspendable 26,632 27,338 26,763 27,704
Restricted 2,129 623 2,122,518 2,054,189 3,310,668
Committed 11,749,137 11,110,591 10,562 543 10,227,310
Assighed 11.860,606 12,763,471 11,033 347 11,396,981
Unassigned (346,370) (1,682,546) (644,751) (686.208)
Total all other governmental funds 5 25519628 § 24341372 § 23032101 5 24276.455
Total Governmental Funds
Reserved - 5 -
Unreserved - - - -
MNonspendable 387,037 390,151 403,372 410,486
Restricted 2,130,804 2,123,799 2,055,480 3,311,949
Committed 14,853,871 14,358,649 13,533,189 13.009,638
Assigned 12,656,347 13,653,622 11,846,008 12,472 B33
Unassigned 3,687,860 2 366,080 3,556,286 3.5629,887
Total governmental funds $ 33656019 § 32882301 3 314984356 § 32734553
All governmental funds
percentage change 2.32% 4.44% -3.79% 3.05%

* The implementation of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 54 Fund Balance
Reporting and Governmental Type Definitions , in fiscal year 2011 resulted in significant change
in the City's fund balance classifications. Information priorto 2011 has not been restated.



TABLE Il

2013* 2012” 2011* 2010 2008 2008

# 3 A $ 5 $ 2926586 § 2951222 $ 2,653,486

- g = 1,675,108 1,416,767 1,675,271
330,728 462 137 474 266 - - -
1,281 1,281 1,281 - - -
2,661,776 2,643,033 2,326,622 - - -
1,115,799 883,550 216,624 - - -
1,934,032 1,536,217 1,171,686 - - -

6043616 $ 5626258 S 4890479 § 4501694 § 4367989 $ 4328757

- 5 = $ - $ 16,953,126 § 16862686 $ 3,568,711

- 5 " 9,053,518 9,404,977 25518013

- - 4142714 2,868,309 2,906 956

- - - 4,303 468 4,377,343 2,644 667
26,723 32,835 32,409 = - -
3,460,980 4 416,850 4,937,839 - - -
10,880,300 14,365,156 13,811,815 - - -
11,524,448 11,670,045 13,421,906 - - -
(280,069) {291,267) (332,835} - -

25722360 § 30,123663 5 31,971,334 § 34,452,826 § 335133156 § 34,637,347

= $ . 3 - 5 19,879,712 § 19,813,908 §$ 6220197

- - - 19,074,808 18,067,396 32,745,907
357,451 484 972 506,675 = - -
3,462 241 4.418.171 4,939,220 5 = 2
13,652,078 17,038,188 16,238,537 - - -
12,640,245 12,553,638 14,338,530 = = -
1,653,963 1,244,950 838,851 - - -

31,765,976 § 35749921 5 35,861,813 § 38,954,520 § 37,881,304 § 38,966,104

-11.14% -3.02% -5.37% 2.83% -2 78% 156.36%

123



REVEMUES
Taxes (see Table VI)
Licenses, fees and permits
Fines and penalties
Charges for services
Special assessmeants
Intergovernmental
Investment earnings

Other revenues

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
General government

Public safety
Public works

Culture and recreation
Conservation and development

Capital outlay

Debt service
Principal
Interest

Miscelansous
Total expenditures
Excess of expendituras over revenues

OTHER. FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Bond proceeds

Refunding bond proceeds
Premium on refunding bonds
Payments on refunded bonds
Sale of capital asset

Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

MNet change in fund balance

Debt service as a percentage of noncapital
expendituras

CITY OF WORTHINGTON, MINNESOTA

LAST TEN YEARS

{Moedified accrual basis of accounting)

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES-GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

{Unaudited)
Fiscal Year
2017 2016 2015 2014
5400886 § 4538765 § 4208838 § 4124864
288,288 271,807 268,803 248,853
53111 77,955 111,998 122,973
818,300 709,419 790,568 787 852
473 818 213,401 388,988 282 747
5783951 5,395,518 4105,232 4,122,291
432 255 404,748 445 057 388,563
94,032 356,314 382,051 388,030
13364749 § 11967927 % 10791535 § 10,466,173
1822013 % 1817413 § 2301690 3 1,883,674
4,703,445 4 118,678 4,007,798 4,012,697
1,167,872 952 890 957,061 769,468
1,299,260 2,518,827 1,209,344 1,240,707
555,003 603,643 521,232 533,530
2,801,912 3,251,562 975,289 1,213,879
1,190,000 1,275,000 2,785,000 1.530,000
206,886 211,565 221,369 279,213
- 41,598 77,716 59,930
13,746,391 $ 147911786 3 13166453 F 11523007
(3g1642) § (2823249 % (2374964) 5 (1.056,834)
- $ 3150000 5 - 3 -
- 46,609 g =
63,188 - 139,752 186,859
2,891,875 1,740,142 1,749,711 3.6807 BOY
(1,799,703 (715,557) {754,736) {1,910,971)
1155360 35 4221194 & 1134727 $  1.BB3,695
763718 & 1397945 5 (1.240237) % 826,861
14, 08% 14.74% 25.04% 18.12%
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TABLE IV

2013 2012 2011 2010 2003 2008
$ 3977378 % 3914244 § 3850960 $ 3634866 $ 3298987 S 2,773,810
207,094 287,790 230,171 253,126 208,291 283,058
122,603 111,241 99,912 117,772 143,403 164,010
747 617 751,772 804,124 909,643 890,997 868,737
379,978 331,011 551,226 478,472 435,096 435,130
8,243,927 5,506,308 5,481,009 5,216,561 5,146,080 4 564,595
420,769 292,960 574,133 444,283 607,693 899,144
192,933 198,533 266,415 388,568 1,603,568 284,204
$ 14292387 % 11,393,859 § 11,866,959 $ 11443291 § 12332115 § 10,372,688
$ 1912412 $ 1837852 S 159021B § 1619147 $ 1724634 5 2,190517
3,963,495 6,329,730 5,833,843 3,954,150 3,630,920 3,791,054
3,403,318 606,923 738,945 1,023,849 1,284,781 1,256,277
3,745,753 2,806,145 1,658,566 970,707 1,178,042 1,212,251
788,651 770,097 1,812,003 884,365 1,499,763 333,010
2,970,908 3,042,381 1,094 539 2,367,026 6.532,406 3,433,870
2,220,000 2,055,000 995,000 810,000 805,000 640,000
286,201 322,215 357,449 355,472 299,497 365,654
56,613 138,110 59 504 100,827 84,444 45376
$ 19347352 § 17908453 § 14240087 S 12085543 § 17039487 § 13,268,009
$ (5054,965) S (6,514594) § (2,373.108) § (542.252) S (4707,372) §$ (2.895321)
$ 2 $ 2995049 $ $ 814195 $ 2710000 § -
= 2,274,951 1,075,805 s
= 15,918 & 15,236 20,408
> (1,331) = 2 . ;
205,231 5215 3,600 3,950 14,900 4650
4,922 536 4,666,250 4,984,797 3,664,835 6,986,591 1,034,534
(4,056, 747) (4,553 350) (4.707,996) (3,858.553) (6,109,327) (213,823)
$ 1071020 $ 5402702 $ 280401 $ 1715468 § 3622572 §$ 825361
$ (30983945 $ (1.111.892) $ (2,092707) $ 1.073216 §$ (1.084.800) $ (2,069.960)
18.16% 23.35% 13.86% 12.40% 11.82% 10.76%
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CITY OF WORTHINGTON, MINNESOTA

PROGRAM REVENUES BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM

FUNCTION/PROGRAM
Governmental activities:

Seneral government

Public Safety
Public works

Culture and recreation
Conservation and development -

Subtotal governmental activities

Business-type activities:
Water

Municipal Wastewater

Electric

Industrial Wastewater Facility
Storm Water Management

Street Lighting
Liquor
Airport

Memaorial Auditorium’

Cable Television

Subtotal business-type activities

Total primary government

LAST TEN YEARS
{Accrual basis of accounting)

(Unaudited)
Program Revenues

2017 2018 2015 2014
3 844903 3% 509288 % 687173 5 537,195
800,925 826,185 787,358 832,239
2,091,585 1,550,497 305,767 396,650
212,968 182,155 294 870 266,242
169,932 190,873 157,414
5 3950385 § 32380688 3 22461 5 2189740
$ 3840879 § 3762729 § 3795799 5 3625369
2,210,851 2,103,485 2,084 250 1,880,337
21,264 674 20,778,517 20,351,158 18,882,006
1,595,874 1,638,371 1,562,248 1,677,378
765,132 746 778 561,735 564,646
285,245 284 610 267,924 256 645
3,774 433 3,735,141 3,642 919 3,449 343
405,954 802 596 713,641 478 888
131,680 143,274 148 487 157 876
$ 34274722 § 34,095,601 $ 33,109,181 § 30,952 688
$ 38225107 § 373346609 § 35355302 § 33142438

'Starting in 2014 the Memorial Auditorium activity is accounted for in the general fund.



TABLE V

2013 2012 2011 2010 2008 2008
3 646,428 % 584,874 5 B33,647 5 780841 % 709382 % 790,472
816,688 761,864 1,206,617 759,148 743,851 712,207
4,715,247 1,842,980 430,512 1,795,097 1,263,360 1,173,878
211,915 230,042 248 880 343,712 330,032 335,118
382,197 258,737 1,426 691 430,825 371,445 25,525
S B6,772475 § 3978607 $ 4146347 $ 4109721 § 3418071 $ 3.002.300
$ 3312719 $ 2971815 § 2921207 § 2808413 § 2736111 § 2620829
2,045,198 2,168,165 2,183,413 2,139,251 2,097,479 1,967,024
18,086 277 17,820,180 17,886,531 16,392,587 14,121,035 12,840,296
1,656,235 1,749,232 1,776,205 1,896,879 2,788,298 2,249,751
556,675 532,718 510,434 488 379 469 259 444 196

255,674 254 460 254 236 53,347 - <
3.261,540 3,083,924 2,833,232 2,586 518 2403 B57 2,292 451
803,163 505,154 221,288 593,411 2,861,580 367,134
52,853 26,817 45 6580 121,550 33,234 32,765
154,328 152,688 129,904 132,304 130,701 128,088
§ 30,184,662 $ 20,304973 § 28773050 5 27,232650 § 27642554 § 22942544
$ 36957137 § 33,283,580 § 329819387 5 31,342371 $ 31060625 5 25944 844
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CITY OF WORTHINGTON, MINNESOTA

TABLE I
GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL TAX REVENUES BY SOURCE
LAST TEWN YEARS
(Modified accrual basis of accounting)
{Unaudited)
Tax Increment
Fiscal Year Property Sales Tax' Gambling Fees Total
2008 § 2213326 S - 3 5,628 £ £54 856 S 2,773,810
2008 2,286,416 417 110 4,184 581,277 3,298 987
2010 2303238 B81,630 4741 645 056 3,634 BES
201 2443150 740,382 5,804 670,833 3,858 958
2012 3,034 507 763,967 4,423 111,347 3,514,244
2013 3,003,257 770,201 3,980 109 958 3,577,376
2014 31768987 786,320 5,057 154 260 4 124 664
2015 3261573 825,979 5,555 204,731 4 298 838
2016 3 461,317 285 404 4,593 182,963 4 634 277
2017 3,675,600 1,547 517 4 653 181,911 5,409 886
Parcentage of Change
2008-2017 66 .08%, - -17.24% -B7.21% 25 03%

'Sales Tax collections started in 2000 after the taxpayers passed a 1/2 cent sales tax referendurn in 2008,
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CITY OF WORTHINGTON, MINNESOTA

TAX CAPACITY AND ESTIMATED MARKET VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY

LAST TEN YEARS

(Unaudited)
Residential Commercial Industrial Agricultural
Fiscal Year Property Property FProperty Property

2008 364,599,800 97,219,200 25,557,100 3,678,800
2009 363,623,800 91,887,600 26,831,400 3,049,400
2010 369,085,600 96,022,500 36,048,400 4,883,300
2011 396,185,400 104,235,700 31,213,000 4,441,800
2012 397,757,400 104,750,600 32,488,000 4,406,300
2013 399,506,700 119,312,500 32,203,200 4,964,700
2014 346,642,400 115,176,063 32,378,200 3,668,700
2015 348,803,500 114,804,100 32,090,500 3,474,400
2016 430,625,274 130,329,200 32,299,600 5,098,578
2017 439,251,897 135,373,800 34,745,800 5,905,981

Source: Department of Assessor, Nobles County

Note: Property in Nobles County is reassessed every year on average. The county
assesses property at approximately 100 percent of actual value for commercial, industrial
and agricultural property and 93 percent for residential property. Estimated actual value is

calculated by dividing assessed value by those percentages.

'Includes tax-exempt property.
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TABLE VII

131

Total Tax Capacity’
Less: Total Taxable Direct Estimated as a Percentage
Tax-exempt Tax Tax Market of Estimated
Property Capacity Rate Value Market Value
$ 109,212,700 $ 381,842,200 51429 % $ 491,054,800 100.000 %
103,212,700 382,179,500 48 866 488,129,000 99.439
129,915,800 376,124,000 49,880 495,080,000 102.214
129,915,800 406,160,100 50.951 459,745,500 116.603
129,915,800 408,486,500 55.211 463,760,000 116.311
129,915,800 426,071,300 55.796 546,946,000 101.653
129,915,800 367,950,563 92775 556,125,000 89.524
65,243,900 435,028,600 52.991 577,896,400 86.568
63,794,600 534,558,052 55.494 676,091,000 88.502
63,942,922 551,334,556 49,892 694,980,300 88.532



CITY OF WORTHINGTON, MINMESOTA

PROPERTY TAX RATES
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING' GOVERNMENTS

LAST TEN YEARS
{Unaudited)
Overlapping Rates'
City of Worthington Mobles County

Genaral Genaral Total

Obligation Total Cligation Less: County

Basic Deabt Direct Basic Cebt Disparity Aid Direct
Fizcal Year Rate Service Fate Fate Service Reducticn Rate

2008 37.030 th 14.399 % 51.428 % 45 480 % 7415 % 1.188 % 527068 %

2009 36.028 12.838 48 866 43 8h0 G.GE3 147171 49 422
2010 33.4580 16,430 49880 33450 5904 1107 38247
2011 33.238 17.713 50.951 37.038 5514 1096 41.457
2012 A7 598 17.213 85211 36,461 5.086 1447 40.430
2013 40,567 15.229 b5 745 31.861 4420 1,116 35.265
2014 37 654 15.091 52.745 .00 0.B77 - 21.687
2015 36.58% 16.402 52.991 268838 3124 1.0140 28.752
2016 44 285 11.208 55,494 32.230 3.251 1.010 34.471
2017 435789 5,788 52,378 31774 3149 0821 34107

Source. Department of Assessor, Nobles County

'Overlapping rates are those of local and county governments that apply to property owners within the City
of YWarthington, Mot all overlapping rates apply to all City of Worthington property aowners (e.g., the rates
for special districts apply only to the proportion of the City's property owners whose properly is located
within the geographic boundaries of the special district,
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TABLE Vil

Independent School District #518

General Total Total
Obligation Less: Schoal Direct &
Basic Debt Disparity Aid Direct Special Overlapping
Rate Service Reduction Fata Districts Rates
9326 % 168,309 % 1.492 % 24143 % 4.041 % 132,318 %
9.19 13.729 1.395 21528 4.159 123.972
7666 18,113 1.385 24394 4.081 116.602
4.452 14.398 1.369 17492 4,081 113,981
5840 17.507 1.385 21.961 4.221 121.823
8.378 13.787 1.395 20,770 4.128 115.958
14,388 11.268 - 25857 2.262 112.351
5273 10572 1.262 14.5683 4.042 100.368
9.483 10,104 1.265 158.322 4.240 112,627
7.170 10.080 1.030 16.220 4.534 107.238



CITY OF WORTHINGTOM, MINNESCTA

TABLE 1X
PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO
{Unaudited)
2mM7 2008
Fercentage of Percentage of
Tax Tatal Tax Tax Total Tax
Taxpayer Capacity Rank Capacity Capacity Rank Capacity
Avaera MckKennan § 292510 1 465 % s - - o
Swift & Company 271.802 2 4.32 247 526 1 4 .58
Yellow Company LLC 135,628 3 215 7 -
Wal-Mart Stores Inc 132,034 4 210 107,074 2 1,98
Bedford Industries 120,412 5 2.06 - -
Meadows of Worthington, LLC 103,785 G 1.65 45 294 5 0.84
Prairie Holdings Group 98 402 T 1.56 = 5
Hurd Worthington LLC 88,188 8 1.40 - -
Merck & Co.’ 79,554 9 1.28 B1,464 3 T8
Minnesota Energy 72z 10 1.23 - -
Developers Diversified - - 71,287 4 1.32
Sioux Valley Hospitals & Health Care Systems - - 40,088 B 0.74
First State Bank of Rushmore - - 36,122 7 0.67
Waorthington Ventures, LLC - - 35,716 8 0.66
Shopko Properties, Inc. - - 33,360 9 0.62
Highland Manufacturing E - 32,722 10 061
Totals 5 1,408,435 2238 % § 730,651 13.53 %

'This business was formerly called Intervet, Inc.

Source; Department of Assessor, Nobles County



CITY OF WORTHINGTON, MINNESCTA

TAELE X
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
LAST TEN YEARS
{Unaudited)
COLLECTED WITHIN THE
__YEAR OF THE LEWY COLLECTIONS TOTAL COLLECTIONS TO DATE

PERCENT IM SUBSEQUENT FPERCENT

YEAR TAXES' LEVIED _ AMOUNT OF LEWY YEARS AMOUNT OF LEVY
2008 & 2,296,330 5 2,290,200 ga.73 % g 6,130 ] 2,296 330 100.00
2008 2,341 582 2,297 200 88.10 44 382 2,341 582 100.00
2010 2,402 542 2,368 752 03.58 33,780 2402 542 100.00
2011 2482 811 2,421,808 o7.54 37 6ED 2 459 5EG 89906
2012 3,085 427 3,045 768 98.75 38659 3.085427 100.00
2013 3,147 138 3,095 324 98.35 51,371 3,145 895 95.09
2014 3,175,460 3,132 956 98 G5 41 469 3,174,425 92.97
2015 3,262,150 3,235927 99 20 26,223 3,262,150 100.00
2016 3,441 568 3424 132 99.40 17,436 3,441 568 100.00
20]m7 3675 697 3,662 597 05 64 - 3,662,557 99 G

Total Tax Levy - does not include (HACA] Homestead and Agriculiural Credit Aid or Residential and Agricultural
Market Value Credit.

SOURCE. Finance Department, City of Warthington

—
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CITY OF WORTHINGTON, MINNESOTA

RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE
LAST TEN YEARS

{Unaudited)
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
PUBLIC GEMERAL
GEMERAL TAX FACILITY SALES TAX GEMERAL ELECTRIC OBLIGATICON
OBLIGATION  INCREMENT LEASE REVENUE OBLIGATION REVENUE CAPITAL REVEMNUE
YEAR BOMDS BONDS BOMDS BONDE BONDS' BONDS LEASES NOTE
2008 % 6915000 § TVSO000 0% 80000 % - § 3385000 % 1600000 % 144958 F 2560000
2003 B 880,000 70,000 815,000 - 2,460,000 1,435,000 118 827 2,860,000
2010 10,030,000 60,000 755,000 - 2,660,000 1,280,000 91,318 2,750,000
201 8,105,000 50,000 £E5,000 - 1,785,000 1,085,000 G2 354 2,640,000
2012 10,325,000 40,000 - 2,700,000 1,015,000 BE0,000 31,880 2,520 000
2013 8,552,338 30,000 - 2,312,862 875,000 B7T.276 . 2,395 000
2014 7,543 982 20,000 - 2 670 668 - N 459 0432 - 2265 000
2015 5282 2115 - - 2,153 514 = * 230,808 - 2,130,000
2016 T.725 724 - - 1,626,340 - > - - 1,580,000
2017 7,060,793 - - 1,094 167 - > - - 1,840.000

Sources: Department of Assessor, Nobles County® and the Finance Department, City of Worthingtan.

Includes general obligation, general obligation revenue, general obligation grant anticipation. sales tax revenue bonds and
ravanue bonds supported by enterprise funds.

*See Table XV for personal income and population data, These ratios are calculated using personal income and population
for the prior calendar year,

* Information not available
** Starting in 2014 the Memorial Auditorium Sales Tax Revenue Bond is shown under governmental activities

Mote: Details regarding the city's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.



TABLE Xl

TOTAL PERCENTAGE  PERCENTAGE
PRIMARY OF ESTIMATED  OF PERSONAL PER
GOVERNMENT  MARKET VALUE® INCOME® CAPITA?
$  15.929,988 324 % 214 % 1,366
16,638,827 343 231 1,411
17 808,319 348 2,30 1,379
15,432 394 2.88 1,81 1,206
17,511,980 3.25 2.00 1,368
14,842 476 267 1.65 1,157
12,958,712 260 1.41 998
9,795,537 1.96 1.02 754
11,342,084 1.80 1.23 863
9,994,960 162 - * 742
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CITY OF WORTHINGTOMN, MINNESOTA

TABLE XII
RATIOS OF NET GEMERAL BONDED DEBT QUTSTANDING
LAST TEN YEARS
{Unadited)
GEMERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING
GENERAL LESS: AMOUNT
GENERAL TAX, DBLIGATION AVAILABLE IN

OBLIGATION  INCHEMENT  SALES TAX DEBT SERVICE PERCENTAGE OF PER
YEAR BONDS  _ BONDS BONDS TOTAL FUMNDS TOTAL TAX CAPACITY CAPITA
2008 B B85534 5 7SO0 § 387480 5 1039704 & 5444431 5 4053373 1008 % 0§ 425
2008 5921418 70,000 2,461,509 11,453.017 5,757,752 £ 605 265 1,167 433
2010 10,088,418 80,000 2 868,711 12,615.130 7,024,176 5,700,954 1.170 454
2014 9,179,334 50,000 1,787,178 11,026,513 4,746,146 6,260,357 1.366 491
2012 10,404,398 40,000 3,730,036 14,174 434 4,245 250 0,525 184 2141 775
2013 8,552 538 0,000 3187 BG2 1,770,200 3,306 640 5463 560 1.547 GED
2014 7,543,082 20,000 2 670,588 10,234 670 3,150,506 7075072 1,272 545
2015 5,282,216 4 2,153,514 7,435,730 1,003,232 5,532 488 0,957 426
2016 T.725 724 - 1,626 340 9 .352 064 1,876,531 T.375.533 1.099 561
2017 7.060,793 : 1,084,167 2.154 980 1,985 434 6,169, 526 0,658 458

"Sae Tabla VI for property value data,

zPapuIahar: dala can be found in Table X\

Note: Dedails regarding the city's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.



CITY OF WORTHINGTON, MINNESOTA

TABLE Xl
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2017
(Unaudited)
ESTIMATED
ESTIMATED SHARE OF
DEBT PERCEMNTAGE OVERLAPPING
GOVERNMENTAL UNIT OUTSTANDING APPLICABLE' DEBT
Debt repaid with property taxes
Independent School District #518 $ 32725000 39.36 % 3 12,880,560
Mobles County 22,450,000 19.73 4,429 385
Southwest Regional Development Commission? - 19.73 -
Subtotal, overlapping debt 5 17,308.845
City of Worthington's direct debt” 8,154 960
Total direct and overlapping debt 5 25484505

'For debt repaid with property taxes, the percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using taxable property
values. Applicable percentages were estimated by determining the portion of another governmental unit's taxable
assessed value that is within the city's boundaries and dividing it by each unit's total taxable assessed value, This
approach was also used for other debt.

*Southwest Regional Development Commission serves a nine county area, thus the debt outstanding is proportioned
accordingly to reflect the obligation of the city's overlapping area.

*Excludes deht payable from enterprise revenue.

Mote: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of the city. This
schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments that is borne by the
residents and businesses of Worthington., This process recognizes that, when considering the city's ability to issue
and repay long-term debt, the entire debt burden borne by the residents and businesses should be taken into account.
Howewver, this does not imply that every taxpayer is a resident, and therefore responsible for repaying the debt of
each overlapping government.

SOURCE: Awditor's Department, Mobles County and Independent School District #518
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CITY OF WORTHINGTON, MINNESOTA

LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION
LAST TEN YEARS

(Unaudited)
Legal Debt Margin Calculation for Fiscal Year 2017
Assessed value § 694,980,300
Debt limit (3% of assessed value) § 20,849,409
Debt applicable to limit:
Total bonded debt $ B8.154.980
Less: Amount set aside for
repayment of general
obligation debt (B8.,154,960)
Total net debt applicable to limit §
Legal debt margin § 20,849 409
Fiscal Year
2017 2018 2015 2014
Debt limit $ 203845408 * 3 20282730 v § 17336882 * § 16683750 *
Total net debt applicable to limit - -
Legal debt margin 5 20,848,408 5 20282730 ¥ 17.335,892 $ 16,683,750
Total net debt applicable to the
limit as a percentage of debt limit 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Mote: Under State Finance law, the City's outstanding general obligation debt should not exceed 15 percent of
the total assessed property value, However, the City has established a more conservative internal limit that
matches Minnesota Statutes. Per Minnesota Statute 475.53, the debt limit is 3%. This means that the total
amount of bonds, notes or any other type of general obligation issued or outstanding will not be greater than
the three percent limit mentioned above. The following types of obligations are not considered in determining
the debt limitation: certain revenue bonds, tax increment bonds and permanent improvement bonds. As seen
in the above calculation the City's applicable bonded debt is well below the required debt limit.

*Per Minnasota Statute 475,53, the debt limit increased from 2% to 3% in 2008,
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TABLE XIV

2013 2012 2011 2010 2008 2008

$ 16408380 * § 13912800 * § 13,792,365 * & 14852400 * § 14643870 * § 14731647 *

- = 595,000 755,000 814,438 869,439

5 16,408,380 $ 13812800 5 13,097 365 3 14,097.400 $ 13,829,431 5 13,862,208

0.00% 0.00% 5.04% 5.058% 5.56% 5.90%
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CITY OF WORTHINGTON, MINNESOTA

TABLE XV
PLEDGED-REVENUE COVERAGE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Unaudited)
WATER REVENUE BONDS/NOTES
uTiuTyY LESS! NET DEBT SERVICE
FISCAL SERVICE OPERATING AVAILABLE
YEAR CHARGES EXPEMSES EEVENUE PRINCIPAL INTEREST COVERAGE
2008 : 2620829 % 1068185 § 1551664 & 330,010 ° 171,422 3.09
2009 2738111 1,103,288 1632823 336,635 158,566 2.30
2010 2,758,328 1,126,803 1631525 354,800 146,727 3.25
201 2921207 1,163,963 1,757,244 335,000 134,342 3.58
2mz 2,971,815 1,218,325 1,753,430 120,000 124,755 716
2013 3,312,719 1,667,281 1,645,438 125,000 119,087 6.74
2014 3,625,560 2,206,292 1.419.277 120,000 113,081 5.84
2015 3,795,729 1,905,945 1,799,853 135,000 108,951 7.44
2016 37627258 1,888,540 1,774,189 140,000 100,472 7.38
2017 3.840.878 1,801,001 1,938,878 150,000 93,745 7.95
MUNICIPAL WASTEWATER REVENUE BOMNDS
UTILITY LESS: MNET DEBT SERVICE
FISCAL SERVICE OPERATING AVAILABLE
YEAR CHARGES EXPENSES REWVENUE PRINCIPAL INTEREST COVERAGE
2008 3 1,967,024 5 10726834 § 894,380 3 08890 § 12,748 7.29
2008 2,080,424 1,163,967 926,457 113,365 8,803 .58
2010 2,088,166 1,182,728 908,438 115,199 3,288 764
2011 2,183,413 1,355,467 837,046 - - -
2ma2 2,156,267 1,190,714 965,553 - - -
2013 2,045,198 1,277,276 TE7.922 - - -
2014 1,960,337 1,199,817 TEO.420 - - -
2015 2,084,250 1,224,042 840,208 - - -
2018 2,103,485 1,356,722 46,763 - - -
2017 2,210,851 1,165,309 1,045 542 % : <
(Continued)

142



TABLE XV
CITY OF WORTHINGTON, MINNESOTA

(Continued)
PLEDGED-REVEMUE COVERAGE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Unaudited)
ELECTRIC REVENUE BONDS
UTILITY LESS: NET DEET SERVICE

FISCAL SERWVICE OFPERATING AVAILABLE
YEAR CHARGES EXPENSES REVENUE PRIMCIPAL INTEREST COVERAGE
2008 ] 12840298 % 11,100,057 % 1740239 5 160,000 3 81,005 T.22
2009 14,121.035 12,7368 456 1,382,539 165,000 72,302 5.83
2010 16,342 512 14,709 117 1,633,386 175,000 65,455 A.79
201 17,620,269 15,339,220 2,281,048 1,470,000 ' 47 812 1.50
2012 17,820,180 15,805,264 2014 826 205,000 32,530 8.48
2013 18,086,277 15,770,390 2315887 210,000 26,400 .80
2014 18,882,006 16,830,443 2,051,563 215,000 20,100 B.73
2015 20,351,168 18 446,308 1,804,849 225,000 13,650 7.98
2016 20,779.517 18,132,243 2547274 230,000 6,900 1117
2m7v 21,264 674 17,772,035 3,492,630 - - -

INDUSTRIAL WASTEWATER REVEMUE BONDS
UTILITY LESS: NET DEBT SERVICE

FISCAL SERVICE OPERATING AVAILABLE

YEAR CHARGES EXPENSES REVENUE PRINCIPAL INTEREST COVERAGE
2008 3 2242751 & 1572001 % &777a0 & 535000 & 138,200 1.01
2008 2,769 298 1,835,518 g52,7a80 558,000 114,125 1.42
2010 1,896,879 1,489,818 407,081 530,000 89,150 neo
2011 1,776,205 1,653,083 223,112 620.000 62,010 033
202 1,749 232 1,435,262 313,970 645 000 32,250 0.46
2013 1,656,235 1,401,001 255234 - - -
2014 1,677,378 1,430,528 146 850 - -
2015 1,562 248 1,396,402 165,845 - - -
2016 1,638,371 1,402,139 236,232 - - -
2017 1,595,874 1,459,503 136,371 - - -

(Continued)
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CITY OF WORTHINGTON, MINNESOTA

PLEDGED-REVENUE COVERAGE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(Unaudited)

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BONDS®

SPECIAL DEBT SERVICE
ASSESSMENT
YEAR COLLECTIONS FRINCIPAL INTEREST COVERAGE
2008 5 434718 % 640,000 3 361,230 0.43
2009 435,014 805,000 296,047 040
2010 478,472 810,000 351,740 0.41
20M 551,226 985,000 355268 0.41
2012 330,425 2,055,000 305,210 014
2013 379275 2,220,000 254,001 0.15
2014 282055 1,530,000 257,365 0.18
2015 388,674 2,785,000 175,152 0:13
2016 212,808 1,275,000 211,565 0.14
2017 473,870 1,120,000 201137 0.34

TABLE XV

(Continued)

Mote: Details regarding the city's cutstanding debt can b2 found in the notes to the financial statements, Operating expenses

do not inclede interest, depreciation ar amorization expanses, Interest does not include fiscal agent fees.

ncludes $1,260.000 for the Electric Revenue Bond 20014 which was refunded 4/25/11,

*Special Azsessment Bonds are not fully covered with pledoed assessment revenue. The amaunt of principal and interes? that

is pledged with special assessmeant revenue ranges from 30.08% to 47.91%.
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CITY OF WORTHINGTON, MINNESOTA

TABLE XVI
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS
LAST TEN YEARS
[Unaudied)
(3] (5] [ {7)
[2) PER CAFITA (4} 5] LOCAL MINNESOTA UNITED STATES
[Rd] PERSONAL PERSONAL GRADUATION SCHOOL UNEMPLOYMENT  UNEMPLOYMENT  UMEMPLOYMENT
YEAR  POPULATION INCOME INCOME RATES EMROLLMENT RATE RATE RATE
2008 11862 § 745074000 % 35,268 5480 % 2.320 414 H 545 % h7H %
2005 11,788 719,508,000 3375 E2.00 2404 5326 v.8r 927
2010 12,764 763,625,000 35,784 75.40 2512 4.85 7.3 9.27
2011 12,800 BE5Z 027,000 34 469 7820 2.590 508 G.41 B.o5
2012 12,503 874,122,000 40267 BO.BD 2 Eod 433 565 BO7
2013 12,827 505,253,000 41350 5055 2823 3.58 5.08 7.34
2014 12,082 920,686,000 42 581 a0.00 2,878 335 4.04 517
2015 12,985 962,535,000 A4 322 54.00 aary .25 3 530
2016 13,145 524,805,000 42 320 &7 91 3133 380 3.5 4 .87
2047 13,478 . L - . - " 3.208 335 245 4.35

(13 2010 Census and astimates by Community & Economic Development Department City of Worthingtan

[2) Nobles County. Source: Regional Ecoramic Information System, Bureau of Economic Analysis

{2} Nobles County. Source: Regional Ecoromic Information Syatem, Bureaw of Economic Analysis

(4} Indenerdent School Cistrict 518, Worthington Senior High. Source: Binnesoia Deparment of Educabon
[5) Indeperdent School District #5186

(E) Nobles County, Source Jobs and Training, Researcn Division

[7) Jobs and Training. Reseanch Division

* Information not available
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CITY OF WORTHINGTON, MINNESOTA

TABLE XWII
FRINCIFAL EMPLOYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGD
{Unaudited)
2017 2008
Fercentage of Percentage of
Total City Total City
Emplayer Employees  Rank Employment Employees Rank Employment
Swift Independant Packing Company 2,100 1 19.33 % 2400 1 2243 %
Independent School District #518 545 2 5.02 500 2 4 67
Sanford Regional Hospital 404 3 3.72 300 4 2.80
Bedford Industries Inc. 325 4 2.99 225 B 210
Hy-\ee Food Stores 301 5 277 1580 8 1.40
City of Worthington 185 B 1.70
MNobles County 184 fi 1.68 - 0.00
Highland Manufacturing 180 8 1.66 140 9 1.31
WWal-Mart Super Centar 178 g 1.64 275 5 2.57
Client Community Services 135 10 1.24 120 10 1.12
Farley's & Sathers Candy Company - - 442 3 413
MRC! [The Achievement Center-TAC) - - 154 7 1.44
Totals 4 637 4175 % 4,708 4397 %

*These figures include employees from other counties. Payroll is centralized in Worthington and are therefore included in the

total,

Sources: Minnesota Department of Employment and Economic Development, Warthington Regional Economic Development
Corporation & Worthington Area Chamber of Commerce.
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FurclionProgram
Groyemmaental actvities:

Genesal govemmenl
Ewaculive
Cay Clark
Financial adminisiration
Commurdty develaprent’
Qther ganers govenmenl
Public satety
Palica
Firg
Animal control
Coda anforcement’
Fablic works
Streats”
Sanifation’
Special assesmarrs’
Culiure and recreation
Recrestion’
Farks
Consarvaton and deveopmant
Matural resaurces’
Economic davalopment and
assistanca’

Tolal governmental activites
armpliyeass

Husiness-ype aciivitias:
Water
Rurizipal Wastewstar
Elehric
Indusirzal Wistessaler Faclily
Storrm Wister Management”
Liguar
Adrpon
Mamanal Audiarirm®

Tatal businese-type activibes.
amployaes

Talal cily Tul-fime squivalent
emplayaes

Soures: Firanoe Deparimend, Gity of Warthingion

'Starfing in 2004 Spacal Assessmants FTE's are included in Community Developmant due to a new financial safwsre packegs the city Implemantad,

Sfarling in 200% Malural Resourcas, Economic Davalopmant & Assistancs and Storm Water Managament FTE'S are Inclided In Siraals oue to a new
Tinancial soflware package e city implemantad

CITY OF WORTHINGTON, MINNESOTA

TABLE X1
FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT CITY GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES BY FUMNDTION
LAST TEN YEARS
{A&ccrual basls of Bocounting)
(Unaudted)
Fulltime Equivalent Employees
2097 2016 2015 2014 2093 2012 2011 2010 20049 2008
270 279 275 205 2.74 2,75 2.8 276 213 1.45
200 Z.RS 202 2.02 2,00 2.00 200 2.00 200 202
406 4.23 405 4,18 410 413 415 417 417 419
a.57 10.02 534 0994 =Ra)} E.T6 a.7a ooz feRat] .05
[HE e D41 o4l 0.41 0.41 D43 043 Q.41 0.38 oM
35,64 ar.ah b2 d4.54 3523 35.19 3475 35.25 3547 34.56
1.5 1.41 1.68 128 1.58 1.43 1.74 1.03 1.43 1.08
0.53 0.54 .54 0.50 0.50 0.50 050 0.a0 D.50 .50
1.06 1.08 1.04 1.04 110 1.00 1.02 1.03 D.oD .00
a7 G.34 5.36 6.00 G601 5.85 544 .23 45 §.38
Q.00 0.aa b.o0 0oz 003 0.0 [EREF] .04 1.02 2
0.00 n.oo Lo .00 .00 0.00 (BRI D.oo n.on .22
218 2.22 .31 364 204 247 T 5.84 .20 T57
Gz B2 B.04 4.88 T.38 .44 Gah B.53 5.80 E.dd
L.oo 0.00 0.0 .00 0.00 0.0 LR o.oo o.ao 1.34
013 014 0.00 .00 .00 iEeH] .00 n.od o.ao 0.1
415 T7 90 7416 73.249 T2.680 EitRE T146 75.70 T6.93 Tr.50
b.64 q.41 6.63 B.75 B.HE G.68 T.82 .64 8.83 E.54
B34 843 834 B.42 843 515 B3k 8.44 .34 B.OE
1361 1412 13.81 1367 1308 1348 15606 1321 1326 11.20
0.0 000 0.00 0,00 000 .on n.on 0.0 .00 0.00
0.0 000 0.00 0.00 0.00 Q.00 .00 0.00 .00 0.5
.02 Sfa 553 6,53 5.09 5.06 645 2831 527 4.00
012 ol 112 011 o 013 HR K 004 13 045
0.0 o.00 0,00 0,00 1.44 1.69 1.60 0.74 iR 1] 1.00
3473 3554 B < S | . 1) 3645 35AT Y05 3338 34 54 35.4F
10884 113.54 10838 10787 108.05 10635 106,51 104G 84 111 47 113.04

*larling in 2010 Cade Erfercemenl {proviousl Saniation) is included undar Public Safety instead of Public Warks.

'Starting in 2014 Mamarial Suditarium is incuded under Recraatian unssr Culturs snd recrestion.

Mot A lHima emplkeyes is scheduled bo vork 2,080 haurs per (including vacation and sick leave) Ful-time egquivelant emplayment

is cakouited by dividicg iolal labor hoeres by 2,080,
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CITY OF WORTHINGTON, MINNESOTA,

OFERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM

LAST TEN YEARS
{Unaudited)
Fiscal Year
217 2016 2015 2014
Function/Pregram
General government
Business licenses issued a3 a5 82 62
Building permits issuead 567 599 617 623
Estimated value of building permits issued 228 618611 320,751,821 317,407 9159 $13,075,162
Other permits issued (sanitary sewer,
axcavation, plumbing, etc.) 204 161 144 143
Public safety
Physical arests vy 362 407 B4
Citations (parking, etc.) 1,320 1,518 1,884 2138
Alarms requiring response 184 181 214 209
Street value of drugs seized in searches $1,204,362 379,596 5258,000 $181,600
Ambulance calls 60B G08 589 537
911 callz 1,422 1,420 1,454 1,395
Fire calls 38 ] 57 a9
Animals impounded 58 a4 68 62
Animals adopted out or returned to cwners 5B B4 68 a1z}
City nuisance code violations ir'n.rramtI,n:]:;ltrel:l2 8,329 8,301 2,112 8,036
Junkediabandoned vehicles remaved® - . 4 2
Motices served for wead/arass complaints’ O3 771 A3 489
Hours spent monitaring parking 220 210 240 388
Public warks
Sidewalk repaired at city cost (feet) 100 160 295 a1
Asphalt hot patch (tons) 400 400 413 219
Concrete patch materials {yards) 40 45 6 157
Snowfall received (inchas) 26.6 41.4 41.8 44.8
Cost of snow removal (per inch) F3.610 52 483 52,6597 1,908
Persannel hours spent plowing/sanding 958 1823 1,587 1,382
Faded stoplyield signs replaced 7 8 12 ]
Truck loads for city-wide clean-up {various sizes) MNVA, MNIA MR MiA,
Personnel hours {full-time/part-time) for city-
wide clean-up 163173 2830 196/20 248/214
Appliances hauled away at city-wide clean-up 5E1 B77 154 33
City nuisance code violations investigated® A, A A NiA
Junked/abandonad vehicles removed” MiA MiA MiA MiA
Hotices served for weed/grass camplaints® PiA [ A, MNiA
Culture and recreation
Auditorium rental (days)® 74 53 48 G
Days utilized® 224 209 142 135
Annual audience® 27 400 25,530 24,600 22,500
Mumber of registrants in various recreation pragrams’ 418 377 379 415
Attendance of various recreation programs 1Y Ml MiA MR
Annual attendance at municipal swimming pool MNIA MNiA N/, MR
Days swimming poal was open (78 day ssason) A, MIA MNiA A
Faid galf mam'l}erships‘ MIA NIA NiA, 136
Shelter house reservations at parks 124 133 106 108
Camping units servad at Olson Park Campground 2,307 2,224 2,689 2,249
Conservation and development
Trees planted
Street boulevards 39 45 250 i}
Parks 11 10 0 i}
Trees removed
Streel boulevards 40 4z 40 47
Parks 25 13 14 4
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TABLE XIX

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2005
G4 B4 53 4 53 &7
5492 &70 T00 7 o2 541
$5,651 931 $30,507 528 313,185,142 220,598,997 $21.483,025 515,301,224
122 166 155 135 134 142
762 433 il 450 926 831
2,008 2,283 2,280 3,024 2,044 2,880
188 245 260 288 156 222
$282 725 $E40,000 $114,.410 440,750 $384,280 F417.470
522 802 e 631 712 726
1,745 1,172 1,493 1,680 2,080 1,965
61 G2 bt 70 116 g2
&2 it 79 104 1 134
B0 78 26 23 36 52
8,021 74 7.217 7,128 A, MNiA
3 G 3 1" A M
741 590 GE1 G249 i, A
200 550 510 MIA MA MIA,
156 612 &35 120 295 451
240 208 261 226 441 289
180 215 449 132 173 188
56 45.6 T71.5 58.0 35.0 25.0
$2.097 32826 52,881 52,939 32,600 $3.385
1,390 2220 2332 2,778 2,088 2,196
10 14 12 L1 14 12
MIA Mk MR M, Mid, A
1904126 215/264 2007248 414/387 414/154 G241122
138 189 233 T a0z 422
MfA NiA MJA Mis, 6,941 B,89%
A, A WA A 18 23
MR M, A MR 49 35
A MR MIA A i, WA,
Y s MIA MiA NiA A
A A A, MiA A i
402 380 365 360 agr 424
A [N WiA MIA 3,803 3,637
[ MR MiA A 6,021 7,901
Y A MiA MiA, 55 72
167 158 157 152 18 132
102 a1 41 B4 25 74
MiA IiA MNiA WA 09 723
a o ] Q 3z 43
1 1] 4] a 10 62
T8 51 37 121 a7 48
225 i 25 23 4 10
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CITY OF WORTHINGTON, MINNESOTA

OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM
LAST TEN YEARS

(Unaudited)
Fizcal Year
27 2016 2015 2014
Function/Fragram
Business-type activities:
Water
Awverage daily consumption {oallons)
Commercial 458 067 453,853 475,377 442 GE5
Rasidential 640,669 647 466 622,734 633,918
Industrial 1,635,422 1,624,405 1,627 845 1,461, 566
Municipal Wastewater
Avarage daily sewage treated 1,940,000 2,250,000 1,660,000 1,373,123
Electric
Average daily consumption (KWH)
Residential 92,065 99,490 84,026 0F 864
Commaercial 178,255 182 360 182,705 183,468
Industrial 312,230 308,575 203,011 277,541
Industrial Wastewater Facility
Total gallons treated 620,610 632,230 576,700 524 540)
Storm Water Managamanf‘
Debris/leaves collected sweaping (yards) MR 1,785 1,972 1,604
Average cost per lane mile of street sweeping MiA $30.99 23209 33.16
Liquar
Customers served 151,051 151,337 180,707 147,325
fuverage daily sales 311,472 512,088 511,866 $11,235
Adrpart
Hangars rentad 19 20 20 19
Fuel purmped {gallans) 70,826 70,252 74,804 70027
Memarial Auditorium®
Auditorium rental (days) MiA A A A
Days utilized MR MIA A MR
Annual audience MA A MiA MIA

Sources: Various city departments

"The City of Worthington provided this service starting in 2005 with no additional charge, whereas in previous years this was
arranged by the Worthington Chamber of Commerce for a nominal fee. Starting in 2011, the City charged a nominal fee

“Starting in 2010 the code enforcement lcommunity service officer) activity is accounted far under the public safety pragram.
*Starting in 2014 the Memarial Auditorium activity is accounting for under culture and recreation program.

*Starting in 2015, golf course information was not available, The course was decommissionad starting in 2016.

5Star‘tir«g in 2017 the debris from sweeping 15 ne langer tracked. The debriz is dumped and disposed of by a private party.

Mote:  Indicaters are not available for the cable television function
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TABLE XIX

2013 2012 201 2010 2004 2008
456,050 480,757 474 583 423,548 406,521 404,406
651,643 725938 671,182 598,994 728,679 733,105
1,484,727 1,567,133 1,566,825 1,558,812 1,473 692 1.457 408
1,383,063 1,524,301 2,245 822 2,157 644 1,801,096 1.892 466
100,361 &8 840 102,39 101,101 88,227 87,394
181,011 182,483 182,814 176,547 169,643 165,264
293,345 307,355 283,278 269,579 266,512 283,564
550,000 547 000 643,000 508,800 395,170 584 650
3,850 2,350 2,280 2,048 2425 1,825
527.43 $26.63 §25.57 52472 32718 s23.08
144,514 143,281 138,637 132,884 127,003 120,906
510,624 310,078 $9.229 58,458 57,830 £7.262
16 16 18 16 18 18
72,052 50,934 76,586 T2.543 75714 7743
34 32 KIH 14 28 32
169 178 165 &7 208 221
18,886 21,363 18,856 11,143 18,448 21,000
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CITY OF WORTHINGTON, MINNESOTA

CAPFITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM

LAST TEN YEARS

Function/Frogram
General government
Community development
Vehicles

Public safety

Falice
Buildings'
Square footage of holding/booking area’
Capacity of jail cells (individuals)’
Patrol units
Other vehicles

Fire
Stations
Fire vehicles

Animal control vehicles

Public works
Streets (miles)
Highway (miles)
Traffic signals
Stop signs
Snow removal equipment (plows, haulers)

Culture and recreation
Parks and recreation

Acreage
Flaygrounds with play structures
Softball diamonds
Soccer fields
Tennis courts
Swimming pools
Beaches
Boat landings
Public docks

Golf courses?
Bandshells for public performances
Campgrounds

Conservation and development
Lakes
City maintained lake shoreling (miles)
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{Unaudited)
Fiscal Year
2017 2016 2015 2014
4 4 4 3
1 1 1 1
12,000 12,000 12,000 12000
104 104 104 104
12 12 12 12
10 10 g 9
1 1 1 1
g9 8 8 8
1 1 1 1
746 68.2 67.4 67.3
7.8 7.8 7.8 9.1
3 3 4 5
240 235 235 229
14 13 13 13
167 167 167 167
18 18 18 18
2 2 2 2
3 3 3 3
3 3 3 3
0 0 0 W]
3 3 3 3
4 4 4 4
8 8 8 8
i} 0 1 1
1 1 1 1
1 1 1 1
1 1 1 1
4.5 45 4.5 4.5



TABLE XX

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
3 3 3 3 3 3
1 1 1 1 1 1
12,000 12,000 12,000 12,000 12,000 12,000
104 104 104 104 104 104
11 15 11 11 14 14
11 10 10 11 7 6
1 1 1 1 1 1

8 8 8

1 1 1 1 1 1
67.3 67.3 67.3 67.3 66.5 66.2
9.1 9.1 9.1 9.1 9.1 9.1
5 4 4 4 3 3
229 229 229 229 218 216
13 13 13 13 13 14
167 167 167 167 167 167
18 18 18 18 18 18
2 2 2 2 2 2
3 3 3 3 3 3
3 3 3 3 3 3
0 0 0 0 1 1
3 3 3 3 3 3
4 4 4 4 4 4
8 8 8 8 8 8
: 1 1 1 1 1
1 1 1 1 1 1
1 1 1 1 1 1
1 1 1 1 1 1
4.5 45 45 45 45 45
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CITY OF WORTHINGTON, MINNESOTA

CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM

Function/Program
Business-type activities;
Water
Water mains (miles)
Number of connections (residential,
commercial, industrial & seasonal)
Fire hydrants
Storage capacity
Ground level (thousands of gallons)
Elevated (thousands of gallons)
Municipal Wastewater
Sanitary sewers (miles)
Annual treatment capacity
(thousands of gallons)
Maximum daily treatment capacity
{thousands of gallons)
Electric
Mumber of distribution stations
Service lines-primary {miles)
Service line-secondary (miles)
Streetlights
Storm Water Management
Storm sewers (miles)
Liquor
Buildings
Square footage (feet)
Mumber of coolers
Parking Systems”
Parking lots
Airport
Acreage
Terminals
Individual hangars
Commercial hangars
Runways
Runway approaches
Memaorial Auditorium
Mumber of stages
Facility seating

Sources: Various city departments

LAST TEMN YEARS
{Unaudited)
Fiscal Year
2017 2016 2015 2014
799 ¥9.9 792 78.9
4,157 4,155 4112 4 075
625 625 621 621
2,200 2,200 2,200 2,200
2,300 2,300 2,300 2,300
259.1 551 55.1 55.1
1,000,750 821,500 571,680 501,190
4.000 4 000 4 000 4,000
2 2 2 2
115 130 130 125
143 175 175 175
1,957 1,958 1,599 1,900
52.7 527 52.7 527
1 1 1 1
G,750 6,750 6,750 6,750
2 2 2 2
5 5 5 5
512 512 512 512
1 1 1 1
22 22 22 22
2 2 2 2
2 P 2 2
4 4 4 4
2 2 2 2
735 T35 735 735

"This facility and its components are shared with Nobles County and the city rents space from the county.

“Starting in 2004 the golf course is accounted for in the recreation program.
*The city generates electricity for Missouri Basin and in turn is billed for usage.
“Starting in 2007 the parking systems activity is accounted for in the general fund.

Mote: Indicators are not available for the industrial wastewater facility and cable television functions.
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TABLE XX

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
78.9 78.5 77.7 78.1 77.6 72.1
4,044 4,045 4,019 4,003 4,046 4,037
613 611 508 605 599 586
2,200 2,200 2,200 2,200 6,200 6,200
2,300 2,300 2,300 2,300 2,300 800
55.1 55.1 55.1 55.0 54.8 54.5
480,750 556,370 820,460 787,540 643,490 688,510
4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000
2 2 2 3 3 3
125 125 120 112 125 110
175 175 170 189 175 160
1,900 1,880 1,868 1,864 1,779 1,800
52.7 52.7 52.7 52,7 52.6 52.4
1 1 1 1 1 1
6,750 6,750 6,750 6,750 6,750 6,750
2 2 2 2 2 2
5 5 5 5 5 5
512 512 512 512 512 512
1 1 1 1 1 1
20 20 20 20 20 20
2 2 2 2 2 2
2 2 2 2 2 2
4 4 4 4 4 4
2 2 2 2 2 2
735 735 735 735 735 735
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